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Vision
To provide reliable
& economical
Power supply to
Indian Railways and
other stakeholders
for boosting
India’s growth and
augmentation of

nation’s generation
capacity.
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Mission

To generate and
provide reliable,
cost effective energy
with eco-friendly
technologies,
maintaining an
ethical and socially
responsible
organization.
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Chairman's Statement

| am delighted to present to you the 16thAnnual Report highlight BRBCL's tremendous growth in
FY 2022-2023. We have emerged more resilient and reinvigorated, and our confidence in our capabilities
is reflected not only in our numbers but also in the trust that our stakeholders have placed in us.

Operational Performance:

In FY 2022-23, the generation of BRBCL stood at 6926 MU which is 22.51 % higher compared to previous
year’s generation of 5653 MU. BRBCL has also demonstrated operational stability by achieving PLF
@79.07 %, which is higher than the average PLF across the country.

BRBCL is incorporating highest standard of safety at workplace which lead to “Zero” reportable incident
since last two years.

In FY 2022-23, 4.69 MMT of Coal is received, which is 17% higher as compared to previous year. Total
1241 Number of Rakes were handled in FY 2022-23 which is 21 % higher than the previous year.

BRBCL is committed to provide reliable & quality power to Indian Railways and other stakeholders.
Financial Performance:

In FY 2022-23, BRBCL has registered a profit of Rs. 244 crores. Total revenue from operations was Rs.
3424.74 crores which is 32% higher than previous year. In FY 2022-23, BRBCL incurred capital expenditure
of Rs. 230.56 crores.

Sustainable Growth:

BRBCL is fully committed to ensure and provide a safe and healthy work environment. Special attention
is being given to adherence to best safety practices in construction projects and O&M activities. Near
miss accidents are being reported and analyzed to take timely preventive measures. Regular safety
audits are being held in Project and O&M areas. Introduction and appreciation of KOM (Key Opinion
Makers) resulted better worker’s participation in safety management.

_



Corporate Social Responsibility:

At BRBCL, we believe that inclusive and holistic development is essential for creating a sustainable
future. As a socially responsible organization, we accept that it is our responsibility to give back to the
communities in which we operate. Our CSR initiatives have been designed to address complex and
interconnected challenges, including education, healthcare, livelihoods, and the environment.

We are proud to say that our CSR initiatives have significantly impacted the lives of people and the
environment. It has been fulfilling to see the tangible improvements in education, healthcare, and
livelihoods in the communities. We have strived to create a positive social impact by focusing on
education, healthcare, infrastructure, women empowerment, and livelihood development.

Corporate Governance:

BRBCL is committed to sound corporate practices based on conscience, transparency, fairness,
professionalism, and accountability. BRBCL has adopted various policies such as “Safety Policy”,
“Ash Utilisation Policy”, “Environment Policy”. Also, enterprise Risk Management System, e-waste
management, handling and disposal, IT security policy etc. already has been under implementation at
BRBCL.

Acknowledgements:

BRBCL is focusing on delivering high performance levels, efforts are underway for improving the
profitability and thereby increasing the wealth of the shareholders. Additionally, with strong focus
on efficiency improvements, adoption of best O&M practices and optimization of resources, BRBCL is
committed to provide reliable, sustainable, and economic power to all its beneficiaries.

| take this opportunity to place on record my sincere thanks and gratitude to our partners, NTPC
Limited and Ministry of Railways, for their consistent support and guidance. | would like to thank the
Government of India, particularly Ministry of Power, Ministry of Coal, Ministry of Railways, Ministry
of Environment, Forest and Climate Change, DIPAM, CERC, CEA, CAG, State Governments, our valued
Customers, Auditors, Vendors, other authorities and agencies that provide unstinted support.

| am highly grateful to our Employees — our biggest asset — without the passion and commitment of
whom none of the achievements would have been possible. | am confident that our employees will rise
to the occasion with full zeal, hard work and commitment to harness the growth opportunities as well
as to meet the challenges.

| convey my appreciation to my colleagues on the Board for their invaluable contribution in strengthening
the Company. BRBCL values the trust and confidence and shall continue to work tirelessly to take it
forward.

With best wishes,
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Chief Executive Officer’s Message

We celebrated a banner year in 2022-2023 and | am thrilled to
share the considerable progress we have made in the last year.

As we worked to achieve our objective of providing reliable,
sustainable, and economic power, we achieved several
milestones. Our achievements also included reinforcing our
ESG and sustainability commitments, strong focus on efficiency
improvements, and adoption of best O&M practices.

Operational Performance:

In FY 2022-23, the generation of BRBCL stood at 6926 MU which
is 22.51% higher compared to previous year’s generation of 5653 MU. BRBCL has also demonstrated
operational stability by achieving PLF @79.07%, which is higher than the average PLF across the country.

BRBCL is incorporating highest standard of safety at workplace which lead to “Zero” reportable incident
since last two years.

In FY 2022-23, 4.69 MMT of Coal is received, which is 17% higher as compared to previous year. Total
1241 Number of Rakes were handled in FY 2022-23 which is 21 % higher than the previous year.

BRBCL is committed to provide reliable & quality power to Indian Railways and other stakeholders.
Financial Performance:

In FY 2022-23, BRBCL has registered a profit of Rs. 244 crores. Total revenue from operations was Rs.
3424.74 crores which is 32% higher than previous year. In FY 2022-23, BRBCL incurred capital expenditure
of Rs. 230.56 crores.

Sustainable Growth:

One of the cornerstones of BRBCL's growth structure has always been sustainable growth. The following
measures are being implemented for sustainable growth with a shift toward clean and green power:

1. Erection Activities of Flue Gas Desulphurization (FGD) system for reduction in Sox is in full swing.
2. Combustion Modification work being taken up for reduction in Nox.

3. InFY2022-23, BRBCL planted 21,000 trees in plant and nearby surroundings. Total trees planted by
BRBCL so far, is 1.42 lakhs.

4. 7LD (Zero Liquid Discharge) works are in progress.
Corporate Social Responsibility:

At BRBCL, we believe that inclusive and holistic development is essential for creating a sustainable
future. As a socially responsible organization, we accept that it is our responsibility to give back to the
communities in which we operate. Our CSR initiatives have been designed to address complex and
interconnected challenges, including education, healthcare, livelihoods, and the environment.

We are proud to say that our CSR initiatives have significantly impacted the lives of people and the
environment. It has been fulfilling to see the tangible improvements in education, healthcare, and
livelihoods in the communities. We have strived to create a positive social impact by focusing on
education, healthcare, infrastructure, women empowerment, and livelihood development.

_



Some of the key initiatives for the FY 2022-23 are:

e Skill development of rural youth and farmers

e Renovation of Chatt Ghats in nearby villages

e Distribution of Desk Benches in PAP schools

e Mass tree plantation and environmental conservation activities
e Mobile Health Ambulance Services

Our employees drive everything we do, and we are dedicated to going above and beyond to give them
opportunity to an excellent environment that is inclusive and enables them to attain their full potential.
We are going to keep focusing on professional development to create an even stronger team and the
best possible employee experience.

Upon this year of our strategic cycle, we will continue our journey, by forging ahead with an aligned
approach to provide power and contribute to India’s growth story.

| would like to thank everyone who supported us throughout this eventful year. | am grateful to our
partner and prime customer, Ministry of Railways, for entrusting us, to our Board for providing invaluable
guidance and to our employees for subscribing to our vision.

| look forward to the year ahead and am excited about what we can achieve together.

ARTIYA RAIL BILEE COMPANY LTD.
NABINAGAR
CATEGORY
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
(A subsidiary of NTPC Limited)
CIN: U40102DL2007G0I1170661

Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, CORE-7, SCOPE Complex,
7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110 003

Tel. no.: 011-24387789 Fax: 011-24360241
Email: amit1106.acs@gmail.com

NOTICE

NOTICE is hereby given that 16" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED will be held on THURSDAY, 28" SEPTEMBER 2023 AT 5:30 P.M AT THE REGISTERED
OFFICE OF THE COMPANY AT NTPC BHAWAN, CORE-7, SCOPE COMPLEX, 7, INSTITUTIONAL AREA,
LODI ROAD, NEW DELHI-110003 to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESSES:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial
year ended 31 March 2023, the reports of the Board of Directors, Independent Auditors’ Report
and the comments of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India thereon and to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that the audited Financial Statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31*
March 2023 and reports of the Board of Directors, Independent Auditors’ Report and the comments
of the Comptroller & Auditor General of India thereon be and are hereby received, considered and
adopted.”

2. To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year 2023-24 and to pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to fix an appropriate remuneration
of Statutory Auditors of the Company as appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India
for the financial year 2023-24 after taking into consideration the increase in volume of work and
prevailing inflation.”

3. To confirm payment of interim dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

“Resolved that first interim Dividend of Rs. 70,00,00,000 @ 2.92 % of the paid-up equity share
capital of the company out of the profits of the Company for the period upto June’2022 and its
second and third interim dividend of Rs. 80,00,00,000/- @3.34% and Rs. 100,00,00,000/- @ 4.17%
of the paid-up equity share capital of the company out of the profits of the Company for the period
upto Dec’2022 be and is hereby declared out of the profits of the Company for the financial year
2022-23”

4. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. R K Jain (DIN: 08180329), who retires by rotation and being
eligible, offers himself for re-appointment.

“Resolved that in accordance with the provisions of Section 152 and other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. R K Jain (DIN: 08180329), who retires by rotation at this meeting, be
and is hereby appointed as a Director of the Company”.

_
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SPECIAL BUSINESS:

5.

To appoint Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi (DIN: 09809000), as Director of the
Company and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s),
the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of Section 149, 152, other applicable provisions, if
any, of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder, Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya
Dusanapudi (DIN: 09809000),who was appointed as an Additional Director by the Board of Directors
on 30.11.2022 to hold office upto the date of Annual General Meeting in terms of Section 161 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing
from the candidate under Section 160 of the Companies Act, 2013 signifying his candidature as the
Director of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as Director of the Company and he shall be
liable to retire by rotation”.

To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors paid for the financial year 2022-23, to authorize
the Board to fix the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for FY 2023-24 and to pass the following
resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:

“Resolved that pursuant to the provisions of section 148, other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, for the time being in force), the remuneration
payable to Cost Auditor(s) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company to conduct the
audit of cost records of the various units of the Company for the Financial Year 2022-23, amounting
to X 65,000/- plus applicable taxes and out of pocket expenses etc. be and is hereby ratified and
confirmed.

Further resolved that the Board of Directors be and is hereby authorised to fix an appropriate
remuneration of Cost Auditors of the Company in terms of the provisions of Section 148(3) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 for the
financial year 2023-24 after taking into consideration the increase in volume of work and prevailing
inflation.”

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Kamal Nath Thakur)
Company Secretary

Regd. Office:

NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area
Lodhi Road, New Delhi— 110003

CIN: U40102DL2007G0I170661

Dated: 28.09.2023




Notes:
1.

The relevant explanatory Statement, pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013, in respect
of the Special Businesses, as set out above is annexed hereto.

A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY
TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER
OF THE COMPANY. IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE, THE PROXY FORM DULY COMPLETED SHOULD BE
DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN FORTY-EIGHT HOURS
BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. BLANK PROXY FORM IS
ENCLOSED.

PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 105 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013, APERSON CAN ACT
AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE
NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING
VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND
SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. PROXIES
SUBMITTED ON BEHALF OF LIMITED COMPANIES, SOCIETIES, ETC. MUST BE SUPPORTED BY AN
APPROPRIATE RESOLUTION / AUTHORITY, AS APPLICABLE.

Every member entitled to vote at a meeting of the company or on any resolution to be moved
thereat, shall be entitled during the period beginning twenty four hours before the time fixed for
the commencement of the meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, to inspect the
proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours of the company, provided not less than three
days’ notice in writing of the intention to inspect is given to the company.

Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative to attend the meeting are
requested to send a certified copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their representative to
attend and vote on their behalf at the meeting.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
Special Businesses, as set out above, is annexed herewith.

Brief resume of the Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment at Annual General Meeting
(AGM) is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice.

Pursuant to Section 139 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Auditors of a Government Company
are to be appointed by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India (C&AG) and in terms of Section
142 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013, their remuneration has to be fixed by the Company in the
Annual General Meeting or in such manner as the Company may in General Meeting determine.

The Members in the AGM held on 26.9.2022 had authorized the Board of Directors to fix the
remuneration of Statutory Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23.

The Board of Directors, in its Meeting held on 11.5.2023, had approved the payment of Rs 2,00,000/-
for annual financial audit, Rs. 50,000/- per quarter for limited review of quarterly financial statement
and Rs. 65,000/- each for tax audit and Balance Sheet plus applicable taxes and TA/DA, conveyance
as per NTPC rules for the statutory audit for the period starting from April 1, 2022 to March 31,
2023.

The Members may authorise the Board to fix up an appropriate remuneration of Statutory Auditors
appointed by C&AG for the year 2023-24 after taking into consideration the volume of work and
prevailing inflation.

_
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8.
9.

None of the Directors of the Company is in any way related with each other.

All documents referred to in the accompanying notice and explanatory statements are open for
inspection at the registered office of the Company on all working days, except Saturdays and Sunday,
between 11.00 A.M. to 3.00 P.M. prior to the scheduled time of Annual General Meeting.

10. As per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014, Company may give notice etc. through electronic mode i.e. by e-mail
as a text or as an attachment to e-mail or as a notification providing electronic link. The Notice of the
General Meeting etc. is being sent by electronic mode to all the Members, whose email addresses
are available with the Company, unless any Member has requested for a physical copy of the same.

11. To support “ Green Initiative” of MCA, GOl Members who have not yet registered their e-mail id or

12.

who want to change their e-mail id are requested to approach their respective DP (for electronic
holding) or Company (for physical holding), so as to receive all communications electronically
including annual report, notices, circulars, etc. sent by the Company from time to time.

Specific particulars of the Directors seeking appointment or re-appointment, as required under
clause 1.2.5 of Secretarial Standard on General Meeting is annexed hereto and forms part of the
Notice.

DIVIDEND

13.

14.

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 18.06.2022 had declared first interim dividend of Rs.
70,00,00,000 @ 2.92 % of the paid-up equity share capital of the company out of the profits of the
Company for the period upto June’2022 and its second and third interim dividend in its meeting held
on 21.11.2022 and 6.3.2023 respectively of Rs. 80,00,00,000/- @3.34% and Rs. 100,00,00,000/-@
4.17% respectively of the paid-up equity share capital of the company out of the profits of the
Company for the period upto Dec.’2022 respectively. Thus, Board of Directors had declared total
dividend of Rs. 250 crore during the Financial Year 2022-23.

Final dividend, if any, approved at the AGM shall be paid with a stipulated time and subject to
deduction of tax, if any, as provided in the relevant section of Companies Act, 2013 and in terms of
the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961 (“the Act”) as amended by the Finance Act, 2020.

15. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained under

16.

Section 170 of the Act, the Register of Contracts or Arrangements in which the directors are
interested, maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available electronically for inspection
by the members during the AGM.

Route map for venue of the meeting is enclosed.




Annexure to the Notice

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO. 5

Shri Srinivasbabiji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi (DIN: 09809000), NTPC RED (EAST-1), was appointed as
Additional Director on the Board of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited by the Board of Directors on
30.11.2022 pursuant to provisions of Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as per nomination
received from NTPC Limited under Article 110 of the Articles of Association.

His brief resume, inter- alia, giving nature of expertise in specific functional area, shareholding in the
Company, other Directorship, Membership/ Chairmanship of Committees and other particulars are
enclosed with this notice.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives except Shri
Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi is, in any way, interested or concerned, financially or
otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval.
ITEM NO. 6

The Board, in its Meeting held on 26 September 2022, had appointed M/s DGM & Associates, Cost
Accountants, Kolkata, West Bengal, as the Cost Auditors of BRBCL for the Financial Year 2022-23 at a
remuneration of X 65,000/- and reimbursement of out-of- pocket expenses and applicable statutory
taxes/ levies in addition to the fees.

As per Section 148 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration recommended by the Audit Committee shall be considered
and approved by the Board of Directors and ratified by the shareholders. Accordingly, Members are
requested to ratify the remuneration paid to the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2022-23 and to
authorize the Board to fix the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the Financial Year 2023-24.

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives is, in any way,
interested or concerned, financially or otherwise, in the resolution.

The Board recommends the resolution for your approval.

By order of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
(Kamal Nath Thakur)
Company Secretary
Regd. Office:
NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area
Lodhi Road, New Delhi— 110003
CIN: U40102DL2007G0I1170661
Dated: 28.09.2023

TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS, STATUTORY AUDITOR AND SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

_
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BRIEF RESUME OF THE DIRECTORS SEEKING RE- APPOINTMENT

Name Mr. R.K Jain Mr. Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya
Dusanapudi
Date of Birth & Age 2/6/1964 12/8/1964
59 Years 59 Years
(DIN No.: 08180329) (DIN No.: 09809000)
Date of Appointment 16.07.2018 30.11.2022
Qualifications
Expertise in specific
functional area
Directorship held in N.A N.A

other companies

Membership/
Chairmanship of
Committees across all
Public Companies held
ason 31.08.2023

Audit Committee: Yes
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee: Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee: Yes

Audit Committee: Yes
Nomination and Remuneration
Committee: Yes

Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee: Yes

No. of shares held in the
Company

NIL

100

Attendance in Board
Meetings till 31.08.2023

No. of Meetings during his tenure = 8
No. of Meetings attended = 8

No. of Meetings during his tenure =
5
No. of Meetings attended = 4

Relationship with other
Directors and KMP

None

None




BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Dear Members,

Your Directors’ have great pleasure in presenting 16th Annual Report on the Business and Operations of
the Company along with Audited Financial Statements and Independent Auditors’ Report thereon for
year ended on 31st March 2023.

COMPANY’S VISION

“To provide reliable & economical Power supply to Indian Railways and other stakeholders for boosting
India’s growth and augmentation of nation’s generation capacity”.

COMPANY’S MISSION

“To generate and provide reliable, cost effective energy with eco-friendly technologies, maintaining an
ethical and socially responsible organization.”

PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY

Your Company has set up 1,000 MW (4X250 MW) Thermal Power Station, at Nabinagar in Aurangabad,
District of Bihar to meet the traction and non-traction electric power requirement of Railways.

Construction Activities under progress:

All four units are under commercial operation. However, FGD Erection work, Combustion Modification
works, CLO2 and pending construction activities of balance of plant are going on in full swing.

Total land acquired is 1,516.9338 acres out of total requirement of 1,526.218 acres for the project.
Ash Utilization:

During the Financial Year 2022-23, 18,92,036 MT of ash was generated, out of which fly ash generated
was 12,29,823 MT, ash utilized was 13,44,825 MT which was 71.08% of total ash generated. The ash was
issued to cement industry, brick making and NHAI for road construction.

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL RESULTS

The financial highlights of the Company for the year ended on 31st March 2022 and 31st March 2023
are as under: -

FY 2022-23
(X in Lakh)

FY 2021-22
(X in Lakh)

Particulars

Balance Sheet

Paid-up Share Capital

2,39,746.15

2,39,746.15

Total Assets

8,98,375.29

9,21,540.57

Non-Current Assets

7,97,838.93

8,15,242.67

Current Assets

97,323.84

1,04,306.14

Total Liabilities (other than total Equity)

6,10,576.16

6,29,342.41

Non-Current Liabilities

4,46,413.12

4,76,482.77

Current Liabilities

1,53,447.78

1,38,436.34

Non-Current Borrowings

4,46,034.59

4,75,987.33

Current Borrowings

49,828.33

64,177.44

_
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Particulars FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22

(X in Lakh) (X in Lakh)

Statement of Profit and Loss

Total Sales 3,42,474.08 2,57,894.07
Total Revenue 3,43,383.63 2,60,768.68
Total Expenses 3,15,417.10 2,21,368.92
Profit/ (Loss) Before Tax (PBT) 27,966.53 39,399.76
Profit/ (Loss) After Tax (PAT) 24,398.71 32,869.75

Transfer to reserve

(Amount in Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended ended
31-03-2023 31-03-2022
CSR Reserve
Opening Balance 415.44 -
Transfer during the year 687.14 422.50
Transfer to retained earning-Expenses (1102.58) (7.06)
Closing Balance 0.00 415.44
Retained Earnings
Opening Balance 51,888.72 36,434.50
Transfer during the year 24,398.71 32,869.75
Less : Final Dividend FY 2021-22 5,000.00 2,000.00
Less : Interim Dividend FY 2022-23 25,000.00 15,000.00
Transfer to CSR & others 420.76 (415.53)
Closing Balance 46,708.19 51,888.72
Fly Ash utilization reserve fund
Opening Balance 147.85 832.53
Add: Transfer during the year 285.52 230.82
LESS: Utilized during the year (911.42) 915.50
Closing Balance 1344.79 147.85

400000

350000

300000

250000

200000

150000

100000

50000

2023 2022
I Total Sales

_
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INFORMATION PURSUANT TO STATUTORY AND OTHER REQUIREMENTS

Information required to be furnished as per the Companies Act, 2013 and other regulations are as
under:

(1) CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING &
OouUTGO

Your Company has installed following equipment’s for pollution control & conservation of energy:

(i) Electrostatic Precipitator, Chimney, Cooling Towers, Ash handling equipments, Ash Dyke, Ash
water recirculation system, Effluent treatment plant, Dust extraction & suppression system, fire
detection system, DM plant waste treatment system, Sewerage treatment plant & its reuse for
horticulture purpose, Environmental Lab equipment, combustion modification of Unit#2 and
Unit#3 etc.

(ii) The steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy: Provision of Solar
lights in plants as well as Project Affected Villages

(iii) The capital investment on energy and environment conservation equipment: Approx. X 350
Crore had been earmarked for the above mentioned equipments.

During the period under review, there was no earning in the foreign exchange.

(2) The following information is provided in the Corporate Governance Report which forms part of
the Director Report as Annex-Il:

a. Number of Meetings of the Board held during the year and attendance of Directors in the Board
Meeting.

b. Constitution of the Audit Committee, number of Meetings held during the year and attendance
of the Members in the Audit Committee.

c. Constitution of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee, number of Meetings held during
the year, if any and attendance of Members in the Meeting.

d. Constitution of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, number of Meetings held during
the year, if any and attendance of Members in the Meeting.

(3) Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

As per requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, your Company is required to spend 2% of the
average net profits of the company made during three immediately preceding financial years in
CSR activities. As the average net profit of the Company for three immediately preceding financial
years was X 34,356.79 Lakhs. Therefore, your Company was required to spend Rs.687.14 lakhs for
FY 2022-2023, however, there was an unspent CSR amount of Rs.415.44 lakhs of Previous Financial
year 2021-22 on CSR activities which was also to be utilized during the FY 2022-23. Total available
CSR fund upto 31.03.2023 was Rs.1102.58 lakhs. However, your Company has spent Rs 391.92 lakhs
under the head of CSR on various activities. Further, Unspent CSR amount of Rs 710.66 lakhs has
been transferred to Unspent CSR Account. It is pertinent to mention here that the activities for
unspent CSR amount has already been identified.

(4) During the year your Company undertook the activities under Resettlement & Rehabilitation Plan
as a responsible corporate citizen in and around plant, details of which are covered under the
Management Discussion and Analysis Report attached as Annex-I to this Director Report.
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(5)

(6)

(7)

Statutory Auditors

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India through letter dated 20.10.2022 had appointed
Chamaria & Co., Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial
year 2022-23. The Statutory Auditors of the Company for the financial year 2023-24 are yet to be
appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India.

Management comments on Statutory Auditors’ Report

The Statutory Auditors of the Company have given an unqualified report on the accounts of the
Company for the financial year 2022-23.

The Statutory Auditors have drawn emphasis of matter, through their Auditor Report dated
14.06.2023, which is as under:

e The conveyance of 15.19179 acres of freehold land valued at X 482.43 Lakhs is still pending for
registration since long although validity period of agreement for sale of land has expired (refer
note no.2).

e The confirmation of balances and /or statement of accounts in respect of “Other Advance
Capex (GL code -1034106), initial Advance(s) Construction (GL code -1034100), ,Advances
contractors — O & M (GL code -1101300), Railway Claim Recoverable (GL code -1100837), Other
Claims (GL code -1100822), ,GR Clearing/IR Clearing-CAPEX(GL code -500001), GR Clearing/
IR Clearing- O & M(GL code -500002), SR Clearing/IR Clearing-CAPEX(GL code -500003), SR
Clearing/IR Clearing- O & M(GL code -500004),Payable to Railways (GL code -2070824), and
Contractors Control a/c (GL code -2101100),Ad hoc Advances (GL code -1101301),Advance
against materials(GL code -1101304),Material issued on load (GL code -1101203),are subject to
confirmation/reconciliation and consequent adjustment if any. Reconciliation of some of these
accounts are also pending since long. (refer note no.5,8,11,12&19)

e The confirmation of balances under materials lying with the contractors could not be verified in
absence of joint verification statements in this regard. Verification is lying pending since long.

e Primafacie few of the works against which advances were made are still pending for adjustment
since long in absence of the progress report of the respective work. Such amounts are included
in note no.5 & 11 to the financial statements.

e Provisional recognition of revenue from transmission for which final tariff order are yet to be
issued by CERC.

Review of accounts by Comptroller & Auditor General of India

The Comptroller & Auditor General of India (C&AG), through letter dated 14.7.2023, has given a
comment on the financial statements of your Company for the year ended on 31.03.2023. As advised
by the C&AG, comment and the contents of letter dated 14.7.23 alongwith the management reply
are being placed with the report of the Statutory Auditors elsewhere in the Annual Report.




CAG Comment on Financial Position

Management Reply

Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment-Freehold land (Note 2):
Rs. 723624.37 lakh

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited deposited Rs 22403.31
lakh with the District Administration, Aurangabad for
acquisition of land in respect of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company
Limited. Interest of Rs. 887.58 lakh accrued on the above
deposit (up to 31st March 2018) was transferred by the
District Administration to the Government Head in May
2018. The amount of Rs. 887.58 lakh was reduced from
the value of land and other current financial liability in the
books of accounts. Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
claimed the interest accrued on the deposit made for land
acquisition stating that the interest accrued is out of the
deposits for land acquisition hence same should be returned
to Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited for its intended use.
District Administration refused (March 2021) to return the
interest on amount deposited for land acquisition and sought
(November 2021) whether any clause in the agreement
provides for refund of interest. The interest amount was
not received by Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited till 31
March 2023.

“It is pertinent to mention here that
deposited account (i.e. X22403.31
lakh) was exclusively for the purpose
of BRBCL for land acquisition.
Also amount deposited on various
occasions against a demand letter
from District Authority and no
agreement was there. Therefore,
the interest accrual is prima facie
related to BRBCL. Accordingly, the
same had been accounted by us by
reducing the land cost and reducing
financial liability as recoverable from
District Authority.

However, District authority has
deposited the Interest amount with
State Treasury without any consent
from BRBCL. Hence BRBCL is taking-
up the matter with State Revenue
Secretary level. We hope that the
same will be recovered from the
Authority.

As per the accounts closing guidelines of NTPC (Bhartiya
Rail Bijlee Company Limited being a subsidiary of NTPC), all
loans, advances, claims shall be reviewed from time to time
and whenever the amount is outstanding for more than
three years, the same shall be provided in the accounts.

Despite the amount being pending for realization for more
than three years and the matter been raised by Audit
during the accounts for the year 2020-21 and 2021-22, the
amount of doubtful receivable has not been provided by
Management.

Non-provision of doubtful receivable has resulted in
understatement of Property, Plant and Equipment as well as
Other Current Financial Liability by Rs 887.58 lakh.

In view of above BRBCL seeks one
more opportunity from CAG to put
once again efforts to get back the
interest amount.”

However, after detailed discussion
with Director General of Audit (Steel)
in the presence of his team and
BRBCL’s team, BRBCL has assured to
reverse the earlier accounting entry
during FY 2023-2024. Accordingly,
the earlier accounting entry has
been reversed on 30.06.2023.

(8) Cost Audit

As prescribed under the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, the Cost Accounting
records are maintained by the Company.

M/s DGM & Associates, Cost Accountants, had been appointed as Cost Auditors under Section
148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit & Auditors) Rules,
2014 for the financial year 2022-23.

The Cost Audit Report for your Company for the Financial Year ended on 31.03.2022 was filed with
the Central Government on 18.10.2022.
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The Cost Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31, 2023 shall be filed within the prescribed
time period under the Companies (Cost Records & Audit) Rules, 2014.

(9) Your Company, being subsidiary of NTPC Limited, is covered under the Enterprise Risk Framework
established by NTPC (Holding Co.). Details about risks with the Company are covered in the
Management Discussion & Analysis Report which forms part of this Director Report and placed at
Annex-l.

(10) Annual Return

Annual Return (MGT-7) pursuant to Section 92 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Section
134(3)(a) and rule 12(1) of the Company (Management & Administration) Rules, 2014 for the
Financial Year ended 31st March 2023 is available on the Company’s website i.e. www.brbcl.co.in.

(11) Performance Evaluation of the Directors and the Board

Section 178 (2) of the Companies Act, 2013 provides that the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee shall, inter-alia, shall specify the manner for effective evaluation of performance
of Board, its committees and individual directors to be carried out either by the Board, by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an independent external agency and review its
implementation and compliance

As per Section 134(3) (p) read with Rule 8 (4) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, every listed
company and every other public company having a paid up share capital of twenty five crore rupees
or more calculated at the end of the preceding financial year shall include, in the report by its Board
of directors, a statement indicating the manner in which formal annual evaluation has been made
by the Board of its own performance and that of its committees and individual directors.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA), through Notification dated 5th June 2015, has exempted
Government Companies from the provisions of Section 178 (2) and Section 134 (3) (p). The aforesaid
circular of MCA further exempted listed Govt. Companies from provisions of which requires
mentioning the manner of formal evaluation of its own performance by the Board and that of its
Committees and Individual Director in Board’s Report, if directors are evaluated by the Ministry or
Department of the Central Government which is administratively in charge of the company, or, as
the case may be, the State Government as per its own evaluation methodology.

Now, MCA, through Notification dated 05.07.2017, has amended Schedule IV to the Companies
Act, 2013 with respect to performance evaluation of directors of the Government Companies
that in case of matters of performance evaluation are specified by the concerned Ministries or
Departments of the Central Government or as the case may be, the State Governments and such
requirements are complied with by the Government companies, such provisions of Schedule IV are
exempt for the Government Companies.

As per the Articles of Association of your company, all the Directors are nominated by NTPC and
Ministry of Railways (MOR). The Directors nominated by NTPC or MOR are being evaluated under
a well laid down procedure for evaluation of Functional Directors & CMD as well as of Government
Directors by Administrative/ respective Ministry/ Department. Also, the performance of the Board
of the Government Companies is evaluated during the performance evaluation of the MOU signed
with the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Limited.

(12) Secretarial Audit

The Board has appointed M/s J K Gupta & Associates, Company Secretaries, to conduct Secretarial
Audit for the financial year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March
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31, 2023 is annexed herewith marked as Annex- IV to this Report.

The Managements’ Comments on Secretarial Audit Report are as under:

Observations Management’s Comments
As per Section 139(5) of the Companies | Appointment of Statutory Auditor was made by C&AG
Act, 2013, the appointment of|within the time frame, but the auditor appointed had
statutory Auditor by C&RAG was beyond |refused to accept the appointment as Statutory Auditor
the prescribed time frame. of the Company. Therefore, it was again approached to
C&AG for appointment of new auditor, which took time.

(13) Particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties

During the period under review, all transactions with related parties were at arm’s length and
suitable disclosure has been provided in annual accounts. Approval has been taken from the Audit
Committee where the transaction with related party falls under the purview of the Companies Act,
2013. All related party transactions were in the ordinary course of business and were negotiated on
an arm’s length basis. They were intended to further the Company’s interests.

Accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the
Companies Act, 2013 in Form AOC-2 is not applicable.

(14) Significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or tribunals impacting the
going concern status and company’s operations in future

NIL

Contingent Liabilities are detailed in Note — 42 of Notes to Accounts to Financial Statements for the
FY 2022-23.

The details of disputed statutory dues pending before appropriate authorities is detailed in Annexure
to Independent Auditors’ Report.

(15) Adequacy of internal financial controls with reference to the financial reporting

Your Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial reporting.
During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness in the design or
operation were observed.

(16) Particulars of Employees

As per provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, every company
is required to disclose details of employees receiving remuneration exceeding limits as prescribed
from time to time in the Directors’ Report.

However, as per notification dated 5th June 2015 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government Companies are exempted from complying with provisions of Section 197 of the
Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, such particulars have not been included as part of Directors’
Report.

In respect of employee from parent company NTPC Limited- Employee benefits include provident
fund, pension, gratuity, post-retirement medical facilities, compensated absences, long service
award, economic rehabilitation scheme & other terminal benefits. In terms of the arrangement
with parent company, the company is to make a fixed contribution of the aggregate of basic pay
and dearness allowances for the period of service rendered in the company accordingly, these
employee benefits are treated as defined contribution scheme.
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Your company pays a defined contribution for provided fund for employees on its roll to the fund
administrated and managed by Govt. of India. Both the employee and the company make monthly
contribution equal to a specified percentage of the employee’s salary. The contributions to the fund
for the year are recognized as expenses and charged to the statement of profit and loss.

In respect of employees on the roll of your Company, expenditure in relation to gratuity and leave
encashment is recognized on the basis of actuarial valuation.

(17)lIssue of Shares in the Financial Year 2022-23:
During the year FY 2022-23 Your company had not issued any shares.

(18) No disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions
on these items during the year under review:

1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
2. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.
(19) Establishment of vigil mechanism/ whistle blower policy

The Board of Director of your company has approved the Whistle Blower Policy as required under
Section 177 (9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Meeting of Board
and its Powers) Rules, 2014.

(20) There were no frauds reported by auditors under section 143(12) of the Companies Act, 2013.
(21) Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or Investments under Section 186

Your company has not granted any loans, given any guarantee or made any investments under
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 during the year.

(22) Deposits

Your company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions
of Section 73 of the Companies Act 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules,
2014 during the year under review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing details of deposits, which
are not in compliances with Chapter V of the Act, is not applicable.

(23) No Presidential Directive was issued by the Government during the year under review.
(24) Dividend Paid/Proposed for the Financial Year

Your company has approved and declared
first interim dividend of Rs. 70,00,00,000/-
@ 2.92 %, second interim dividend of Rs.
80,00,00,000/- @3.34% and third interim
dividend of 100,00,00,000/- @ 4.17%
respectively of the paid-up equity share capital
of the company during FY 2022-23 out of the
profits of the Company. Thus, your Company
had declared Total Dividend of Rs. 250 crore
during the Financial Year 2022-23.

(25) Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace

Your Company has constituted the Internal Complaints Committee under the provisions of Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. No case of
sexual harassment was received during the FY 2022-23.
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(26) Public Procurement: MSEs:

The Government of India has notified a Public Procurement Policy for Micro and Small Enterprises
(MSEs), Order 2012. In terms of the said policy, the total contract placed on and procurement made
from MSEs (including MSEs owned by SC/ST entrepreneurs) during the year 2022-23 was X 71.34
crore *, which was 19.95 % of total procurements made during FY 2022-23.

*|t excludes Primary fuel, Secondary fuel, Steel & Cement, the Project procurement including R&M
packages and procurement from OEM, OES & PAC sources.

(27) Statistical Information on Reservation of SCs/ STs for the year 2022-23
Nil
(28) Information on Differently Abled Persons

With a view to focus on its role as a socially responsible organization, BRBCL has endeavored to take
responsibility for adequate representation of Differently abled persons (DAPs) in its workforce.

(29) Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies
Your Company does not have any Subsidiaries, Joint Ventures or Associate Companies.
(30) Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016

During the financial year 2022-23, no application was made, or any proceeding was pending under
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016.

(31) One-time Settlement and Valuation

During the financial year 2022-23, no event has taken place that give rise to reporting of details
w.r.t. difference between amount of the valuation done at the time of one-time settlement and the
valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or Financial Institutions.

(32)Credit Rating

The Company’s financial discipline and prudence is reflected in the strong credit ratings ascribed
by rating agencies. The details of credit ratings are disclosed in the Management Discussion and
Analysis Report, which forms part of the Annual Report.

(33) Your company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards.

The particulars of annexures forming part of this report are as under:

Particulars Annexure
Management Discussion & Analysis I
Report on Corporate Governance Il
Annual Report on CSR 11
Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 v

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

As required under Section 134 (5) of the Companies Act, 2013, your Directors confirm that:

1. inthe preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

2. the Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
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state of affairs of the company at the end of the financial year 2022-23 and of the profit of the
company for that period;

3. the Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

4. the Directors had prepared the Annual Accounts on a going concern basis; and

the Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable
laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

During the Financial Year under review, the following changes took place in Directors and KMPs position
of the Company:

1) Shri Sital Kumar Nischal, ceased to be Director w.e.f. 17.11.2022 consequent upon resignation and
withdrawal of nomination by NTPC Limited and Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi RED
(East-1), has been appointed as Additional Director w.e.f. 30.11.2022 in place of Shri Sital Kumar
Nischal.

The Board wishes to place on record its deep appreciation for the valuable services rendered by Shri
Sital Kumar Nischal for his association with the Company.

The Board also welcome Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi, Director and on the Board of
your Company.

In line with the provision of Article of Associations and Companies Act, 2013, Mr. R.K Jain, Director
shall retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Directors acknowledge with deep sense of appreciation for the co-operation extended by Ministry
of Power and Ministry of Railways.

Your Directors also convey their gratitude to the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Ltd., Power Finance
Corporation Limited, Rural Electrification Corporation Limited, auditors, bankers, regulatory authorities,
contractors, vendors and consultants of the Company.

Your Directors are proud to see the Company stand strong on the resilient shoulders of the employees.
They applaud the undaunted spirit of employees and hail them as the most precious resources of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

(Ramesh Babu V)

Chairman

(DIN: 08736805)
PLACE: New Delhi
DATE: 28.09.2023
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Annex-| to the Directors’ Report to BRBCL
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
ECONOMIC AND SECTOR OUTLOOK

According to advance estimates of annual national income for the financial year 2022-23 the growth
rate of GDP is estimated at 7%, as compared to 8.7% in the previous year. International Monetary Fund
(IMF) has made mild growth projection for most of the economies across the world, however India has
fared better than most of the emerging and developing economies, IMF expects India to grow by 6.1%
in the financial year 2023-24 and also by an average rate of 6.1% over the next five years.

Based on the Indices of Industrial Production (lIP), electricity sector has shown a growth of 8.9% over
the last fiscal. The growth is also higher when compared to IIP for mining and manufacturing sectors
during the same period (5.8% and 4.5% respectively).

Financial year 2022-23 has seen India's power sector achieving new milestones and meeting the
aspirations of a rapidly growing nation. While peak demand touched a new height of ~216 GW, gross
generation crossed 1600 BUs for the first time. With the addition of more than 15 GW of RE capacity
during the year, the installed RE capacity crossed 40% (including large Hydro) of the total installed
capacity. Amid all these developments, universal access to affordable power remains the primary goal
for the Power sector.

However, to meet this goal, the biggest challenge is restoration of the financial health of the DISCOMs
across the country. In this direction, the implementation of the Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme
(RDSS) launched by Government of India (GOI) in the financial year 2021-22 has gathered pace and
its positive impact can be seen with the reduction of the ACS-ARR gap. However, further efforts are
required for modernisation of the distribution sector through rapid adoption of smart grid technologies
and digitalization of processes & customer interface. Additionally, ever increasing share of renewable
energy into the grid posed the challenge for grid stability. To meet these challenges and move ahead
with the decarbonization of the economy, Government of India has taken several initiatives in the
financial year 2022-23, key among them are:

Power sector Reforms

e Draft Indian Electricity Grid Code 2022

e General Network Access Regulations 2022

e Energy Conservation Act (Amendment) 2022,(Introduction of Carbon Markets),
e Electricity (Late Payment Surcharge and Related Matters) Rules, 2022
Renewable Energy promotion

With a commitment to increase non-fossil fuel-based energy capacity to 500 GW by 2030, the following
initiatives have been taken to promote RE capacity addition:

e Green Energy Open Access Rules

National Green Hydrogen Mission

e Revised Renewable Purchase Obligation trajectory including energy storage obligations.
e Introduction of Renewable Generation Obligation.

e Bidding Guidelines for Battery Energy Storage System.

e Performance Link Incentive Tranche-Il for Solar manufacturing
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e Guidelines for Promotion of Pump storage projects

e Electricity (Promotion of generation of Electricity from Must-Run Power Plant) Rules
e Waiver of ISTS charges for RE and allied activities

e CEA (Flexible Operation of TPP) Regulations, 2022

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS

The power sector is a key enabler of India's economic growth. Electricity contributes ~46% in the final
energy consumption of India. The sector with its three pillars: Generation, Transmission, and Distribution,
is crucial to India’s infrastructure and economic growth. The global stature of the Indian Power Sector is
depicted well by its positioning in terms of generation capacity. India is ranked 3rd in the World in terms
of electricity generation, 4th in installed renewable energy capacity, 5th and 6th in installed Solar and
Hydro capacity respectively as reported by international agencies like IEA, Statista, IRENA etc.

The achievements and various issues/ challenges faced by the Power Sector and key initiatives taken by
the Ministry of Power are discussed in the following paragraphs.

SNAPSHOT 2022-23

e Gross generation of the country (including imports from Bhutan) increased from 1492 BUs in the
previous year to 1624 BUs, registering a growth of about 9%.

e Generation from Renewable sources increased by about 19% from 171 BUs to 203 BUs, (excluding
Large Hydro) while generation from conventional sources (Thermal, Nuclear and Large Hydro
excluding Bhutan import) increased by about 8% from 1321 BUs to 1421 BUs.

e Conventional Capacity addition was 1580 MW during the financial year 2022-23 as compared to
4878 MW during the previous year.

e With the addition of 15402 MW, the renewable energy capacity has reached 172 GW (including
large hydro) as at 31 March 2023, an increase of about 10% over the previous year.

e With an addition of 14625 Ckms of transmission lines, total installed transmission capacity reached
471341 Ckms as on 31 March 2023.

e 75902 MVA of transformation capacity was added during the year as against 78982 MVA in the
previous year.

e PLF of coal based stations increased to 64.21% in the financial year 2022-23 from 58.74% in the
financial year 2021-22.

¢ The energy deficit stands at 0.5% marginally higher than 0.4% in previous year 0.4% however peak
demand deficit has increased from 1.2% to 4%, on YoY basis.

e Peak demand met stands at 211856 MW and maximum energy demand met stood at 4722 MUs,
both achieved on 10 June 2022.

Existing Installed Capacity

The total installed capacity in the country as on 31 March 2023 was more than 416 GW (including
renewables) with the Private Sector contributing 51% of the installed capacity followed by the State
Sector with 25% share and the Central Sector with 24% share.
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Sector Total Capacity (MW) % Share
Central 1,00,055 24%
State 1,05,726 25%
Private 2,10,278 51%
Total 4,16,059 100%
(Source: Central Electricity Authority)

Mode-wise installed capacity in the country as of 31 March 2023 is as under:

Mode Total Capacity (MW) % Share
Thermal 2,37,269 57%
Nuclear 6,780 2%
Hydro 46,850 11%
RES (Renewables) 1,25,160 30%
Total 4,16,059 100%
(Source: Central Electricity Authority)

Capacity Utilization and Generation

Sector-wise PLF in % (Coal based stations)

Sector 2022-23 2021-22
Central 75.00 69.33
State 62.44 55.08
Private 68.45 66.95
Private IPP 55.79 52.46
All India 64.21 58.74

(Source: Central Electricity Authority)

Generation

Sector-wise and fuel-wise break-up of conventional generation (in BUs) for the financial year 2022-23

is detailed as under:

Sector Thermal Hydro Nuclear Bhutan Total
Import

Central 456 63 46 -- 565

State 379 83 -- -- 462

Private 371 16 -- -- 387

Bhutan Import -- -- -- 7 7

Total 1206 162 46 7 1421

(Source: Central Electricity Authority)

Sector-wise share in Installed Capacity (conventional) vis-a-vis share in Generation (conventional):

Sector Share in installed capacity (%) Share in generation (%)
Central 24% 40%
State 25% 33%
Private 51% 27%

(Source: CEA Central Electricity Authority)
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Central sector generation utilities have performed better as compared to those of State and Private
sector in terms of share in generation with respect to installed capacity, as well as Plant Load Factor.

Electricity Consumption

The per capita consumption of power in India has reached 1255 units in the financial year 2021-22. It
is still well below 50% of the global average, providing enough room for growth. The total electricity
requirement in India increased from 1380 BUs in the financial year 2021-22 to 1512 BUs in the financial
year 2022-23 growing by ~10%.

Major end-users of power are broadly classified into 6 categories: Agricultural, Commercial, Domestic,
Industrial, Traction, and others. Their shares of electricity consumption, during the financial year 2021-
22, were approximately 17.7%, 8.3%, 25.7%, 41.1%, 1.5% and 5.9%, respectively. During the financial
year 2022-23, although absolute consumption of all the sectors has increased, the share of agriculture
and domestic consumption in the total consumption has increased whereas for other sectors it has
decreased slightly.

Transmission

The total inter-regional transmission capacity of the country has increased to 112250 MW as on 31
March 2023. This augmentation of the national grid is essential for supporting the higher injection of
renewable energy into the grid for the transfer of power from RE-rich states to other states.

Further, to meet the power evacuation requirement of 500 GW non-fossil fuel-based capacity planned
by 2030, connectivity of RE generators to the load centres through Inter-State Transmission System
(ISTS), is essential. It is estimated that the length of the transmission lines and sub-station capacity
required under ISTS for integration of additional wind and solar capacity by 2030 will be 50890 Ckms
and 433575 MVA respectively.

Distribution

Distribution is the key link in realizing the Government of India’s vision of supplying reliable 24x7 Power
for all. In this regard, the financial health of distribution companies is of prime importance, enabling
them to efficiently discharge their functions and responsibilities. However, their poor financial health
has remained a matter of concern. To reverse this trend, reduction of AT&C losses and ACS (Average
Cost of Supply) - ARR (Average Revenue Realization) gap are critical factors. With these intentions,
Revamped Distribution Sector Scheme (RDSS) has been launched to reinvigorate the DISCOMs.
Important objectives of RDSS are:

e Reduction of AT&C losses to pan-India levels of 12-15% by the financial year 2024-25.
e Reduction of ACS-ARR gap to zero by the financial year 2024-25.

e Improvement in the quality, reliability, and affordability of power supply to consumers through a
financially sustainable and operationally efficient distribution sector.

This results-linked scheme, launched in July 2021, has pushed the utilities and states to address
performance gaps, and chart action plans to avail the benefits worth 300,000 crore. The outlay includes
an estimated Government Budgetary Support (GBS) of 97,631 crore.

The Scheme is comprised of two components:

= Part-A: Financial support for Prepaid Smart Metering, System Metering, and Up-gradation of
Distribution Infrastructure; and

= Part-B: Training and capacity building and other enabling and supporting activities.
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Under this scheme Action Plans for 46 DISCOMs (28 States/UTs) have been approved where ~20.46
crore pre-paid smart consumers meters, ~54 Lakh smart DT meters and ~1.98 Lakh smart feeder meters
have been sanctioned.

The impact of these initiatives is reflected in the finding of the 11th Integrated Rating & Ranking of
Power Distribution Utilities. The key indicators of the improvement of DISCOMs performances are as
below:

e Inthe financial year 2021-22, performance of 39 DISCOMs have improvement over the last fiscal.

e While total sectoral debt rose 24% to 6.20 lakh crore till the financial year 2021-22, the pace of
debt addition slowed considerably. Debt increased by 34,000 crore in the financial year 2021-22,
versus 85,500 crore in the financial year 2020-21.

e Sectoral absolute cash-adjusted gap (between expenditure and income) dropped substantially to
%53,000 crore in the financial year 2021-22 from 97,000 crore in the financial year 2019-20.

e This was driven by significant improvement in the ACS-ARR gap, which captures the cash-adjusted
gap per unit. The power distribution entities were recording a loss of 79 paise/unit in the financial
year 2019-20, which reduced to 40 paise/unit in the financial year 2021-22.

e AT&Closses have improved to 16.5% in the financial year 2021-22, significantly lower than 21.5% in
the financial year 2020-21.

Power Trading

In India, power is transacted largely through long-term Power Purchase Agreements (PPA) entered,
between Generating companies and the distribution utilities. A small portion is transacted through
various short-term (contract period<1 Year) mechanisms. This includes Day Ahead Market and Real-
Time Market (RTM), followed by bilateral contracts (through traders, term-ahead contracts on power
exchanges, and directly between DISCOMs) and through Deviation Settlement Mechanism (DSM).

Around 95% of the power generated in the country is transacted through the long-term PPA route and
about 5% of the power was transacted through short-term trading mechanisms.

Key Initiatives/Reforms & Regulatory Changes in Power Sector
SECTORAL REFORMS
1. Electricity (Amendment) Bill, 2022

The Union Power Ministry on 8 August 2022 introduced Electricity (Amendment) Bill, 2022. It has
been referred to the Standing Committee on Energy for detailed examination. Key points of the
proposed amendment bill are given below:

= Non-discriminatory open access: DISCOMs owning network in a particular area of supply shall
provide non-discriminatory open access to other licensees (Section-42).

= Sharing of power and associated costs from existing power purchase agreements (PPAs) among
all DISCOMs in the area of supply (Section-60).

= Cross subsidy balancing fund The State Government will set up cross subsidy balancing fund for
depositing surplus of cross-subsidy from distribution licensee and for providing any deficit with
another distribution licensee in same area of supply (Section-60).

=  Empowerment of NLDC for ensuring safety and security of the grid, and for the economic and
efficient operation of the power system (Section-26).
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= Payment security mechanism to ensure timely payment of dues (Section-28).

= Ceiling tariff and minimum tariff: The Appropriate Commission will determine maximum ceiling
tariff and minimum tariff for retail sale of electricity (Section-62).

=  Suo-motu determination of tariff by the Appropriate Commission, thereby reducing the time
required for tariff determination and provision for interim tariff (Section-64).

=  Penalty Imposition on the obligated entities for shortfall in meeting the RPO (Section 142).
2. Electricity (Late Payment Surcharge and related matters) Rules, 2022

Issued in June 2022, these rules supersede the earlier Late Payment Surcharge rules 2021. Under
these rules, outstanding past dues including the Late Payment Surcharge from the effective date
of scheme i.e., 3 June 2022, have been rescheduled and are being paid in instalment over 12 to 48
months, based on quantum of past dues.

Rules have provision for regulation of power supply by generators, in case of non-maintenance of
Payment Security Mechanism (PSM) by DISCOMs. The short-term open access of the DISCOMs to
power exchange will also be regulated.

3. CEA (Flexible Operation of Coal based Thermal Power Generating Units) Regulations, 2023

= Notified on 25 January 2023, these regulations shall apply to all coal based thermal power
generating units owned or under control of the Central Government, State Governments or
owned by any private company, connected with the grid and to the load despatch centre. As
per the regulations all coal based thermal power plants should be capable of providing flexible
operation with minimum power level of 40% as per CEA phasing plan.

=  Further, coal-based units shall achieve ramp rate capability of minimum 3% per minute for
their operation between 70% to 100% of maximum continuous power rating and ramp rate
capability of minimum 2% per minute for their operation between 55% to 70% of maximum
continuous power rating in a phased manner as specified in these regulations.

4. CEA Scheme for National Level Optimization of surplus Generation Capacity

Applicable to Central Generating Stations (CGSs), Inter-State Generating Stations (ISGS)/IPP, Surplus
power with the States/Distribution companies and covering generators with tariff determined
under Section 62 & Section 63 of The Electricity Act, 2003. The salient features of scheme are:

= QOriginal beneficiaries to submit willingness in advance for surplus power & any other Discom to
requisition to avail such power.

= Buyer Discom shall pay as per regulated tariff for availing such surplus power.

= After checking availability of transmission corridor, CEA shall allocate the power to new
beneficiary through portal.

= Beneficiaries shall open the Payment Security Mechanism (PSM) and Generating Station will
record the acceptance of such PSM.

= Scheduling shall be as per Grid Code and Payment settlement will be as per Regional Energy
Account.

5. Indian Electricity Grid Code Regulations 2023
The salient features of the regulations notified on 29 May 2023, are:

= National Reference Frequency of 50.000 Hz (Resolution of 0.001 Hz against existing 0.01 Hz).
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=  Compensation for generation below technical minimum level shall be either as per the
mechanism in the Tariff Regulations or in terms of the contract entered into with buyers.

= Technical minimum/Minimum Turndown Level for a unit of a regional entity thermal generating
station shall be 55% of MCR or as per CEA regulations whichever is lower.

= |f a unit is taken under reserve shut down by a GENCO, it shall fulfil its obligation to supply to
the beneficiaries who made requisition prior to unit going under shutdown.

= Merit order scheduling principles introduced

v While furnishing block-wise requisition on behalf of the DISCOMS, SLDC shall duly factor in
merit order of the ISGS with which it has contracts.

v RE stations shall be requisitioned first followed by other generating stations as per merit
order, subject to technical constraints.

CERC (Sharing of Inter-state Transmission Charges and Losses) (First Amendment) Regulations
2023:

Notified in February 2023 (Effective date to be notified), the Regulations amended the various
clauses of existing CERC (Sharing of Inter-State Transmission Charges and Losses) Regulations, 2020
forincorporating newly introduced concept of GNA (General Network Access) and TGNA (Temporary
GNA).

CERC Regulation for Connectivity and General Network Access to ISTS system 2022: Notified in
July 2022 (partly effective from 5 April 2023). The salient features of the regulations are:

» Introduction of concept of GNA (General Network Access) and TGNA (Temporary-GNA) instead
of existing mechanism of Long-Term Access (LTA), Medium Term Open Access (MTOA) & Short-
Term Open Access (STOA).

= The new generators connected to the grid shall be granted deemed GNA equal to their installed
capacity.

= |n case of existing stations prior to 2009, wherein LTA application was not made have been
granted deemed GNA equal to their installed capacity.

= |n case of stations where LTA application was made as per 2009 LTA Regulations, deemed GNA
equal to LTA quantum has been granted.

CERC (Deviation Settlement Mechanism and Related Matters) Regulations, 2022 Regulations came
into force with effect from 5 December 2022 and subsequently amended vide CERC order dated 6
February 2023. The salient features of these regulations are:

= Deviation charges delinked from frequency.

= Deviation rate is maximum of Area Clearing Price (ACP) of the DAM/RTM/Average Ancillary
Service Charge.

= Deviation volume limit increased from (2%) to (10% or 100 MW, whichever is less).
=  When Freq.<49.95 Hz & Freq.>50.03 Hz, deviation volume limits removed.
= |n case of forced outage, the DSM charges shall be at the rate of Energy Charge Rate (ECR).

= DSM charges for infirm power shall be zero except when infirm power being scheduled.
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= DSM charges for drawl of start-up power before COD or APC during shutdown shall be payable
at the ECR or contract rate. In absence of ECR or contract rate, the weighted average ACP of the
DAM of time block shall be charged.

FUEL RELATED REFORMS
1. MOP modifies coal allocation methodology under SHAKTI Policy

On 6 April 2022, MOP modified methodology for allocation of coal as per SHAKTI Policy. According
to the modification, all power plants which do not have PPAs, shall be allowed to participate for
auction of coal linkage for short term period (maximum up-to one year). Auction of coal linkages
will be carried out under 3 separate windows of SHAKTI policy for delivery period of 3 months, 6
months & 12 months.

2. CERC issues order on Blending of imported coal with domestic coal to mitigate the domestic coal
shortage

On 26 July 2022, CERC issued order on blending of imported coal with domestic up to 30%, subject
to technical feasibility, without requirement of prior consultation with beneficiaries.

3. Empanelment of Third-party sampling agency in addition to CIMFR

To have additional third-party agencies other than CIMFR, MOP has empanelled a party for sampling
and testing of coal at the loading end, with the choice of Coal Consumer for taking services from
empanelled agencies. Further, second round of empanelment is also underway and some more
third-party agencies are expected to be empanelled.

4. Notification for Agro-residue Utilization by TPP Rules, 2023

Notified on 16 February 2023 and is applicable to all Thermal Power Plants located in the National
Capital Region (NCR) and adjoining areas. According to these rules, all coal based thermal power
plants shall on annual basis mandatorily use minimum 5% blend of pellets/briquettes made of crop
residue along with coal. Failing to do so, will lead to levy of Environmental Compensation at the rate
specified in the rules from the financial year 2024-25.

ENVIRONMENTAL REFORMS
1. Environment (Protection) Second Amendment Rules, 2022

As per the new notification by MOEF & CC dated 5 September 2022, the deadline for compliance for
SOx and other parameters has been extended by two years for non-retiring plants, while for retiring
plant the deadline has been extended up to 31 December 2027.

2. Amendment in implementation of the ash utilisation notification dated 30 December 2022

According to this MOEF&CC notification, areas where fly ash is stored can also be reclaimed by
setting up solar and wind power plants, along with plantations.

RENEWABLE ENERGY RELATED REFORMS
1. Renewable Purchase Obligation (RPO) and Energy Storage Obligation Trajectory till 2029-30

Issued on 22 July 2022, the trajectory has been progressively increased from the financial year
2022-23 to the financial year 2029-30, as mentioned below

= Wind RPO from 0.81% to 6.94%
= HPO will increase from 0.35% to 2.82%
= Other RPO from 23.44% to 33.57%
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= Energy Storage Obligation from 1% to 4%

The Energy Storage Obligation (ESO) will be calculated in energy terms, as a proportion of total
electricity consumption and will be satisfied only when at least 85% of total energy stored is
obtained from RE sources each year.

2. MNRE Draft “National Repowering Policy for Wind Power Projects - 2022”

With an objective for optimal utilization of Wind energy by maximizing energy yield/sq.km of area
& utilizing latest onshore Wind turbine technologies, MNRE issued Draft “National Repowering
Policy for Wind Power Projects - 2022” on 17 October 2022.

Following Wind turbines are eligible for repowering under the policy:
=  Wind turbines of rated capacity below 2 MW
=  Wind turbines which have completed their design life

= Set of existing Wind turbines over an area eligible for Repowering provided Project area is
geographically contiguous land area.

= All turbines considered for repowering connected to single PSS & >90% of total capacity of
project should have completed its design life. Capacity of repowered Wind turbines is enhanced
by at least 1.5 times of its aggregate capacity of old turbines.

3. Electricity (Promoting Renewable Energy through Green Energy Open Access) Rules, 2022

On 6 June 2022, MOP issued Electricity (Promoting Renewable Energy through Green Energy Open
Access) Rules, 2022. Under the rules, Open Access limit has been reduced from 1 MW to 100 kW,
which pave the way for small consumers to purchase RE and there is no limit for Captive Consumers.

Any Consumer can demand supply of green power from DISCOMs, minimum for a period of 1 year
for which approval shall be granted in 15 days or else it will be deemed to have been approved. The
obligated entity can also meet their RPO by purchasing green hydrogen or green ammonia.

Further in the Amendment dated 23 May 2023, the limit of 100kW or more can be through a single
connection or through multiple connections, located in same electricity division of a distribution
license. Exemption from cross subsidy surcharge shall be applicable in case of electricity produced
from offshore wind projects, which are commissioned up to December 2032 and supplied to the
Open Access Consumers.

4. CERC issues final Renewable Energy Certificates Regulations 2022

CERC issued CERC (Terms and Conditions for Renewable Energy Certificates for Renewable Energy
Generation) Regulations, 2022. Amendment in the extant REC mechanism was done to align it with
the emerging changes in the power sector. As per these regulations, RE generating station and
Captive Power Plants, Distribution licensee, and Open Access consumers will be eligible for issuance
of Certificates under certain conditions. A DISCOM or an Open Access consumer, which purchases
RE more than its RPO target will also be eligible for the issuance of Certificates.

5. Waiver of ISTS Charges and Losses

MOP vide order dated 2 December 2022, has extended the waiver of ISTS charges on the transmission
of power from new hydro power projects, for which construction work is awarded and PPA is signed
on or before 30 June 2025. ISTS charges on transmission of electricity generated from new hydro-
power projects are waived for 18 years from the date of commissioning.

ISTS charges shall not be levied on renewable energy used for production of green hydrogen and its
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derivatives such as green ammonia. This exemption is limited for those green hydrogen units which
are commissioned until 31 December 2030. The waiver shall apply for a period of 25 years from the
commissioning,

6. Green Hydrogen Mission

India has a large potential market for green hydrogen, in energy intensive sectors including
petrochemicals, transportation, power generation, and agriculture/industrial applications. To
capitalize on this potential, GOl approved the National Green Hydrogen Mission, with the goal of
developing green hydrogen production capacity of 5 million metric tonnes (MMT) and an associated
RE capacity addition of about 125 GW by 2030. Total investments expected are over %8,00,000
crore providing jobs and boosting economic growth.

7. Renewable Generation Obligation

Renewable Generation Obligation (RGO) has been introduced vide MOP order dated 27 February
2023, according to which any generating company establishing a coal/lignite-based thermal
generating station and having the Commercial Operation Date (COD) of the project on or after 1
April 2023 shall be required to establish renewable energy generating capacity of minimum 40% of
thermal capacity or procure and supply renewable energy equivalent to such capacity.

8. Promotion of Development of Pumped Storage Projects (PSPs)

Issued by MOP on 10 April 2023, the guidelines broadly encompass the methodologies for the
allotment of PSPs and standardizing time frame for project execution. Policy support guidelines for
suitable monetisation of PSP including reimbursement of SGST on PSP Component, exemption of
stamp duty & registration fees, priority in environmental clearance for PSPs have been provided.

Subsequently, MOEF&CC has exempted all pumped storage hydropower (PSHP) projects from
environment impact assessment regime, citing 'lesser' impact on the environment and their 'critical’
role in ensuring India's growing energy storage and infrastructure development needs.

SWOT ANALYSIS
Strength/ Opportunity

The Company is backed by strong promoters i.e. Ministry of Railways and NTPC Limited. NTPC is
the consultant for the Company which is having a wide experience in engineering and management
expertise from planning to commissioning and operating power plants. Indian Railways, being a big
transport organization, consumes about 2% of the total power generation of the country which is likely
to go up with the current pace of electrification. Presently, the peak power requirement of IR is about
4000 MW which is being fed to the electric traction network of IR through its odd 400 traction sub
stations spread across the length and breadth of the country. Out of this requirement, Nabinagar power
plant having 1000 MW capacity will cater the need of 900 MW of Indian Railways and 100 MW will be
given to the Bihar Government. Thus, BRBCL has good future prospects of dealing with the organisation
like IR having sound financial fundamentals.

The Company is able to acquire major portion of land for establishing the project. Bharat Heavy
Electricals Limited is the main plant contractor. The Company has tied up loan with Power Finance
Corporation Limited, Bank of Baroda and Canara Bank for meeting its debt portion. The Company has
coal linkage for (4X250 MW) capacity.

Weakness/ Threats:

The major threat the company is facing in acquiring parts of land. Law and order situation and project
security have also been a concern for the Company.
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RISKS AND CONCERN

The risk to which company is exposed and the initiatives taken by the company to mitigate such risks
are given below:

The project is delayed as there is delay in the land acquisition due to which contractors are demanding
additional compensation. This issues are being dealt as per provision of the contract and project
implementation is being expedited to minimize the time overrun.

Hazard risks are related to natural hazards arising out of accidents and natural calamities like fire,
earthquake etc.

Operational risks are associated with systems, processes & people and cover areas such as succession
planning, retaining of people at project, operational failure or interruption, disruption in supply chain,
failure of research & development facilities and faulty application of information technology and non-
compliance of regulatory provisions.

Also, non-receipt of schedule for generation of power and non-receipt of equity in time from Railways.
INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has robust internal systems and processes for efficient conduct of business. The Company
is complying with relevant laws and regulations. It is following delegation of powers as is being followed
in NTPC Limited. The accounts are being prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards issued
by Institute of Chartered Accountants of India from time to time and as per the guidelines issued from
NTPC Limited. The Company has implemented SAP in all modules. It is helping the Company a lot in
retrieving data and maintaining systematic backup.

In order to ensure that all checks and balances are in place and all internal systems are in order,
regular and exhaustive internal audits are conducted by experienced firm of Chartered Accountants in
coordination with Internal Audit Department of NTPC Limited. The Company has constituted an Audit
Committee to oversee the financial performance of the company. The scope of this Committee includes
compliance with Internal Control Systems.

FINANCIAL DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of accounting
and comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and subsequent amendments thereto, the Companies Act, 2013,
and the provisions of Electricity Act, 2003 to the extent applicable. The Company is involved in the
generation and sale of bulk power to Indian Railways and State Power Utilities.

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the Financial Statements for
the year ended 31st March 2023.

Non-current assets (X in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at % change
31.03.2023 31.03.2022
Property, Plant and equipment 7,23,624.37 7,62,140.48 (5.05)
Intangible Assets 24.99 32.47 (23.04)
Capital work-in-progress 54,056.22 33,580.65 60.97
Others 9,418.11 5,065.77 85.92
Deferred tax assets 10,715.24 14,423.30 (25.71)
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Total depreciation charged on property, plant and equipment upto 31.03.2023 was X 188,509.63 Lakhs.
The Gross carrying amount of fully depreciated property, plant and equipment that are still in use as at
31.03.2023 is X 1,377.49 Lakhs as against X 1,368.05 Lakh as at 31.03.2022.

Current assets

(X in Lakh)

Particulars As at As at % change
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Inventories 19,656.84 10,382.17 89.33
Trade Receivables 45,703.75 68,766.78 (33.54)
Cash and cash equivalents 1,782.75 2,043.70 (12.77)
Bank Balances other than cash and cash 1,776.85 422.33 320.73
equivalents
Other Financial Assets 3,334.79 24.11 13731.56
Others 25,068.86 22,667.05 10.60

Inventories include coal, fuel oil, stores and spares, chemicals & consumables, steel, loose tools, etc.

Liabilities — Non-current

(X in Lakh)

Particulars As at As at % Change
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Borrowings 4,46,034.59 4,75,987.33 (6.29)
Secured Term Loan from Bank 4,46,034.59 4,75,987.33 (6.29)
Secured Loan from others 0.00 - 0.00
Other financial liabilities 363.45 479.81 (24.25)
Deferred tax liabilities - - -

Financing:

The company has Term Loan facilities with State Bank of India, Bank of Baroda, Canara Bank, ICICI Bank

and HDFC Bank. The Status of loans as on 31.03.2023 is as follows:

(X In Lakhs)
Sl. Name of the Bank / Term Loan | Term Loan Term Loan Remarks
No. Financial institute Sanctioned Drawn Balance as on
31.03.2023

1. State Bank of India 197,700.00| 177,700.00 158608.32
2. Bank of Baroda 149,875.00| 149,875.00 112,308.78
3. Canara Bank 100,000.00| 100,000.00 75,000.30
4, ICICI Bank 150,000.00| 150,000.00 135,010.48
5. HDFC Bank 90,400.00 5400.00 5400.00| Loan tied up during

FY 2022-2023
6. Total 687,975.00| 582,975.00 486,327.89
7. *Repayment of PFC Loan| 32,000.00/ 32,000.00 0.00

(other than Refinancing)

8. Total 7,19,975.00| 6,14,975.00 486,327.89

There have been no defaults in repayment of the loan or interest thereon as at the end of the year.
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Current Liabilities

(X in Lakh)

Particulars As at As at % Change
31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Trade Payables 23,435.18 10,792.10 117.15

Other financial liabilities 62,273.24 46,744.30 33.22

Other current liabilities 512.31 189.47 170.39

Provisions 17,398.72 16,533.03 5.24

Other financial liabilities include Payment due for capital expenditure (for micro and small enterprises
and other than micro and small enterprises), Interest accrued but not due on borrowings, payment to
be made to Contractors, Employees and Bank overdraft etc.

Regulatory deferral account credit balances on account of Deferred Tax for the year ended 31.03.2023
is X10,715.26 Lakhs and for previous year X 14,423.30 Lakhs. Regulatory deferral Account debit balance
on account of Ash transportation Expenses and Exchange differences for the year ended 31.03.2023 is
X 3212.52 lakhs and previous year X 1991.76 lakhs.

Revenue

(X in Lakh)
Particulars For the year For the year % change

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Energy sales 3,42,474.08 2,57,894.07 32.80
Sale of fly ash 285.52 230.83 23.69
Interest from customers - - -
Other income 909.55 2,874.61 (68.36)

Company’srevenues arise from sale energy and otherincome. Revenue from otherincome comprises late
payment surcharge, interest from banks, employees, contractors, sale of scrap and other miscellaneous
income. The majority of the Company’s operations in India are regulated under the Electricity Act,
2003. Accordingly, the CERC determines the tariff for the Company’s power plants based on the norms
prescribed in the tariff regulations as applicable from time to time.

Energy sales are net of rebate to beneficiaries amounting to X 2,286.48 Lakhs as at 31.03.2023 as against
X 178.00 Lakh as at 31.03.2022.

It is pertinent to note that the complete amount of sale of fly ash is transferred to fly ash utilisation
reserve fund.

Expenses

(Xin Lakh)
Particulars For the year For the year % change

31.03.2023 31.03.2022

Fuel 1,94,791.89 123,568.16 57.64
Employee benefits expense 11,098.08 8,308.11 33.58
Finance costs 40,495.02 38,180.99 6.06
Depreciation and amortization expense 43,442.55 35,487.44 22.42
Other expenses 25,589.56 15,824.22 61.71

Expenditure on fuel constituted around 60% of the total expenditure of the Company during the

financial year ended 31.03.2023.
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Profits
The Company has made Net Profit after Tax of X 24,398.71 Lakhs.
HUMAN RESOURCE

Presently, the Company has total strength of 286 employees (including 7 Non-Executives and 28 BRBCL
Cadre employees). All employees, excluding 28 BRBCL Cadre Diploma Holder employees, have been
deputed from the Holding Company i.e. NTPC Limited. As a socially responsible and social conscious
organization, the Company has deployed 38 SC employees, 16 ST employees and 106 OBC (NCL) & 06
OBC (CL) employees out of total strength of 286 employees deputed from NTPC.

The Company is paying Performance Related Pay to its employees, also various welfare measures
including cultural activities for employees and their family members are also undertaken for boosting
employee’s morale.

Further to this, we have Executive club, Sone Sanskritik Club, Sports Council and Ladies club which takes
care of sports and cultural activities.

The employee benefits expense (salaries & wages, contribution to provident & other funds and staff
welfare expenses) was X 11098.08 lakh for the financial year 2022-23. An amount of X 1265.31 lakh
was included in employee benefits expense towards provident fund, pension, gratuity, post-retirement
medical benefits facilities and other terminal benefits.

REHABILITATION AND RESETTLEMENT ACTIVITIES

Your Company has taken up number of steps towards rehabilitation and resettlement like restoration
of Pond in Dhundua & Khaira village, construction of culvert in Dhundua village, installation of 54
nos. hand pumps for drinking water in PAP villages, construction of ITI building and ITI scholarship to
wards of PAPs. Company has also constructed village road in PAP Village around 23.29 KM. For women
empowerment sewing, tailoring, and stitching training had been completed for 50 nos of PAP village
women.

Developmental activities under progress

e Construction of Multipurpose Community Hall at Dhundhua.

e Construction of 3.02 Kms PCC Roads in PAP villages.

e [Tl building Construction & procurement of trade equipment and furniture
e Deep Tube Wells for Irrigation Purpose at PAP Villages.

e Sewing and Stitching training for 50 nos. PAP village women (New Batch)

e Renovation and making of Chatt Ghat at 5 ponds in PAP Villages.

e 2 No Toilet Complex at Nabinagar Road Rly Station and Nabinagar Market
e Construction of Parking Shed at Police Line, Aurangabad

Development activities under planning

e Construction of Additional PHC at Nabinagar

e Renovation and Modernisation of Govt High School at Manjhiyawan Village.

e Construction of Village Road approx. 2.5 k.m. in PAP Villages.
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OUTLOOK

The company’s outlook is very bright. It has been generating sufficient revenue for the growth and
development of the company as well as of the nearby community at large.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT

Statements in the Management Discussion and Analysis, describing objectives, projections and
estimates, are forward-looking statements and progressive, within the meaning of applicable security
laws and regulations. Actual results may vary from those expressed or implied, depending upon
economic condition, Government policies and other incidental / related factors.

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(Ramesh Babu V.)
Chairman
(DIN:08736805)

Place: New Delhi
Dated:28.09.2023
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Annex-ll to the Directors’ Report to BRBCL
Report on Corporate Governance
1. Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (BRBCL) has made a strong commitment to ensure trust
in the Company and to enhance shareholders’ value through effective decision-making and
improved communication between the management, the Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the
shareholders. Corporate Governance philosophy of BRBCL is as under:

“Enhancement of stakeholders’ value through pursuit of excellence, efficiency of operations, quest
for growth and continuous innovation.”

The Company’s framework for Corporate Governance is intended to decrease business risk,
maximise value and utilise the Company’s resources in an efficient, sustainable manner for the
benefit of shareholders, employees and society at large.

The Company believes that sound Corporate Governance is vital to enhance and retain stakeholder
trust. Good Governance is one of the essential pillars for building an efficient and sustainable
environment and to ensure that the affairs of the Company are being managed in a way which
ensure accountability, transparency and responsibility in all its transactions in the widest sense and
meeting its stakeholder’s aspirations and societal expectations. Implementation of good governance
indicates not only the compliance of the laws and regulations of the land but also indicates the
values, practices and culture of the organisation.

Your Company adheres to the Guidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector
Enterprises issued by the Department of Public Enterprises, Government of India to the extent such
compliances are within the ambit of the Company.

2. Board of Directors

At BRBCL, the Board fulfils the following four major roles viz. overseeing the risk profile of Company,
monitoring the integrity of business and control mechanisms, ensuring the expert management
and maximising the interests of its stakeholders. The responsibilities of Board of Directors are well
defined and every director is familiarised on the functioning of the Company. The Board has always
made decisions that are independent of management.

The Board of Directors is the apex body constituted by shareholders for overseeing the Company’s
overallfunctioning. Overtheyears, the Board hasalways endeavouredtofulfil corporate responsibility
towards our stakeholders. The Board has necessary authority and processes to review and evaluate
our operations when required. Further, the Board makes decisions that are independent of the
Management.

i. Composition of the Board

The Company is managed by the strong Board who are well acquainted about their duties and
responsibilities. As per the Articles, the company shall have a minimum of 4 Directors and not
more than 15 Directors, Directors are to be nominated by both parties i.e. NTPC and Ministry of
Railways in accordance with their equity shareholding. The respective parties shall determine
the period for which their respective nominees shall hold office.

The Chairman of the Board shall always be a Director nominated by NTPC.

_



Independent Directors

DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs requires the Company to appoint two
Independent Directors on the Board. However, Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) vide
notification dated 5th July 2017 had amended the Rule 4 of Companies (Appointment and
Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. As per which thew unlisted public companies in the
nature of wholly owned subsidiaries companies are exempted from the requirement of
appointing Independent Directors on their Board.

We understand that the above DPE Guidelines are under revision to align it with the Companies

Act, 2013.

Woman Directors

As per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has appointed one Woman

Director on its Board.

Board Meetings

As on 31.03.2023, there are 4 (four) Directors on the Board as under:

S. No.

Name of Director

Designation

Date of Appointment

1. |Shri Ramesh Babu V.

Chairman (nominated by NTPC)

Chairman w.e.f. 18.08.2020

2. |Shri R.K. Jain

Director (nominated by Ministry

Director w.e.f. 16.07.2018

Sri Ganesh Satya

Dusanapudi

of Railways)
3. |Smt. Renu Narang Director (nominated by NTPC) Director w.e.f. 19.11.2019
4. |Shri Srinivasbabji Director (nominated by NTPC) Director w.e.f. 30.11.2022

During the year, five Meetings of the Board were held on 9.05.2022, 18.06.2022, 26.09.2022,
21.11.2022 and 6.03.2023. The attendance of Directors in Board Meetings was as under:

Date of the BOARD MEETINGS

Meeting/ Name of 9.05.2022 |18.06.2022|26.09.2022(21.11.2022|6.03.2023

the Director (100*) (101%) (102") (103™) (104™)

Shri Ramesh Babu V. (08736805 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes
(Thru VC)

Shri R.K. Jain 08180329 Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes

(Thru VC) | (Thru VC)

Smt. Renu Narang 08070565 Yes L.A Yes Yes Yes
(Thru VC)

Shri Sital Kumar 08615850 Yes Yes Yes NA NA

(upto 17.11.2022)

Shri Srinivasbabji 09809000 NA NA NA Yes Yes

Sri Ganesh Satya (Thru VC)

Dusanapudi

(w.e.f 30.11.2022)

In all Board meetings, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary were duly present.

LA: Leave of absence
NA: Not applicable
VC: Video Conferencing
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v. Number of Shares held by the Directors as on 31.03.2023

Name of Directors No. of shares
Shri Ramesh Babu V. 100
Smt. Renu Narang 100
Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi 100
Shri R K Jain Nil

3. Committees of the Board

The Board committees are considered as pillars of corporate governance. Our Board has constituted
Committees to focus on specific areas and make informed decisions within the authority delegated
to each of the Committees. Each Committee of the Board is guided by its Charter, which defines
the scope, powers and composition of the Committee. All decisions and recommendations of the
Committees are placed before the Board for information and approval respectively. Senior functional
executives are also invited, as and when required, to provide necessary information/clarification to
the Committees of the Board. We have following sub-committees of the Board as on 31.03.2023:

A. Audit Committee
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee

> 0 0 ®

Audit Committee

The term of reference of Audit Committee is in accordance with Section 177(4) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and DPE Guidelines on Corporate Governance for CPSEs, which includes the following:

(i) Discussions with the Auditors about the scope of audit including observations of auditors;

(ii) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial
information to ensure that financial statement are correct, sufficient and credible;

(iii) Noting appointment and removal of external auditors. Recommending audit fee of external
auditors and also approval for payment for any other service;

(iv) Recommending appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditors;

(v) Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of
audit process;

(vi) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related
parties;

(vii) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

(viii) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

(ix) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;

(x) Monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters;

(xi) Receiving the findings of any internal investigation by the internal auditors into matters
where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a
nature and reporting the matter to the Board;

_



(xii) Consider and review the following with the management, internal Auditor and the
independent Auditor:

1. Significant findings during the vyear, including the status of previous audit
recommendations;

2. Any difficulties encountered during audit work including any restrictions on the Scope
of the activities or access to required information.

(xiii)Review of all financial reports including Annexure to Cost Audit; Reports, Internal Audit
reports etc;

(xiv)Review of Management Discussion and Analysis report;

(xv) Review of half-yearly and annual financial statements before submission to the Board for
approval, with particular reference to:

1. Change, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;

2. Significant adjustments made in financial statements arising out of audit findings;
3. Disclosure of any related party transactions;

4. Qualifications in audit report.

(xvi)Review of observations of Statutory Auditors and Comptroller and Auditor General of India
and

(xvii)Such matters as may be referred to it by the Board of Directors, from time to time.

The constitution of the Audit Committee of the Company as on 31.03.2023 comprised 3
(three) Members as under:

(i) Smt.Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee

(ii) Shri R. K. Jain, Director

(iii) Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi, Director
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary to the Committee.

During the year, 3 Meetings of the Committee were held on 9.05.2022, 26.09.2022 and
6.03.2023. The attendance of Directors in these Meetings was as under:

Date of the Meeting/ Name of the 9.05.2022 26.09.2022 6.03.2023
Member (36%) (37t) (38t)
Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of Yes Yes Yes(Thru VC)
the Committee

Shri R. K. Jain, Director Yes Yes Yes (Thru VC)
Shri Sital Kumar Yes Yes NA
(Member upto 17.11.2022)

Shri Srinivasbabiji Sri Ganesh Satya NA NA Yes (Thru VC)
Dusanapudi

(Member w.e.f 30.11.2022)

During the vyear, there is no instance, where the Board had not accepted any
recommendation(s) of the Audit Committee.

Your Company has ensured to remain in the regime of unqualified statement.
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B. Nomination & Remuneration Committee

The term of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in accordance with Section
178 of the Companies Act, 2013, which is as under:

(i) Shall identify who may be appointed in senior management in accordance with the criteria
laid down, recommend to the board their appointment and removal;

(ii) Shall formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes & recommend
to the board a policy relating to the remuneration for, KMP & other employees;

(iii) Shall while formulating the policy, NRC ensure that:

1. Relationship of remuneration to performance is clear & meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

2. Remuneration to KMP and senior management involves a balance between fixed &
incentive pay reflecting short & long-term performance objectives appropriate to the
working of the company & its goals.

The constitution of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company as on
31.03.2023 was as under:

i. Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee
ii.  Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi, Director
iii. Shri R. K. Jain, Director

During the year, one Meeting of the Committee was held on 9.05.2022. The attendance of
Directors in these Meetings was as under:

Date of the Meeting/ Name of the Member 9.05.2022
(9*)
Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee Yes
Shri R. K. Jain, Director Yes
Shri Sital Kumar Director Yes
(Member upto 17.11.2022)
Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi, Director NA
(Member w.e.f 30.11.2022) o

C. Corporate Social Responsibility Committee

The term of reference of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is in accordance with
Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 which is as under:

(i) To formulate & recommend to the Board, a CSR Policy which shall indicate the activities to
be undertaken by the company as specified in Schedule VIl to the Companies Act, 2013 as
amended from time to time by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, GOI,;

(ii) To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the activities referred to in
clause (a) and approve the budget for CSR;

(iii) To monitor the CSR Policy of the company from time to time;

(iv) Shall institute a transparent monitoring mechanism for implementation of the CSR projects
or programs or activities undertaken by the company;

_



(v) Any other matter as may be delegated by the Board from time to time.

The constitution of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of the Company as on

31.03.2023 comprised 3 (three) Directors as under:

i. Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee

ii.  Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi, Director

iii. ShriR. K. Jain, Director

During the year 2022-23, 1 meeting of the CSR Committee dated 9.05.2022 was held.The

attendance of Directors was as under:

Date of the meeting/ Name of the member 9.05.2022
(6")
Smt Renu Narang, Chairman of the Committee Yes
Shri R. K. Jain Yes
Shri Parveen Saxena, Director (Member upto 22.11.21) Yes
Shri Sudharshan Babu V.,Director (Member upto 22.11.21) NA

D. Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee

The term of reference of Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee is for

allotment of Equity Shares from time to time.

The constitution of the Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares Committee of the
Company as on 31.03.2023 comprised 2 (two) Directors as under:

i. Smt Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee (w.e.f. 19.11.2019)

ii. ShriR. K. Jain, Director

During the year 2022-23, no meeting of the Allotment & Post-Allotment Activities of Shares

Committee was held.

4. Remuneration Policy/ Detail of Remuneration to Directors

Since, all the Directors are nominated by NTPC and Ministry of Railways, they are governed by the

remuneration policy as applicable to their parent organisations.

5. Performance Related Payment to Employees

As majority of the employees are on secondment basis from NTPC Limited, their remuneration is as

per the rules of NTPC.

BRBCL has also recruited 30 Diploma Trainees in the Company. They are being regularised as per

their recruitment rules.

Annual Performance Related Payment is decided by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee
based on the PRP decided by NTPC for employees on secondment basis to its subsidiaries and joint

venture companies.

_
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6. General Body Meetings

The attendance of Directors in Annual General Meeting held during the FY 2022-23 are as under:

Date of the Meeting/ Name of the Director AGM
26.9.2022
Shri Ramesh Babu V, Chairman and Member Yes
Shri R. K. Jain, Director Yes
Smt. Renu Narang, Member and Director Yes
Shri Sital Kumar Nischal, Member and Director Yes

The Chairperson of the Audit Committee and Nomination and Remuneration Committee was
present in the Annual General Meeting. Other Members of the Committees were present to answer
the queries of the shareholders.

Forthcoming AGM: Date, Time and Venue

The 16th Annual General Meeting of the Company (AGM) is scheduled on 19th September 2023
at 3.00 P.M, at the registered office of the Company situated at NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7,
Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi-110003.

Location and Time of the last three AGMs

The location, time and details of the special resolutions passed during last three AGMs are as

follows:

For the FY 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

AGM 13t 14t 15t

Date and Time 22.09.2020 23.09.2021 26.09.2022
1:00 p.m. 3:00 p.m. 3:00 p.m.

Venue

NTPC Bhawan,
SCOPE Complex, 7,
Institutional Area,
Lodi Road, New
Delhi-110003

NTPC Bhawan,
SCOPE Complex, 7,
Institutional Area,
Lodi Road, New
Delhi-110003

NTPC Bhawan,
SCOPE Complex, 7,
Institutional Area,
Lodi Road, New
Delhi-110003

Special Resolution
Passed

7. Means of Communication

The Company communicates with its shareholders through its Annual Report and General Meetings.

8. Disclosures

a. Every Director of the Company had disclosed his nature of interest/ concern in the company or
companies or bodies corporate, firms, or other association of individuals as required under the

Companies Act, 2013 from time to time.

b. The Annual Financial Statements FY 2022-23 are in conformity with applicable Accounting
Standards. During the year, there have been no materially significant Related Party Transactions
that may have potential conflict with the interest of the Company at large. The details of
“Related Party Disclosures” are being disclosed in Notes to the accounts in the Annual Report.

—



The Company has a system in place for monitoring of various statutory and procedural
compliances. Further, a compliance certificate on applicable laws is in place on yearly basis.

CEO and CFO of the Company, inter-alia, confirmed the correctness of the financial statements,
adequacy of the internal control and certified other matters to the Board and Audit Committee,
as per the requirements of Department of Public Enterprises Guidelines.

All the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel are governed by the Code of
Conduct of NTPC Limited as they are nominated/ deputed by NTPC. The affirmation to the Code
of Conduct is given by Board Members and Senior Management Personnel at NTPC.

The Company promotes ethical behaviour in all its business activities and has put in place a
mechanism for reporting illegal or unethical behaviour. The Company has implemented Whistle
Blower Policy (Vigil Mechanism) under which the employees are free to report violations of
applicable laws and regulations. No personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, no Presidential Directive was received by your Company. However,
the Parent Company, i.e. NTPC received a Presidential Directive for revision of pay of executives
of the Company. The same was complied for the executives of the Company who were on
secondment basis from NTPC.

9. The information regarding shareholding pattern of Promoters and Directors is given under Extract
of Annual Return which is at Annex to the Directors’ Report.
10. Training of Board Members
As the Board Members are the Nominees of NTPC and Ministry of Railways, they are being imparted
training by their parent organisations. Detailed presentations were made by senior executives/
professionals/ consultants on business-related issues at the Board/Committee meetings as and
when required.
11. Location of Plant
Nabinagar Thermal Power Project (4x250 MW), Distt. Aurangabad, Nabinagar, Bihar.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
(Ramesh Babu V)
Place: New Delhi Chairman

Dated: 28.09.2023 DIN: 08736805
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BRBCL (AR s wa Ya W @ ga 9um)

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Ltd.
(A JV of NTPC Limited & Ministry of Railways)

T4 /Head Quarter

Chief Executive Officer (CEO) & Chief Financial Officer (CFO) Certification

We, Ravi Prakash, Head of Project and N Venkataramana, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of BHARTIYA RAIL
BIJLEE COMPANY LIMIED to the best of our knowledge and belief , certify that:

(a) We have received the balance sheet and Statement of Profit and Loss and all its notes on
accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief:

(i) These statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material
fact or contain statements that might be misleading:

(ii) These statements together present a true and fair view of the above project’s affairs
and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and
regulations.

(b) To the best of our knowledge and belief, there are no transactions are entered into by the
company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the company’s various
code(s) of conduct.

(c) We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and
we have evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control system of the unit pertaining to
financial reporting and have disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee, the deficiencies
in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps
we have taken or purpose to take to rectify these deficiencies.

(d) We have indicated to the company’s Auditors and the Audit Committee of BRBCL's Board of

Directors:

(i) Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year:

(i) Significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and the same have
been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements: and

(iii) Instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement

therein, if any, of the management or an employee having a significant role in the
company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

— ' /ﬁ) ‘”
W o '
\ ~<ﬁ(w\'
(% (,"*/('4_\‘//
N Venkataramana Ravi Prakash
ChigEFineRAbPTic6E katzramana 7’??;;{;”:&&
i afroril/ Chief Financial Officer \ /RAVI P
Place: wr Srvlrediva | BRBCL T St o RAKAs°|;
(o AAs A were wd) Ronrront °‘T°w‘ QO“MEMR icer
Date: (ASsbaidiery oF NTPC L) m,(!w.&.w.a. o -.&.,
bl e (bt a2¢30;

Morae : F8ATR, AifFe-ta. ey, §. sl - e, 9. 9. - @, Ren - sl ([RER) - 824303
Project : Nabinagar, Office - H - Type, PO - Pirouta, PS - Khaira, Dist. - Aurangabad (Bihar) - 824303
BT : 06332-233001,233003, ¥ : 06332-233002, Phone. : 06332-233001,233003, Fax : 06332-233002
wnerd : fga W || 99 e, 3t s, TET-800001 B : 0612-2504005, BRI : 0612-2504007
Head Quarter : First Floor, Vidyut Bhawan Il, Bailey Road, Patna-800001 Ph. : 0612-2504005, Fax : 0612-2504007

B FrEfen T A @ W wE, W0 ohvden, 7 FEAegEE R, @il A8, ¢ Rl ~ 110003 § ~ A9 @ vedci@redifimail com
Corporate Centre : NTPC Bhawan, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi - 110 003, E-mail : brbci@yahoo.co.in
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A K. Rastogi & Associates

Company Secretaries

R-13/69, Ras Magar, Ghaziabed-201002

Maob ' B85 14 ) | 0614

Email - anilragiog: 260 ieom
anil_rastog| 25 reditmal com

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE OF DPE GUIDELINES ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 2022-23

The Members,

Rhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited,
NTRC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex,
Institutional Area, Lodhi Road

Mew Dethi -1 10003

We have examined the complisnce of Conditions of Guidelines on « orporate Lovemanse of Dhartiva Hail Bijlee
Company Limited (€ EN:U40 12 DL2M TGO 70661 ) here after called as ( ‘ampany #s required o be done under
Cinidelines on Corporate Governance for Central Public Sector Enterprises, 2010 issued by DPE with respeet 1o your
Company for the Financial Year 2022-23

We have examined the compliance of Guldelines on Corporate Governanee for Central Public Sector Enterprises,
2010 ns amended from time to time and issved by DPE with respect o your company for the Financial Year 2022
b |

The compliance of Guidelines on Corporte Governance is the responsibility of management. Our examinalion was
limited fo the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the company for ensuring the complisnce of
Lnidelings on Corpornte Governance. It 5 nerther an audit nor an cxpression af apinion on linancial statements of
the campany

In cur opinion and 1o the best of our information and sccording to the wxplanation given to us by the management.
we certify that the company has complied DPE Guidelines on € orporile Governance as referted above during the

Firancial Year 202223

We furthér cenify that such compliance is neither an’ assurance as 1o the Riure vishility of the company nor the
] P )

elMiciency or effectivenass with which the management hias conducted the affairs of the e T ATy

For A. K. Rastogi & Associaies
Comparm Secrenarios
ICS1 Unigque code Mo S20N0PT 244000

{ A LK. RASTOM:T)
PROPRIETOR

FOS Mo 1748

P No 22973

LIDA: P TS EMTRAI9SE

Date: 11/08,/2033

Place: New Delhi
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Annex-lll to Directors’ Report of BRBCL

Annual Report on Corporate Social Responsibility Activities

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed

to be undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.

Keeping in view the size of the Company and manpower required for executing the CSR activities,
your Company has adopted the CSR policy of its holding company viz. NTPC Limited.

The CSR Policy is formulated keeping in view the requirements of the Department of Public
Enterprises and the Companies Act, 2013. The CSR policy focused on Health, Sanitation, Drinking
Water, Education, Capacity Building, Women Empowerment, Social Infrastructure Development,
support to Physically Challenged Person (PCPs), and activities contributing towards Environment
Sustainability and other subject matter described under Schedule VII of the Companies Act, 2013.

The composition of the CSR Committee. The Composition of the CSR Committee

The CSR Committee as on 31.03.2023 comprised Smt. Renu Narang, Chairperson of the Committee,
Shri DSGSS Babiji, and Shri R.K. Jain, Directors.

During the year 2022-23, 1 meeting of the CSR Committee dated 9.05.2022 was held. The attendance
of Directors was as under:

Date of the meeting/ Name of the member 9.05.2022 (6*)
Smt Renu Narang, Chairman of the Committee Yes

Shri R. K. Jain Yes

Shri Sital Kumar Director (Member upto 17.11.2022) Yes

Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi, Director NA
(Member w.e.f 30.11.2022)

The committee recommends to the Board for approval, the amount of expenditure anticipated on
the CSR activities and monitors from time to time the Policy for CSR and the proposals approved by
the Board.

Average net profit of the company for last three financial years.

The average net profit of the Company for three immediately preceding financial yearsi.e. 2019-20,
2020-21 & 2021-22 is X 34,356.79 Lakhs.

Prescribed CSR Expenditure.

As per requirement of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company is required to spend 2% of the
average net profits of the company made during three immediately preceding financial years in
CSR activities. As the average net profit of the Company for three immediately preceding financial
years was X 34,356.79 Lakhs. Therefore, Company was required to spend Rs.687.14 lakhs for FY
2022-2023, however, there was an unspent CSR amount of Rs.415.44 lakhs of Previous Financial
year 2021-22 on CSR activities which was also to be utilized during the FY 2022-23. Total available
CSR fund upto 31.03.2023 was Rs.1102.58 lacs. However, Company has spent Rs.391.92 lakhs under
the head ofCSR on various activities. Further, Unspent CSR amount of Rs.710.66 lakhs has been
transferred to Unspent CSR Account. It is pertinent to mention here that the activities for unspent
CSR amount has already been identified.

_
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5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year 2022-23:

(@) |2% requirement-provision for X 687.14 Lakhs
2022-23
(b) |Unspent Amount upto 31.03.2022 X 415.44 Lakhs
(c) |Amount already spent, if any % 391.92 Lakhs
(d) |Amount unspent, if any X 710.66 Lakhs
(e) [Manner in which the amount spent Rs.391.92 lakh had been spent for the planned activities
during the financial year during the Financial Year. Unspent CSR amount of Rs 710.66
lakhs has been transferred to Unspent CSR Account opened
in compliance with CSR provision of Companies Act 2013.
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Sl. CSR project Sector in Projects or Amount Amount spent | Cumulative Amount
No. or activity Which the Programs outlay on the expenditure spent:
identified Projectis | (1) Local area (budget) Projects or upto to the Direct or
covered or other Project or programs reporting through
(2)Specify Programs Sub-heads: period. implementing
the State and wise (1) Direct (Amount in agency
the district (Amount in expenditure Lakh
where Lakh) on projects
projects or or programs-
programs was (2) Overheads:
undertaken (Amount in
Lakh)
1 |Eradication BIHAR 391.87 Direct
hunger and
poverty,
health care &
Sanitation
2 | Education BRBCL 21.37 Direct
and skill
development
3 |Artand Culture BRBCL 16.36 Direct
4 | Others BRBCL 77.56 Direct

Head- wise details of CSR activities during the Financial Year are as under:-

Particulars Amount( Rs)
Eradication hunger and poverty, health care & Sanitation 3,64,53,000.00
Education and skill development 10,48,000.00
Art and Culture 16,36,000.00
Others 55,000.00
Total 3,91,92,000.00

6. Reasons for not spending two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years
or any part thereof.

The company has undertaken Construction of new conventional toilets / renovation and maintenance
of existing toilets with provision of water facility in the four districts ( viz Aurangabad, Jehanabad,
Rohtas and Arwal) under SVA and the completion period as per award letter / Work Order is falling
in more than one financial year.

_



7. Aresponsibility statement of the CSR Committee

The Responsibility Statement of the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee is reproduced
below:

The implementation and monitoring of Corporate Social Responsibility Policy, is in compliance with
CSR objectives and policy of the Company

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

(Ramesh Babu V)
(Ravi Prakash) CHAIRMAN
Chief Executive Officer BRBCL, Nabinagar

Place: New Delhi
Date: 28.09.2023
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FORM NO. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 315" MARCH 2023
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 ofthe Companies
{Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To,

The Members,

BHARTIYA RAIL BLILEE COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Address: NTPC Bhawan Core-7,

Scope Complex 7, Institutional Area

Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions
and the adherence to good corporate practices by Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
(hereinafer called “the Company™) having its Registered Office at NTPC Bhawan Core-7,
Scope Complex 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003. Secretarial Audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate
conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns
filed and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the
Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial
audit, the explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made by the
Management, we hereby report that in our opinion. the Company has, during the audit covering
the financial year ended 31% March 2023, generally complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and compliance
mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
made available to us and maintained by the Company for the financial year ended 31* March

2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) The other specific laws applicable to the company: J. K -.:;S?Gia-‘.:.
W~
21 A ’\f‘ﬁ
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The Factories Act, 1948 & The Bihar Factories Rules, 1950

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 and The Bihar Contract
Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1972

The Child Labour and Adolescent Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986 &
The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Amendment Rules, 2017 and Bihar
Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Rules, 1995

The Employees' Compensation Act 1923 & The Workmen's Compensation Rules, 1924
The Equal Remuneration Act, 1976 and The Equal Remuneration Rules, 1976

The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 and Bihar Maternity Benefit Rules 1964

The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act 2013

The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 and The Industrial
Employment (Standing Orders)Central Rules, 1946

The Bihar Industrial Establishments (National and Festival Holidays And Casual
Leave) Act, 1976 & The Bihar Industrial Establishments (National and Festival
Holidays and casual leave) Rules, 1979

The Environment (Protection) Act 1986 and The Manufacture, Storage and Import of
Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 and The Environment (Protection) Rules,
1986

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 & Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling
and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2008

The Indian Standard Code of Practice for Selection, Installation and Maintenance of
Portable First Aid Fire Extinguishers

The Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006 and The Food Safety and Standards
(Licensing and Registration of Food Businesses) Regulations, 2011

The Electricity Act, 2003 & The Indian Electricity Rules, 1956

" The Indian Boilers Act,1923

The Explosives Act, 1884 & The Static and Mobile Pressure Vessels (Unfired) Rules,
1981 18. The Explosives Act, 1884 & Gas Cylinder Rules, 2004

System and Procedure for compliance with noise limits for diesel generator sets (upto
1000KVA)

The Cigarette and Other Tobacco Products (Prohibition of Advertisement and the
Regulation of Trade and Commerce, Production, Supply and Distribution) Act, 2003 &
The Prohibition of Smoking in Public Places Rules, 2008

The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 and The Air (Prevention and

Control of Pollution) Rules, 1932 5 K.Gupta & Associates

%,

/- u"“ﬁ'

¢ A Partner
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
ii. Department of Public Enterprises (DPE) guidelines for Central Public Sector
Enterprises (CPSEs)

During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act,
Rules, Guidelines, Standards, etc. mentioned above subject to an observation that, BRBCL
being a governmen!t company, the statutory auditor shall be appointed by Compiroller and
Auditor-General of India (C&AG) pursuant to Section 139(3) of the Companies Act, 2013,
within a period of one hundred and eighty days from the commencement of the financial year.
However, during the period under review the Statutory Auditor was appointed by C&AG on
October 20, 2022, which is beyond the prescribed time frame.

We further report that:

The Audit related to Labour laws, Environment laws and other specific laws applicable to the
company was done on Sample Basis and we relied on the Internal Audit Report shared by the
Company.

We further report that:

The Board of the Company is duly constituted and the changes in the composition of the Board
of Directors, during the period under review, were carried out in compliance with the
provisions of the Act.

Board Meetings were duly called by providing adequate Notices, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda to the participants of the meeting, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful
participation at the meeting.

All the decisions made in the Board/Committee meeting (s) were carried out with unanimous
consent of all the Directors/Members present during the meeting and dissent, if any. have been
duly incorporated in the Meetings.

J. K. Gupta & ﬂ?aquiat&s

C ¢ LY

Partner
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We further report that:

There are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules,
regulations and guidelines.

For J. K. Gupta & Associates
J. K. L

oy Jomialc
o VI

Partner
JITESH GUPTA
FCS No. 3978
Place: Noida C P No. 2448
Date: 05.07.2023 UDIN: FO03978E000544023

This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure-A” and
forms an integral part of this report.

Page 4 of 5
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Annexure-A
To.

The Members,

BHARTIYA RAIL BLILEE COMPANY LIMITED
Registered Address: NTPC Bhawan Core-7,

Scope Complex 7, Institutional Area

Lodhi Road, New Delhi -110003

QOur report of even date is to be read along with this letter.

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the
Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records
based on our inspection of records produced before us for audit.

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain
reasonable assurance about the correciness of the contents of the Secretarial records.
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices. we followed provide
a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. We have relied on the Statutory Auditor’s Report for the period under review: hence
we have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and
Books of Accounts of the company.

4, Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the
compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc.

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules.
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was
limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has
conducted the affairs of the company.

For J. K. Gupta & Associates
J. K. Gupla & A}i{&i&(&:

< EA AS

JITESH GUPTAR S

FCS No. 3978
Place: Noida C P No.: 2448
Date: 05.07.2023 UDIN: F003978E000544023

Page 5 of 5
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Arvea, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2023

¥ Lakhs

Particulars

Mote Mao. Asal

ASSETS

Mon-current AgLetd

Property, plant and cquipment
Capital work-in-progress
Intangille assels

Uher nonR-CAUITent ARSES
Delerred tax agscl

Total non-current asscls

Current assets
Inventorics
Financial assels
Trade recervables
Cash and cash equivalems
Bank balanses other than cash and cash equivalents
Oiher finaneial nssels
Other currend assels
Total current ussels

Regulatory defereal mecount debit halances
TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIARILITIEX
Equity

Equily share capilal

Oither cquity

Total equily

Linbilitics
Mon-current liabilitics
Financial linhalities
Borrowings
Other finencial habilities
Provisions
Total non-current linbilitics

Current liabilities
Financial linbilities
Bomowings
Trate payablos
{A) Tolal culstanding ducs of micro and small enlerprises
(B} Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small emerprises
Other financial lishilities
Uther cwrrend liatilnies
Provisions
Total current labilitics

Regulatory deferral aceount eredil balances
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIARILITIES
Significant accounting policies

The sceompanying notes | o 52 foom an integral pant of these foancinl sinfements

For Mfs Chamaria & Co.

Chmriered Accouglants

—— |

— Kamal Nath Thakur
CA Sunil Kumar Chamari Coanpany Secretary
Pariner Place: Mew Delhi
Membership Mo, : 0943 16
Firm Reg, Mo, 514619C J/
Place : Mew Delhi
Dated : [ MMay 2021 RK. Jain

Darecior
Mace: Mew Delhi

T

14
15

16
17
18

19
0

21

s
3

M

As al

I March 2023 0 3 March 2033

7,23,624,37 . 762,140 48
5403622 33, 580,65
2499 1247
BAIR 11 506577
o 10,715.24 14,431 30
7.97.838.93 B15.242.67
19,656 84 1038217
45, 703.75 68, T66. TR
1,782,735 2,M170
1. 776,85 42233
333479 2411
25,068 .85 22 66705
9732384 L0430 14
3,212.52 1,991,776
§,08,375.29 9,21.540.57
2,39 746,15 239 M6.15
48 052 44 5245201
2,87,799.13 2,92,198.16
446034 59 4,75,987.33
W45 AT5.El
15.08 15.63
446413.12 4. 76.482.77
49,825 13 G174
1LATT 60 QiR 64
2205758 983346
6227324 46,744.30
51231 184.47
17,398.72 16,533.03
1,53,447.78 1,38,436.34
10,715.26 14,423.30

5,98.375.20 9,20,540.57

For ind on behalf of the Roard of Direciors

C el
N Venkntarmmana
Chief Financial Officer
Place: New Delhi

D‘l@-’ﬂ__ Al

Ravi Prakash
CEOQ
Plzce: Mew Delhi

N

Ramesh Babu ¥
Chaimmmsan
Place: Mew Delha
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Instituiional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE VEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

£ Lakhs
Particulars Mote No. For the vear ended For the year ended
31 darch 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue
Revenue from operlives 25 34247408 2,57.694.07
Oriher income 26 00055 2,874.61
Total revenue 3.43.381.63 2,00,768.68
Expenses
Fuel expense 27 1,94,791.89 1,23,568.16
Employes henefits cxpene % 11,098 08 8.308.11
Finance costs 29 40,495.02 I8, 180,99
[Depreciation, amortisation and impainment expense 30 43,442.55 IS ART A4
Other expenses 31 25,589.56 15,824,223
Total expenses 3.15417.10 2.21,368.92
Profit before tax 27.966.53 39,5399.76
Tax expense )
Current lax
Current year 4,938 63 6,955.01
Ewlier years (1,008.38) (27.84)
Delerred lax cxpense 3.705.21 4,037.00
Tatal tax expense 763546 10,964,256
Prafit Tor the period hefore repulatory deferval aceount balances 20,331.07 28,435.50
Mel movements in regulatory deferral account balances- IncometExpense) 45 4,928 80 517302
Less: Tax expenzefsuving) perlaining Lo regulatory deferral account balances 86116 G187
Profit for the ycar 14, 3598.71 3286995

Diher comprehensive incomefexpense)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (net of ax)

- Met astuarial gains/{losses) on defincd benefit plans 15 217 (0.08)
= Income tax relating o above ilem (2.85) =
Other comprehiensive incame 532 (008}
Total comprehensive income for the year 24,404.03 3286967
Earnings per equity share (Par value ® L0~ each) 47

Basic & Diluted (2) (including net movement in regulatorydeferral account halances) 1.02 1.37
Basic & Diluted () {excluding net movement in regulatorydefenal account balances) 0.35

The accompanying notes | to 52 form an integral part of these Ninancial statements.

For and on belall of the Board of Dircctors

> et (X

a"\lﬁuhET_—’

Kamal Math Thakur ™ Venkataramana Ravi Prakash R.K. Jain Ramesh
C.5. CFO CEQ Director Chairman
Place:Mew Delhi Place: New Delhi Place:Mew Delhi Place:Mew Delhi Place:Mew Delhi

FFor Mfs Chamaria & Co,
{maﬂwf}mﬂﬂm
A Suni s

Membership Mo, @ 0943
Firm Reg. Mo.: 514619C
Place : Mew [elhi

Dated : {f May 2023




Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Repd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delli-11000F

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

Particulars

A Cash Mow Mraom operating actlivilies
Foofil bafore lax
Add: Net movements in regulatory defenal account balances

Adjustment for

Depreciation und amoriisalin expense:

Finance costs

Unwinding of dizcount on vendor linbilitics

Pravisions created during the year

Flly ash utilisation reserve fund

Met movements in reguletory delemmal weovunt buluwes
LIEC Charpes

Net boss! (pain) in forgign currency transactions and translations
Intercit income

(perating profit hefore working capilal changes

Adjustment for -
Inventany

Tr'.u‘ir, ||,-11-.i.-.=||,|lc

Other linancial asseis
Other current asscls
Other mon cumment assets
Trmde paynbles

Other lnancial liabilities
Other current liabilities
Fiovisions

Cash generated Mrom operations

Less: locome taxes paid
Met cagh inflow from aperating activities [A]

B. Cash (ow from investment activilics

Purchaze of property plant and equipment and capiial work-im-progress

Late payment surcharge received

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Interest recerved frem bank

Met cash outfllow from investing activities |1

. Cash flow from financing activitics
Proceeds from non-current barmowings
Eepayment ol non-currenl barmwings

Met proceeds from current barmowings

Dividend paid

Interest paid

Mel ensh oulMow Toom NToesocing acliviles [C]

Met incressedecrease) in cagh and cash equivalents [A+ B+

Cach and Cath equivalents al the beginning of the year
Cnsh mad Uiash equivabents ol the end of (he year

G-

7 Lakhs
For the year coded For the yenr ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
27.966,33 30399 76
4,928 80 5,373.02
32,595.33 44,7778
43442 55 3548744
A0.A43837 38107 82
S s 1317
235025 1202
119694 (684 68)
{4,972 80) (5.371.02)
{BUE. 20} (2,552.69)
192.99 (46.83)
(50 63) {131 86)
1,14,594.76 108,004, 10
(9,274.67) (1,243.00)
23 063.03 (16,610.86)
(3,310.68) {4.05)
16.09 96.09
1264308 (5,583 00)
13,135.30 (742.22)
32284 (973.83)
{1479 24) {91459
1,50,010.51 3, 688,64
£,601,27 016,37
1,41,409.24 ~ 7E6TLIT
{26,585.22) {45,527.50)
658.89 2.552.69
(1,354.52) 725.06
94.13 131.56
(27,146.72) (42,117.89)
(1,18,073.73) {1,27,300.00)
879579 {40,118 55)
. 34.976.00 1,75,441.06
{1 F30,000.00) {17.000.00)
bl 20 62 {40,651 47)
; I:,H,ﬁa.ﬂl (49,625,919
Ol il |
Ef i (260.95) {16,074.61)
2,043.50 18,118.31
1,782.75 2,043.70
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Bhartiya Hail Bijlee Company Limited
MNotes to the Statement of Cash Flow for the year ended 31 March 2023

) Cash and cosh cguivalents consist of balences with banks, deposits with eriginal maturity of upte three months, chegues and stamps.

by Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cazh equivalent as per nole 9 1, T82.75 2,043.70

¢} Refer note no 34 For details of undravwn bomowing facilities that may be availabls for futune operating activities and to settls capital commitments,

d) Reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for lizbilities arising from financing activities:

T Lakhs

Particulars Man-current Current borrowings
hnrr\nlwing

For the year caded 31 Mareh 20023
Dalance ag ar 1 Apeil 2022 5,014,723.71 25 441,06
Loan drawls 1039997 953503
Loan repayments (38,795.79) _(25.441.06)
Balance as at 31 March 2023 4,56, 32759 9,535.03
For the year ended 31 March 2022
Nalance as at | April 2021 382014229 1,50,000,00
Lomn drawls 1,72,700,00 25.441.06
Loan repayments {40, 118.58) {1,50,000.00)
Balance as at 31 March 2022 5,14,723.71 1544106

) There are no non-cash changes on aceount of ellect of changes in foreien exchange rates and Fir values.

i Comparative figures have been reclassificd o enhance comparability wath the currenl yvesr's Gnancial statements, refer note 52

.1

Por and on behal[ of the Board of Dercetors \I

! F -.571‘{5’{;

Fommal Mol Thakus N Wenkalarimiia vi Prakash F_K. Jain W

CS. CFO CED rector Chrirman
Place: Mew Delhi Place: New Delhi PFlsee; Mow Delhi Place: Mew Delbhi Place: Mew Delli
re
For Mis Clumarm & U
Chartere 5

-

Partner
Membership No. | (FM
Fum Reg. Mo, 5146
Fluce - Meyy Dalhi

Dated - 1 May 2023




Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Campany Limited
Hegd, Oifice: NTPC Bhawan, Scope Complex, 7, Instilulional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-1 10405

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2023

(A) Equity share capital

For the vear emded 31 March 2023

¥ Lakhs

Hulance o al | ﬂu]‘n’” 2002

Changes i equily share capial during e year

2,39, 748,15

Balance ns ol 31 Marvel 2023

Far the year ended 31 March 20212

Balance as al 1 April 2021

Changes in equity share capilal during ihe yeas

239,746,135

2,39, 746,15
T Lakhs

Balanee asat 31 Mareh 2022

2,39,746.15

() Crher equily

For the vear ended 31 March 2023 2 Lakhs
Particulars Heserves & Surplus
Share application | Carporate social | Fly ash ufilisation | Retained earnings Total
maney pending responsibility reserve fund
allnimeni [PSEIVE.
Balanee as at 1 April 2022 - 415.44 147.85 51,888.72 5245101
Prafity Loas) for the year - - 43981 14,398.71
Uiher comprebensive imoome for the year - 5512 532
Transfer from retaingd caming = =
Transfier Lo retained eaming - (415.44)) - A15.44 -
‘Transfemved to fly ash rescrve - 1, 19694 - 1,196.94
Dhividand paid - = (M0, 000.00) (30,000.00)
Balance as al 31 March 2023 - 1,344.79 46,708, 19 48,052.98
Faor the year cmied A1 March 2022 T Lakhs
Particulars Hescrves & Surplus
Share application | Corporale social | Fly ash ulilisation | Retnined carnings Tatal
money pending responsibility reserve Tund
allotment FEAETVE
Balance as at 1 April 2021 §32.53 36, 434,50 37,267.03
Profiey Loas) for the year 3286975 I2 86575
Other comprehensive income For the year - {0.08) (0.08)
Transfer from relzined caming 47250 (42.50) =
‘Transfer 1o retained caming, (7.0 - 7.06 -
Transfenred 1o My ash reserve - (684.68) - (654.68)
Dividend paid s 2 {17,000,00) {17,000,00)
Roumnding off Adjusment - - oo} {0.01)
Balance as ai 31 March 2022 - 41544 147.85 S1,888.71 5145201
Analysis of accumulated other comprehensive income included in refained earnings ¥ Lakhs
Farticulars For the year ended lor the year ended
P 31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2023|

Balance af the beginning of the year [T -
(hher comprehensive i expense) for the 517 {0.08})
Balance as at the end of the year B.AW (0L08)

Faor and on behall of the Bosrd of Dereclors

Kamal Muth Thakur M Venkataramana Ravi m-—' R.K. Jain Ramwesh Balu ¥V
C5 CFO CEQ Director Chairman

Place: Mew Dielin

For M Chamaria & Co,

Chartered ﬁccuﬁ“jﬁ/
MMar Chamarin
Fariner

Fimm Reg. Mo 514619¢C
Place = New Delhi
Dated * |/ May 2023

Place: New Delin

Place: New Delhi

Place:New Delln

Place: New Delln
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Motes to financial statements

Note 1. Company Information and Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting entity
Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited (the “Company™) is a Company domiciled in India and limiled by
shares (CIN: U40102DL2007G01170661). The address of the Company’s registered office is NTPC Bhawan,
SCOPE Complex, 7 Institutional Area, Lodi Road, New Delhi - 110003, The Company is involved in the
generation and sale of bulk power to Indian Railways and State Power Utilities,

B. Basis of preparation
1. Statement of Compliance

These financial statements are prepared on going concern basis following accrual system of accounting and
comply with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Aect,
2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended, and other provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (to the extent notified and applicable) and the provisions of the Electricity Act,

2003 to the extent applicable,
Thesze financial statemenis were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on j_[_ﬁﬂay 2{]23.

2. Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis.

* Certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) that are measured at fair value
(refer serial no. 28 of accounting policy regarding financial instruments); and

Plan assets in the case of employees defined benefit plans that are measured at fair value

Historical cost is the amount of cash or cash equivalents paid or the fair value of the consideration given to
acquire assets at the time of their acquisition or the amount of proceeds received in exchange for the
obligation, or at the amounts of cash or cash equivalents expected to be paid to satisfy the liahility in the
normal course of business. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date,

3. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees ( ¥) which is the Company's functional currency

All financial information presented in ( € ) has been rounded to the nearest lakh (up to two decimals), except
when indicated otherwise,

4. Current and non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/non-current classification,

An assel is classilied as current when it is:

* [Expectled to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle;

= Held primarily for the purpose of trading;

»  Expected to be realized within twelve manths after the reporting period; or

= Cash or cash equivalent unless restricled from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. All other assets are classificd as nen-current,




Famard
BRBCL

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
MNotes to financial statements (continued)

A liability is classified as current when:

* Itis expected to be setiled in normal operating cyele;

= Itis held primarily for the purpose of trading;

= ltis due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

+ ‘T'here is no unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the
reporting period.

All other liabilities are classified as non-current.
Deferred tax assets/liabilities are classified as non-current.

Assets and liabilities are classified between current and non-current considering 12 months period as normal
operating cycle.
C. Significant accounting policies

A summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the financial statements are as
given below. These accounting policies have been applied consistently to all periods presented in the financial
stalements.

The Company has elected to utilize the option under Ind AS 101-First time adoption of Indian Accounting
Standards’ by not applying the provisions of Ind AS 16-‘Property, plant and equipment’& Ind AS 38-
‘Intangible assets’ retrospectively and continue to use the previous GAAP carrying amount as a deemed cost
under Ind AS at the date of transition to Ind AS i.e. 1 April 2015. Therefore, the carrying amount of property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets as per the previous GAAP as at | April 2015, i.e. the Company’s
date of transition to Ind AS, were maintained on transition to Ind AS,

1. Property, plant and equipment

1.1. Initial recognition and measurement

An item of property, plant and equipment is recognized as an asset if and only if it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Items of property, plant and equipment are initially recognized at cost. Cost comprises purchase price
including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes after deducting trade discounts and rebales, any
cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of
operating in the manner intended by management and the present value of initial estimate of cost of
dismantling, removal and restoration,

Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated depreciation/amortization and accumulated
impairment losses.

When parts of an item of property, plant and equipment that are significant in value and have different useful
lives as compared to the main asset, they are recognized separately.

Deposits, payments/liabilities made provisionally towards compensation, rehabilitalion and other expenses
relatable to land in possession are treated as cost of land.

In the case of assets pul to use, where linal settlement of bills with contractors is yet 1o be effected,
capitalization is done on provisional basis subject to necessary adjustment in the year of final settlement.
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlec Company Limited
Naotes to financial statemenis {continued)

Assets and systems commeon to more than one generating unit are capitalized on the basis of engineering
estimates/assessments,

Items of spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of property, plant
and equipment are capitalized. Other spare parts are carried as inventory and recognized in the statement of
profit and loss on consumption.

The acquisilion or construclion of some items of property, plant and equipment although not directly
increasing the future economic benefits of any parlicular existing item of property, plant and equipment, may
be necessary for the company to obtain future economic benefits from its other assets. Such items are
recognized as property, plant and equipment.

1.2. Subsequent cosis

Subsequent expenditure is recognized in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable that future
economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably.

Expenditure on major inspection and overhauls of generating unit is capitalized, when it meeis the asset
recognition criteria. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of the previous inspection and overhaul is
derccognized,

The cost of replacing major part of an item of properly, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying
amount of the item il it is probable that the future cconomic benelits embodicd within the part will Now to the
Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The canying amount of the replaced part is derecognized
regardless of whether the replaced part has been depreciated separately. [T it is not practicable to determine
the carrying amount of the replaced part, the Company uses the cost of the replacement as an indication of
what the cost of replaced part was at the time it was acquired or constructed. The costs of the day-to-day
servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss as and when
incurred.

1.3. Decommissioning cosis

The present value of the expected cost for the decommissioning of the asset after its use is included in the cost
of the respeclive assel il the recognition criteria for a provision are met.

1.4. De-recognition

Property, plant and equipment is derecognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use
or upon their disposal. Gains and losses on de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment are
determined as the difference between sale proceeds from disposal, if any, and the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

In circumstance, where an item of property, plant and equipment is abandoned, the net carrying cost relating
to the property, plant and equipment iz writtan off in the same period,

L5, Depreciation/amortization

Depreciation is recognized in statement of profit and loss on a straighi-line basis over the estimated useful life
of each part of an item of property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation on the assets of the generation of electricity business and on the assets of Corporate & other
offices of the Company, covered under Part B of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, is charged on
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straight-line method following the rates and methodology notified by the Central Clectricity Regulatory
Commission (CERC) Tariff Repulations.

Depreciation on the following assets is provided on their estimated useful lives, which are different from the
useful lives as prescribed under Schedule 11 to the Companies Act, 2013, ascertained on the basis of technical
evaluation/ assessment:

3} Kutcha roads 2 years
I:s} Fnahlmg works

- residential buildings N 15 years
- internal electrification of residential buildings ) 10 years
- non-residential buildings including their internal clectrification, water Suppl}'. 3 years

sewerage & drainage works, railway sidings, acrodromes, helipads and airstrips.

<) Personal computers & laptops including peripherals. B 3 years

d) -Pllulﬂmpicrﬁ. fax machines, water coolers and refrigerators. 5 years

e) Temporary erections including wooden structures. 1 year

f) Telephone exchange. 15 years

g) Wireless systems, VSAT equipment, display devices viz. projectors, screens, G years

CCTV, audio video conferencing systems and other communication equipment. |

'h) Energy saving electrical appliances and fittings. S 2-7 years

1) Hospital equipment _ 5-10 years

| k) Fumiture and Fixture _ ] ~5-15 years

Major overhaul and inspection costs which have been capitalized are depreciated over the period until the
next scheduled outage or actual major inspection/overhaul, whichever is earlier,

Right-of -Use land and buildings relating to generation of electricity business are fully amortized over lease
period or life of the related plant whichever is lower following the rates and methodology notified by the
CERC Tariff Regulations.

Capital spares are depreciated considering the useful life ranging between 2 to 25 years based on technical
assessment.

Right-of-use land and buildings relating to generation of electricity business which are not governed by
CERC tariff Regulations are fully amortized over lease period or life of the related plant whichever is lower
following the rates and methodology notified by the CERC Tariff Regulations.

Right-of -Use land and buildings relating to corporate and other offices are fully amortized over lease period
or twenty-five years whichever is lower following the rates and methodology notified by the CERC Tariff
Regulations.

Depreciation on additions to/deductions from property, plant and equipment during the year is charged on
pro-rata basis from/up to the month in which the asset is available for usefsale, disposal or earmarked for
disposal.

Wlmrc the mwl nl’cleru:.mhlL assels has undergone a change during the yLar du:.. o uwn.uaudm.mﬂsc in long-
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change in duties or similar factors, the unamortized balance of such asset is charged off prospectively over the
remaining useful life determined following the applicable accounting policies relating 1o

depreciation/amortization,

Where it is probable that future economic benefits deriving from the expenditure incurred will flow to the
enterprise and the cost of the item can be measured reliably, subsequent expenditure on a property, plant and
equipment along-with its unamortized depreciable amount is charged off prospectively over the revised useful
life determined by technical assessmenl.
The residual values, uscful lives and method of depreciation of assets other than the assets of generation of
electricity business governed by CERC Tariff Regulations, are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, wherever required.
Depreciation of an asset ceases at the earlier of the date that the asset is classified as held for sale (or included
in a disposal group thal is classified as held for salg) in accordance with Ind AS 105 and the date that the asset
is derecognised.

2. Capital work-in-progress
Cost incurred for property, plant and equipment that are not ready for their intended use as on the reporting

date, is classified under capital worl- in-progress.

The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials & direct labour, any other costs directly
attributable to bringing the assets to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management and the borrowing costs attributable to the acquisition or construction of
qualifying assel.

Expenses directly attributable to construction of property, plant and equipment incurred till they are ready for
their intended use are identified and allocated on a systematic basis on the cost of related assets.

Deposit works/cost plus contracts are accounted for on the basis of stalements of account received from the
contractors.
Unsettled liabilities for price variation/exchange rate variation in case of contracts are accounted for on
eslimaled basis as per lerms of the contracls,

J. Intangible assets and intangible assets under development
3.1. Initial recognition and measurement

An intangible asset is recognized if and only if it is probable that the expected future economic benefits that
are attributable to the asset will flow to the Company and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Company, which have finite useful lives, are recognized at cost.
Subsequent measurement is done at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses.
Cost comprises purchase price including import duties, non -refundable taxes after deducting trade discounts
and rebates and any directly attributable expenses of preparing the asset for ils intended use.

Expenditure on development activities is capitalized only if the expenditure can be measured reliably, the
produet or process is lechnically and commercially leasible, future economic benefits are probable, and the
Company intends to & has sufficient resources to complete development and to use or sell the asset.

Expenditure incurred which are eligible for capitalizations under intangible assets are carried as intangible
assets under development till they are ready [or their intended use.

.




BRBCL

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial statements (continued)

3.2. Subsequent costs:

Subsequent expenditure is recognized as an increase in the carrying amount of the asset when it is probable
that future economic benefits deriving from the cost incurred will flow to the enterprise and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably.

3.3, De-recognition

An intangible assct is derccognized when no future economic benefits are expected from their use or upon
their disposal. Gain or loss on de-recognition of an intangible asset is determined as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of intangible assets and are recognized in the
staterent of profit and loss.

34, Amortization

Cost of software recognized as intangible assel, is amortized on straight-line method over a period of legal
right to use or 3 years, whichever is less. Other intangible assets are amortized on straight-line method over
the period of legal right to use or life of the related plant, whichever is less.

The amortization period and the amortization method of intangible assets with a finite useful life is reviewed
at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, wherever required.

4. Regulatory deferral aceount halances

Expense/income recognized in the statement of profit and loss to the extent recoverable from or payable to the
heneficiaries in subsequent periods as per CERC Tariff Regulations are recognized as ‘Regulatory deferral
account balances’,

Regulaiory deferral account balances are adjusted in the year in which the same become recoverable from or
payable to the beneliciaries.

Regulatory deferral account balances are evaluated at each balance sheet date to ensure that the underlying
activities meet the recognition criteria, and it is probable that future economic benefits associated with such
balances will flow to the entity. If these criteria are not met, the regulatory deferral account balances are
derecognized.

Rorrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of (a) interest expense calculated using the effective interest method as described in
Ind AS 109 — *Financial Instruments’ (b) interest expense on lease liabilitics recognized in accordance with
Ind AS 116— *Leases’ and (¢) exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent
that they are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs,

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction/exploration/ development or
erection of qualifying asscts are capitalized as part of cost of such asset until such time the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use. Qualifying assets are assets which necessarily take substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale.

When the Company borrows funds specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the borrowing
costs incurred are capitalized. When Company borrows funds generally and uses them for the purpose of
obtaining a qualifying asset, the capitalization of the borrowing costs is computed based on the weighted
average cost of all borrowings that are outstanding during the period and used for the acquisition,
construction/exploration or erection of the qualilying asset. However, borrowing cosls applicable o
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying assel, are excluded from this
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calculation, until substantially all the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are
complete,

Income earned on temporary investment made out  of the borrowings pending utilization for expenditure on
the qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalization.

Capitalization of borrowing cosls ceases when substantially all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying assets for their intended uses are complete.

Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the year in which they are incurred.

6. Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost includes cost of purchase, cost of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is
determined on weighted average basis. Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deductling rebates
and discounts. Met realizable value is the estimaled selling price in the ordinary course of business, less
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

The diminution in the value of obsolete, unserviceable, surplus and non-moving items of stores and spares 1s
ascertained on review and provided for.

Steel scrap is valued at estimated realizable value.
7. Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheel comprise cash al banks, cash on hand and shorl term deposits
with an original maturity of three months or less, that are readily convertible to known amount of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

8. Government grants

Government grants are recognized initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance that they
will be received and the Company will comply with the conditions associated with the grant. Granis that
compensate the Company for the cost of depreciable asset are recognized as income in statement of profit and
loss on a systematic basis over the period and in the proportion in which depreciation is charged. Grants that
compensate the Company for expenses incurred are recognized over the period in which the related costs are
incurred and the same is deducted from the related expenses.

9. Fly ash utilization reserve fund

Proceeds from sale of ashfash products along-with income on investment of surplus fund are transferred to
‘Fly ash utilization reserve fund’ in terms of provisions of gazetle notificalion dated 3 November 2009 issued
by Ministry of Environment and Forests, Government of India. The fund is utilized towards expenditure on
development of infrastructure/facilities, promotion & facilitation activities for use of fly ash,

10. Provisions, contingent linbilitics and contingent asseis

A provision is recognized if, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the abligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined
by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the
provision due to the passage of time is recopnized as a finance cost.

2
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1.

12.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present
obligation al reporting daie, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic henefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset if it is virually cerlain that reimbursement will be
received, and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably. The expense relating to a provision is
presented in the statement of profit and loss net of reimbursement, ifany.

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events not wholly within the control of
the Company. Where il is not probable that an outflow of cconomic benefits will be required, or the amount
cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote. Contingent liabilities are disclosed on the basis of judgment of the
management/independent experts. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are adjusted to reflect
the current management estimate.

Contingent assets are possible assets that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company. Contingent assets are disclosed in the financial statements when inflow of economic benefits is
probable on the basis of judgment of management. These are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements.

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and measured as provisions. An oncrous
contract is considered to exist where the Company has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of
meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to be received from the
contract.

Forcign currency transactions and translation

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the functional currency spot rates at the date the
transaction first qualifies for recognition.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot
rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which it arises with the exception that
exchange differences on long term monetary items related to acquisition of property, plant and equipment
recognized up to 31 March 2016 are adjusted to the carrying cost of property, plant and equipment.

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currency which are measured in terms of historical cost are
recorded using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. In case ol advanee consideration received or
paid in a foreign currency, the date of transaction for the purpose of determining the exchange rate to use on
initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it), is when the Company initially
recognizes the non-monetary assel or non-monetary liability anising from the payment or receipt of advance
consideration.

Revenue

Company’s revenues arise from sale energy and other income. Revenue from other income comprises inlerest
from banks, employees, contractors elc., sale of scrap, other miscellaneous income, ete.

a
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12.1. Revenue from sale of energy

The Company's operations are regulated under the Electricity Act, 2003. Accordingly, the CERC determines
the tarifT for the Company’s power plants based on the norms prescribed in the tariff regulations as applicable
from time to time. TarifT is based on the capital cost incurred for a specific power plant and primarily
comprises two components: capacily charge i.e. a fixed charge that includes depreciation, return on equity,
interest on working capital, operating & maintenance expenses, interest on loan and enerpy charge ie a
variable charge primarily based on fuel costs.

Revenue is measured based on the consideration that is specified in a contract with a customer or is expected
to be received in exchange for the products or services and excludes amounts collected on behall of third
parties. The Company recognizes revenue when (or as) the performance obligation is satisfied, which
typically occurs when {or as) control over the products or services is transferred to a customer.

Revenue from the sale of energy is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
Revenue is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of ownership had been transferred to the buyer,
recovery of the consideration was probable, the associated costs could be estimated reliably, there was no
continuing management involvement, and the amount of revenue could be measured reliably.

Revenue from sale of energy is accounted for based on tariff rates approved by the CERC (except items
indicated as provisional) as modified by the orders of Appellate Tribunal for Electricity to the extent
applicable. In case of power stations where the tarill raies are yel o be approved/items indicaled provisional
by the CERC in their orders, provisional rates are adopted considering the applicable CERC Tariff
Regulations. Revenue from sale of energy is recognized once the eleciricity has been delivered to the
beneficiary and is measured through a repular review of usage meters. Beneficiaries are hilled on a periodic
and regular basis. As at each reporting date, revenue from sale of energy includes an accrual for sales
delivered to beneliciaries but not yet billed i.e. contract assets/ unbilled revenue.,

The incentives/disincentives are accounted for based on the norms notified/approved by the CERC as per
principles enunciated in Ind AS 115. In cases of power slalions where the same have nol been notilied
fapproved, incentives/disincentives are accounted for on provisional basis.

Part of revenue from energy sale where CERC tariff Regulations are not applicable is recagnized based on the
rales, lerms & conditions mulually agreed with the beneficiaries and trading of power through power
exchanges.

Exchange differences arising from senlement/translation of monetary items denominated in foreign currency
to the extent recoverable from or payable to the beneficiarics in subsequent periods as per the CERC Tariff
Regulations are accounted as ‘Regulatory deferred account balances” and adjusted from the year in which the
same becomes recoverable/payable to the beneficiaries.

Exchange dilferences on account of translation of foreign currency borrowings recognized upto 31 March
2016, to the extent recoverable from or payable to the beneficiaries in subsequent periods as per the CERC
Tariff Regulations are accounted as *Deferred foreign currency fluctuation asset” with corresponding credit o
‘Deferred income from foreign currency fluctuation’. Deferred income from foreign currency fluctuation
account is amortized in the proportion in which depreciation is charged on such exchange differences and
same is adjusted against depreciation expense. Fair value changes in respect of forward exchange contracts
for derivatives recoverable from/payable to the beneficiaries as per the CERC TarilT Repulations, are
recognized in sales,
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13.

Revenue from sale of energy through trading is recognized based on the rates, terms & conditions mutually
agreed with the beneficiaries as per the guidelines issued by Ministry of New and Renewable Energy,
Government of India.

Rebates allowed to beneficiaries as early payment incentives are deducted from the amount of revenue.
12.2, Other income

Interest income is recognized, when no significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectability exist, on a
time proportion basis taking into account the amount outstanding and the applicable interest rate, using the
effective interest rate method (EIR). For credit impaired financial assets the EIR is applied to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset (after deduction of the loss allowance). EIR is the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expeeted life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Scrap other than steel scrap is accounted for as and when sold.

Insurance claims for loss of profit are accounted for in the year of acceptance. Other insurance claims are
accounted for based on certainty of realization.

Revenue from rentals and operating leases is recognized on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance
of the relevant agreement.

For debt instruments measured either at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income
(OCI), interest income is recorded using the EIR. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future
cash payments or receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where
appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability.
When calculating the EIR, the Company estimates the expecied cash flows by considering all the contractual
terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar options) bul does not
consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in the statement of profit and

loss.

The interest/surcharge on late payment/overdue trade receivables for sale of energy is recognized when no
significant uncertainty as to measurability or collectahility exists,

Interest/'surcharge recoverable on advances to suppliers as well as warranty claims wherever there is
uncertainty of realizationfacceplance are not treated as accrued and are thercfore, accounted for on
receipt/acceplance.

Employee benefils

13.1 Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed contributions
and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further amounts. Obligations for contributions to
defined contribution plans are recognised as an employee henefits expense in the statement of profit and loss

in the period during which services are rendered by employees. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an
asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in future payments is available.

Contributions to a defined contribution plan that are due afier more than 12 months after the end of the period
in which the employees render the service are discounted to their present value.

The Company pays fixed contribution at the predetermined rates in the provident fund scheme. The
contrihuﬁi‘? to the fund for the year are recognised as expense and are charged to the statement of profit and

!
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For the employees on secondment from the parent company, employee benefits include provident fund,
gratuily, post-retirement medical facilities, compensated absences, long service award, economic
rehabilitation scheme and other terminal benefits. In terms of arrangement with the parent company, the
company makes a fixed percentage contribution of the aggregate of basic pay and dearness allowance for the
period of service rendered in the company. Accordingly, these employee benefits are trealed as defined
contribution schemes.

13.2 Delined benelit plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s liahility towards gratuity is in the nature of a defined benefit plan.

The Company’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have eamed in return for their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. Any unrecognised past service costs are deducted. The
discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the reporting date
that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company’s obligations and that are denominated in
the sgame currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The calculation is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the total of any unrecognised
past service cosis and the present valuc of ceonomic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from
the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. An economic benefit is available to the Company if
it is realizable during the life of the plan, or on settlement of the plan liabilities. Any actuarial gains or losses
are recognised in other comprehensive income (OCI) in the period in which they arise.

When the benefits of a plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by
employees is recognized in profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the average period until the benefits
become vested. To the extent that the benefits vest immediately, the expense is recognized immediately in
statement of profit and loss.

13.3 Other long-term employee benefits

Benefits under the Company’s leave encashment scheme constitute other long term employee benefits. The
Company’s net obligation in respect of this long-term employee benefit is calculated by estimating the
amount of future benefit that employees have eamed in retum for their service in the current and prior
periods; that benefit is discounted to determine its present value and the Fair value of any related assets is
deducted. The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Indian government securities as at the
reporting date that have maturity dates approximating the terms of the Company's obligations and that are
denominated in the same currency in which the benefits are expected to be paid.

The actuarial calculalion is performed annually by a qualified acluary using the projecled unit credil method,
Remeasurement comprising of actuarial gain and losses, return on plan assets (excluding the amount included
in net interest on the net defined liability) and effect of asset ceiling (excluding the amount included in net
interest on the net defined liability) and the same are recognized in statement of profit and loss account in the
period in which they arise.

The obligations are presented as current liabilitics in the balance sheet if the entity does not have an
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless of
when the actual settlement is expected to oceur.

=
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13.4 Short-term benefits

Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the
related service is provided.

A liability is recognized for the amount expected o be paid under performance related pay if the Company
has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the
amployee and the obligation can be estimated reliably

14, Other expenses

Expenses on ex-gratia payments under voluntary retirement scheme, training & reeruitment and voluntary
cammunity development are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year incurred.

Expenditure on research is charged to revenue as and when incurred. Expenditure on development is charged
to revenue as and when incurred unless it meets the recognilion criteria for intangible asset as per Ind AS 38-
‘Intangible assets’.

Preliminary expenses on account of new projects incurred prior to approval of [easibility reportflechno
economic clearance are charged to statement of profit and loss.

Net pre-commissioning income/expenditure is adjusted directly in the cost of related assets and systems.
Transit and handling losses of coal as per Company's norms are included in cost of coal.
15. Income tax

Income lax expense comprises current and deferred tax., Current tax expense is recognized in statement of
profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case
it is recognized in OCI or equily, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet method, on temporary differences between the camrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the tax bases of assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences when they
materialize, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date, Deferred
tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax liabilities and
agsels, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Deferred tax is recognized in statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognized directly in OCI or equity, in which case it is recognized in OCI or equity, respectively.

A deferred tax asset is recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized.
Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that the sufficient taxable profits will be available in future to allow all or part of deferred tax assets
to be utilized . '

Delerred tax assets include Minimum Altemnative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India,
which is likely to give future economic benefits in the form of availabilily of sel ofT against future income tax
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reliably and il is probable that the future taxable profit will be available against which MAT credit can be
utilized.

When there is uncertainty regarding income tax treatments, the Company assesses whether a tax authority is
likely to accept an uncertain tax treatment. [f it concludes that the tax authority is unlikely to accept an
uncertain tax treatment, the effect of the uncertainty on taxahle income, tax bases and unused tax losses and
unused tax credits is recognized. The effect of the uncertainty is recognized using the method that, in each
case, best reflects the outcome of the uncertainty: the most likely outcome or the expected value. For each
case, the Company evaluates whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately, or in conjunclion
with ancther or several other uncertain iax treatments, based on the approach that best prefixes the resolution

ol uncertainty.
16. Leases
16.1. As lessee

The Company assesses whether a contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or
contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right o control the use of an identified asset for a period of time
in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (1) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (2) the
Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease
and (3} the Company has the right to direct the use of the assel.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability for all lease arrangements in
which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term leases) and leases for
low value underlying assets. For these short-term and leases for low value underlying assets, the Company
recognizes the lease payments as an operating expense on a straight-line hasis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements include the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease
term. Right-of use assets and lease liabilities include these options when it is reasonably certain that the
option to extend the lease will be exercised/option to terminaie the lease will not be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct
costs less any lease incentives. They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation/
amortization and impairment losses and adjusted for any reassessment of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated/amortized {rom the commencement date 1o the end of the uselul life of the
underlying asset, if the lease transfers ownership of the underlying asset by the end of lease term or if the cost
of right-of-use assets reflects that the purchase option will be exercised. Otherwise, Right-of-use assels are
depreciated famortized from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term
and useful life of the underlying asset.

Right-of-use assels are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that
their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the recoverable amount
(i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-inuse) is determined on an individual asset basis
unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets, In such
cases, the recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments,
The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable,
using the incremental borrowing rate. Lease liabilitics are re-measured with a corresponding adjustment to the
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17.

18,

related right-of-use asset if the Company changes its assessment whether it will exercise an exiension or a
termination option.

16.2. As lessor

At the inceplion of an arrangement, the Company determines whether such an arrangement is or conlains a
lease. A specific asset is subject of a lease if fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of that
specified asset. An arrangement conveys the right to use the asset if the arrangement conveys to the customer
the right to control the use of the underlying asset. Arrangements that do not take the legal form of a lease but
convey rights to customers/suppliers to usc an assct in return for a payment or a series of payments arc
identified as either finance leases or operating leases.

When the Company acts as a lessor, it determines at lease inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease iz classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially.all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset. A lease is classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an underlying asset.

[.ease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised as income on a straight-line basis
over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with expecied general inflation
compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The respeclive leased assels are included in the balance
sheet based on their nature.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are recorded as receivables ('Finance lease receivables’) at the
Company’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated to accounting periods to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the net investment outsianding in respect of the lease.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets arc reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 - *Impairment of
Assets’, 1T any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs to disposal
and itz value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time valuc of moncy and the
risks specific to the asset. For the purpose of impairment testing, assets that cannot be tested individually are
grouped topether into the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or groups of assets (the ‘cash-generating unit’, or
*CGU™).

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Impairment losses
recognized in respect of CGUs are reduced from the carrying amounts of the assets of the CGU.

Impairment losses recognized in prior periods are assessed at each reporting date for any indications that the
loss has decreased or no longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the
assct’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
accumulated depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Operating segments

In accordance with Ind AS 108, the operating segments used to present segment information are identified on
the basis of internal reports used by the Company's management Lo allocate resources to th srt_;z;ments and
]
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assess their performance, The Board of Directors is collectively the Company’s “Chiel Operating Decision
Maker' or ‘CODM? within the meaning of Ind AS 108. The indicators used for internal reporting purposes
may evolve in connection with performance assessment measures put in place. The Company has only one

segment “Generation of energy™.

19, Dividends
Dividends and interim dividends payable to the Company's shareholders are recognized as changes in equity in
the period in which they are approved by the sharchelders and the Board of Directors respectively.

20, Material prior period errors

Material prior period errors are corrected retrospectively by restating the comparative amounts for the prior
periods presented in which the error occurred. If the error occurred before the earliest period presented, the
opening balances of assets, liabilities and equity for the earliest period presented, are restated.

21. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per equily share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss altributable to equily
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the
financial year.

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit or loss attributable to equity
sharcholders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic
earnings per equity share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued
upon conversion ol all dilutive potential equily shares.

The number of equity shares and potentially dilutive equity shares are adjusted retrospectively for all periods
presented for any bonus shares issued during the financial year,

Basic and diluted earnings per equily share are also computed using the earnings amounts excluding the
movements in regulatory deferral account balances,

22. Statement of cash Mows

Statement of cash flows is prepared in accordance with the indirect methad preseribed in Ind AS 7 ‘Statement
ol cash Mows’.

23. Financial instrumenis

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity, The Company recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability only
when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument

23.1 Financial asscts
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized at fair value on initial recognition, except for trade receivables which are
initially measured at transaction price. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets, which are not valued at fair value through profit or loss, are added to the fair value on initial
recognition.
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Subseguent measurcment
Debt instruments at amortized cost
A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:

{a) The assei is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flaws, and

(b} Contractual terms of the assel give rise on specified dates to cash flows that arc solely payments of
principal and interest (SPP1) on the principal amount outstanding,.

Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method, Amortized cost is calculated by taking inlo accounl any discounl or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is
included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss. The losses arising from impairment are
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables,

Diehi instrument at FYTOCI (Fair value through OCI)
A “‘debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:

(a) The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and sclling the
financial assets, and
(b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting
date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the OCIL. However, the Company recognizes
interest income, impainnent losses & reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit
and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is reclassified
from the equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is
reported as interest income using the EIR methed,

Debt instrument at FVTPL (Fair valuc through profit or loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for
categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to classify a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or
EVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a
measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to as ‘accounting mismatch'). Debt instruments included
within the FVTPL category are measured at [air value with all changes recognized in the statement ol profit
and loss, Inierest income on such investments is presented under *Other income”.

De-recognition
A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a Group of similar financial assels)
is primarily de-recognized (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

® The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
s The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards off
the asset, but has translerred control of the asset.

&




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Notes to financial siatements (continued)

The difference between the carrying amount and the amount of consideration received/receivable is
recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Impairment of financial asscts

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (CCL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assels and credit risk exposure:

(a) Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits and bank balance.

(b) Lease receivables under Ind AS 116.

{¢) Trade receivables, unbilled revenue and contract assets under Ind AS 115.

For trade receivables and contract assetsfunbilled revenue, the Company applies the simplified approach
required by Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, which requires lifetime expected losses to be recognized from
initial recopnition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that
whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not
increased significantly, 12-month ECL is vsed to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has
increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument
improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the
entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on 12month ECL.

For purchased or originated credit impaired financial assets, a loss allowance is recognized for the cumulative
changes in lifetime expected credited losses since initial recognition.

23.2 Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilitics at fair value through profit or
loss and financial liabilities at amortized cost, as appropriate. All finaneial liabilities are recognized initially
at fair value and, in the case of liabilities measured at amortized cost net of directly attributable transaction
cost. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, borrowings including bank
overdrafls, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities al amortized cost

After initial measurement, such financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
EIR method. Gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit and loss when the liabilities are
derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process Amortized cost is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortization is included in finance costs in the stalement of profil and loss. This category generally applies to
borrowings, trade payables and other contractual liabilities.

Financial liabilities at Fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near
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term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Company that are not
desipnated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109. Separated embedded
derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments,

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as
FVTPL, fair value gains/losses attributable to changes in own credit risk is recognized in OCIL These
gainsflosges are not subsequently transferred to profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the
cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognized in the
statement of profit and loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair value through
profit and loss.

De-recognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, The
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

e
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23.3 Derivative financial instrumentls

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracls and interesl rate
swaps lo hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks of foreign currency loans. Such derivative
financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value, Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair
value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair value is negative. Any gains or losses arising from
changes in the [air value of derivatives are taken to statement of profit and loss.

23.4 Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is presented in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a
net basis, to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

D, Use of estimates and management judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions
thal may impact the application of accounting policies and the reported value of assets, liabilities, income,
expenses and related disclosures concerning the items involved as well as contingent assets and liabilities at
the balance sheet date. The estimates and management’s judgments are based on previous experience & other
lactors considered reasonable and prudent in the circumstances. Actual resulis may differ from these
eslimales.

Eslimates and underlying assumplions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions Lo accounting estimales
are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected.

In order o enhance undersianding of the financial staterments, information about significant arcas of
estimation, uncertainty and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements is as under;

1. Formulation ol accounting puolicies

The accounting policies are formulated in a manner that results in financial statements containing relevant and
reliable information aboul the transactions, other events and conditions to which they apply. Those policies
need not be applied when the effect of applying them is immaterial.

2. Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible asscis

The estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on a number of
factors including the effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the
stability of the industry and known lechnological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures
required to obtain the expected future cash flows from the asset.

Useful life of the assets of the generation of electricity business (where tarifT is regulated) is determined by
the CERC Tanff Regulations in accordance with Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013.

3. Recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets is based on estimates and
assumptions regarding in parlicular the expecled market outlook and future cash flows associated with the
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power plants. Any changes in these assumptions may have a malerial impact on the measurement of the
recoverable amount and could result in impairment.

4, Defined benefit plans and long-term employee benefits

Employee benefit obligations are measured on the basis of actuarial assumptions which include mortality and
withdrawal rates as well as assumptions concerning future developments in discount rates, the rate of salary
inereases and the inflation rate. The Company considers that the assumptions used to measure its obligations
are appropriate and documented. However, any changes in these assumptions may have a material impact an
the resulting calculations.

5. Revenues

The Company records revenue from sale of encrgy based on tariff rates approved by the CERC as modified
by the orders of Appellate Tribunal for Electricity, as per principles enunciated under Ind AS 115, However,
in cases where tariff rates are yet to be approved, provisional rates are adopted considering the applicable
CERC Tariff Regulations.

0. Leases not in legal form of lease

Significant judgment is required to apply lease accounting rules as per Ind AS 116 in determining whether an
arrangement contains a lease. In assessing arrangements enlered into by the Company, management has
exercised judgment to evaluate the right to use the underlying asset, substance of the transactions including

legally enforceable agreements and other significant terms and conditions of the arrangements to conelude
whether the arrangement meets the criteria as per Ind AS 116.

7. Regulatory deferral account balances

Recognition of regulatory deferral account balances involves significant judgments including about future
tarifT regulations since these are based on estimation of the amounts expected to be recoverablefpayable
through tariff in future,

8. Provisions and contingencies

The assessments undertaken in recognizing provisions and contingencies have been made in accordance with
Ind AS 37 *Provisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets’. The evaluation of the likelihood of the
contingent evenls requires best judgment by management regarding the probability of exposure to potential
loss. Should circumstances change following unforeseeable developmenis, this likelihood could alter.

9, Income taxes

Significant estimates are involved in determining the provision for current and deferred tax, including amount
expected to be paidfrecovered for uncentain tax positions.
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2 Property, plant and equipment

Azt 31 March 2023 T Lakhs
Particulars Gross Block et Bloeh
As at Adjustments, Asat Upto For Adjustments/ Uple Asat
o1 April 2032 Additivns i 51 March 2023 o1 April 2022 Additions i 31 March 2023 31 March 2023

Land {inclusing develogment emenses)

Freshald 50,420.13 249391 . £2.014.04 . s . » 5201404

Riuht o Use iLand) BLLT - - 8207 18,86 3.8 - 2214 2993
Raunds. bridues, oulvers & hefipads 75734 ] . 75734 LR R T 25808 . L174.08 6.583.25
Buildine

Main Plart 6,325.37 . - #6,31527 B.9%4.62 291849 . T4AILLE

Others 23.501,09 . . 23,9010 151605 2000 - 19.464.04
Temparary erection 750,49 - - 79049 790,49 - - -
Water susply, dminige & sewerace svatem 3123114 . - 323104 43413 187.32 - 2.589.69
MOR track and siealling svsiem 34,979,909 - - 3457090 480428 1.564. 68 . 2561004
Plant and equipment 6,85,350.01 172545 - 687,084.47 12081379 38.263.75 % 52790693
Furniture and fxtures 2716.06 181,81 - B 289787 44136 188.74 - 2167.77
Vehicles (Owned) 1.51 137 . i 253 .66 018 - 194
Office eouioment 604,63 115,40 z TI0E 4222 6543 3 41238
EDP, WP machines and sicom souicmunt $5201 3260 . GAEEL 120,18 THD + 199.08
Construction equipenents 785,89 2177 F IR 817.66 420,12 6213 p 33536
Eleetrical Installntions 291481 - 2 814,81 12562 22400 - 186519
Communication Eaulemerts 1ol 361 - 1376 63,28 9.43 f 4108
Huosoital equioments 191.88 714 . 129.02 1.2 13.24 . 104,56
Laborarory and workshap e0 uigments 364,80 - - S 3480 5252 19.08 - W33
Canital snares 443158 2069.08 - 650060 AL0E2 3708 - S652.7F
Total S.05434.76 EE10.34 - 9.13,133.99 1.43.354.38 4531538 . 72362437
Asnt 31 March 2622 R Lukhs
Particulars Gross Block il Net Block

As al Adjustments/ As at Unto Far Adjusiments! Upta Asat
01 April 2021 Additions Deducti 31 March 2023 1 April 2021 Adilitions i 31 March 2032 _ 31 March 2612

Land (including development expensus)

Freshald $0.107.16 297 - 50,420.13 . - - - 50,420,103

Right to Use (Land) 82.07 s - £207 15,58 328 - 1856 6321
Riads, bridges, culverts & helipads 5,804.75 195238 - 7,757.34 T08.95 205.13 - 21511 6,842.23
Building

Main Plan: 57.29T.a4 29,027.83 - 8632827 6,736.63 2,247.99 - 898462 TTH065

Others 21,539.76 235830 30 2300109 264328 E7213 .64 151605 2038504
Temparary erection 757,09 33.40 . 75049 308 33.40 . 79049 .
‘Water supply, dreinage & sewerage syarem 1,150,860 [ReLE . 32304 3154 14259 . 45413 17101
MGR tmek and signalling system . 1167230 23,307,60 34579.50 - 1.319.57 3.584,71 450428 30,17562
Plant and equipment 5,43.728.00 1,64,538.61 (23,307.60) 6,85,350.01 O, 838,02 3151443 3.584,71) 1,20213.79 5,64,44522
Fumiture and fixtures 1.965.42 24915 o851y 2,716.06 41575 143.33 1.7 54136 2,074.70
Velsigles {Ownud] 1.51 - . LS1 0.5 Q1§ . .66 0.85
Office equipment 475,41 55.80 1247 G468 177,10 50.97 1415 4222 36246
EDF, WP miachines and satcom equipment 465,12 £7.80 . 55292 U744 BLT2 - 31016 11376
Canszruction equipments 78999 . - 78989 338,43 416 - 4002 36077
Electrical Inssallations 1,592.46 32235 - 191481 6352 150,39 - 82562 1089.19
‘Caommumicntion Equipments w14 .ol . 110,15 387 Lk 3 * 6325 46.90
Hospital equipments 4136 44,07 1555 10188 226 733 1.58 a2 066
Labaratory aad warkshep equipments 504 49,86 - 36490 3477 1778 - 5252 31238
Capital spares 1.022.65 2,408, 87 - 443182 IEE 29823 - 410,82 402070
Totul 6.50.335.96 2,15.206.26 [EEN 20543476 L6095, 13 37,2050 u_il"i 14320428 75219048
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2 Propesty. plant and equipment (costinaed

1} The comveysacing of the title 1o 15,191 7% acres of freeshold land of value  482.43 lakhs (31 March 2022: 16.471 79 acres of value  523.09 Lakhs) in favour of the Company are awniting completion of legal formalities,
b Rl nome 16 and 19 For informasion on propesy, plast ard equipment pledged as security by the company.

) Spare parss of 2 5 lakh and above, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment which meet the definition of property, plant and equi capitalized.
o) Dv i i from Block and fiar the year represents inter class tansfer of msset and disposal of asser,
&) Estis d af ining to b d an capital aceount and is not provided for as w31 Mareh 2023 is ¥ 98,237,30 Lakks (31 March 2022 ¥ 1,07.631,18 Lakhs),

1} Propeny, plant and equipeent costing € S0000- o less, are (ully depreciared in the year of acquisition
ul ical o 2681 Lakks (31 March 2022- % 681 Lakhs) were missing for which investipation is pending hence not adiusted in this schedule,
h Girass easrying amaunt of fully desreciated property. plant and equipment that are siill in use & given below:

2 Lakhs
Particulars Asar Asar
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Turnparary stclion §83.58 $53.88
Plant and equipment 77 a7
Furniture and fixtunss 63.65 62.71
Wehigles (Owned) o4 04
Office equipment 2554 o
EDP, WP machines and saicom equipment 8009 23402
Commurscation Equipments 102 1.02
Water supply, drninage & sewerage system o 0.04
Laborawry end warkshoo swipments s ol
Haspital equipmenis 0.85 o0gs
Electrical installations 5.03 £.03
Tatal 1377.49 136305
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3 Capital work-in-progress

Ao st 3] Margh IS ¥ Lakhs
Particwlars Aval w10 _Dbedluctioen) Asmi
01 April 2022 Add Adjusiments Capitalized 31 March 2023

Development of laad " 249362 (2 403.91) . -
Roads, bridaes. cubverts & belipads - 6547 B . 6547
Buildings

Mdain plant = TG 44 (3.03) . TagAl

Otherni 13, 7EA.08 1311347 = . 1699953
Temporary erction 1966 3233 - - 5L
MIGE Erack asd sigmalling system 1547 54 B6.9G - - 102550
Flant and equipment 6.554.07 10.210.32 maz L1736 1435955
Fumiture and fixtures 248 2089 . 1158 3078
Eleerrical inseallationg = 190,80 - - 190,540
Laboratory and workshop equipments 108 . : . 106

1235626 17,063.70 (L 725.63) 1,209.44 A4ATLED
Expenditure pending allocstion
Expendise during construction period (net)” E11245 1,199.78 = - 351127
Less: Allocared o relmed works £312.49 1195978 . . S1L27
L3502 IT,063.70 (1,725.63) 3120844 4445459

Construction sbores 1112439 1.050.32 2, 708.2E) . 4571
Toial AR AR FEN] FEH [-lﬂliﬂ.".']i JEH.-H 24056,

* Mrowght From expenditure during construction period (net) - nole 32
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Capital work-in-progress (coniinecd )

A wi 31 Murch 2032 ey o e £ Lakhe
Particulars As uk ¥ e Bi i AL at
&1 April 2021 Addditions Adjustmcnts Capitalized 31 March 2022
Dievelopmens of lad BlLIE R85 [312.95) TaRIE .
Reads, bridges, culvens & belipads M. =i {192.02) 136.7% .
Boildings =
Mais plant 14,722.41 1,.352.10 (1,693.56) 14,385 9% -
CHisert 161547 1091297 (2142.21) BT 15, TEA.
Temporary erection . b : EEE 19.66
Waser supply, drainage and sewernge system M6 $3.12 (33.18) 316362 -
MGR rack and signalling gystam 573315 156246 (99.68) 1147250 194254
Flant and equipenent 1,47, 380,51 1527117 {10,524.58) 1A% TTZE3 655407
Furmitwe and fxiees 1430 B5.68 (23.43) 1408 5247
EDPWP machines & sscom equipment L ] 13.68 - 1554 .
Electrical installations 559591 45425 (6,050.16) . .
Oifice apspment 054 0.42 4Ty 040 -
Labormory and workshop esipments 104 - : - 1.4
1,834,703 43 403,13 (21,078.32) 173781 I2,356.26
Expendsiure peading allocation
Swrvey. levestipation, cosraltancy and supervision chanpe L6126 = [2.161.26) - -
Hmmlnmmi erpenses (net) 6 04E 0 [5,633.59) [414.95) B .
Others experies anributable 1o Project {Adf) 1,308 94 410 {1,303.m5) - =
Expenditure during condtnection perssd (sel)” £ 831249 = & 831249
Less: Allocated 1o related works = §.31249 = = HI12.49
154220 5% 3083326 (24,561.79) 17173781 I2AS6 26
Coastruction sheres 450921 500354 (BT80T10 -
Towl 1r9,214.75 KL ETS] (33, 742500 177,781 EEETT

* Rrought from expenditure during conminuction parhod (o) - nots 32
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Y} Caplisl work-bn-progress (contineed )

&) Exchange differences capitalised are ditchosed & the "Addition” colusn of CWIP and allacuted to various heads of CWIP in the year of eapitalisstion through *Deductions! Adjusemens’
column of CWIF, Exchange differences in respect of assets alseady capitalised ané disclosed in the "Deductions'Adjusttments” eolumn of PPE. Asset-wise detaily of exchange differences and
borrowing Codls incleded i the odt of mupor heads of PPE nd CWIP through * Addition” or * Deductions'Adjusiments’ cobamn are given below:

£ Lakhs
For the vear ended 31 March 2023 Far the vear ended 31 Mareh 2022
Exchange Borrowing cowts Exchange Barrowing covoy
— differenee differense
Bailding:
Muin Plant - . e 13160
Oitkeers . LG N 40631
Flent & Machinery 12735 256,52 {301y 3TN
MOR Track and Sigmalling syslem . E6.5d - S0}, 63
Elkcctrical Installaion - - - 21049
Roads, bridges, culverts & helipads B 049 . 1029
Temporary encction E - . 011
Water supply, dminnge and sewersge sysem . . O 13.18
Furniture and fixnares E . . 041
ECP/WF machines & smiooen equipmern - - - 036
Orthers inchuding pending allacstion . . . 48.61
Tudal k] L1431 01 I8

b} Dharingg the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company incurmed pre=comenisioning expendire of £ 4,721.37 Lakhs and eamed pre-commisioning salet of £ 568,98 Lakhs repehing in net pre-
commidboning expenditure of £ 4, 157 .19 Lakhs

¥




Ehartiya Rad Bijly Company Limited
Seudes b Bhet Banncinl sEalements fosniinwd}

4 Inmagibls siaee

As il X1 March 2023 ¥ Lakis
Fariiculars Sreds Bk Amortistes I
Ai at At Tpta Tar FTTT]
08 April 2033 Additians T o 31 March 2023 A Additions Deduetions 31 Murch 2023 31 March 3003
Software Fido] . . Fi ] [LET] &3% . 4T .51
Rizi o use land 2Ei% . 40 a4k (N}] - L1 1.4
Total ELEA] = = EA8A] 2.1 T . W L
As an 31 Mureh 3023 _ tlLam
Particulans R— Cirma blark ~ __ Amortestion 0 Meilleck
As Upin For Upts Ar s
00 Ajpril 3021 hddising Ml iy ] April DTN i Diedcrions 3] Manck 3833 31 Mlarch 3003
oftwan nmn 1] . e LM
Bigha 1 et land . . 1% (A F] . 448 AT
Tital - [FAT] e - TR 3L

& Dheprec: mor amartination of tngbis and istangisle et for dae prar n allscaied a given el

8 Lakhd
Farticulars [Far it year erded Fosr e vedr oaded
N Ml TOTN 1 Mlssch W3}
Tramdrread s repemdshoe denng eoesiracn on pennd () . soee 1) . LI
Albpcmbed i Mol oot LTH.ZE 153352
Recowhingd i sralil kad laid 41843 95 JiafT 44
Tstal i
Iy Geoan carmying amount of Klly depeocistod imtaagile misoty tha arg BT in e i) phoon ehow
1 Lakhs
Farikulars Al il Ad ot
31 March D30 1 Murch Ji3d
Foftwans 1 wiE
Tortad “g FENE]
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Bhartiya Rail Dijles Company Limited
Modes lo (he linnncinl statements (continued)

5  Other non-currenl assels

Particulars

31 March 1023

Asal

€ Lakhx
Asal

31 March 2022

Capital pdvanees

Unsecured, considered good
Cowered by bank auaranies 2986, 19 2,536.95
ithers 251223 237839
5A450.02 491534
Advances other than capital advances
Advanes tax and tax deducted at sauree 1762607 1601867
Less: Provigion for tax 13706 98 15868 34
301000 150.43
Toial S41811 SO6STT
n) Disclosure with respect w advances to related parties 13 made inonote 41
& Deferred tnx Asset {net)
¥ Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Deferred tax assel (met)
Unabsorbed depresiation 96,255.36 98.466.14
Mininaum altermate ax 21,144, 89 16,355.12
Provision For cavployes benelils 2150
Leza: Dalerred iax liahility
Difference in book depreciation and tax depreciation 1,06,706.51 100,357 86
Total 10, 71524 1442330
a) Refer note 39 for disclosure related to income tax.
b} Deferred tax assets and deferved tax liabilities have been offset as they relate to the same govemning laws
¢l Movemenl in deferred lax babances
Far the year ended 31 March 2023 ) ] ) — == ¥ Lakhs
Particulars Opening Recognised in Recognised in Closing balance
balance profit or less acCl
Deferred tax assot
Unebsorbed depreciation D8 A66.14 (2.210.78) 9625536
Minimum elternate tm 16.5355.12 4. 789.77 . 2114489
Provision for employes bencllits - 24,35 {2 85) 21.50
Sub-tutal 11482126 260334 (2.85) LIT421.75
Less: Deferved tax liabilioy
Difference in book depreciation and tax deprecistion 10039796 6308 55 1,06, 706,51
Sub-tatal 1,000.3%7.96 6.308.55 106, 706,51
Deferred tax assets (net) [A - B] 14.423.30 (3.705.21) (L85} 1071524
For the year ended 31 March 2023 T Lakhz
Farliculars Upening Recognised in Recognised in Closing balance
balance prafil ar loss [N
Drelerred lnx nssel
Unabsorbed depreciation 26807 419717 Q8. 466,14
blinimum allemale tax 4,752 06 1603 06
Sub-total [A] 1.03,021.03 1180023 - 1.14,821.26
Less: Deferred tax liability
Dilference in book depreciation amd tax depreciation £4,560.63 1583733 1,000, 3%7 96
Sub-total [B] 84,560.63 15,837.33 - 1.00.397.96
Deferred ux nssels (net) |A - B 18, 46059 {4,037.09) 14,423.30

e’




Bl tiya Rail Mjlee Company Limited
Motes to the financial siatements (continued)

T Inventories

T Lakhs
Particulars Ax mi As ul
31 March 2023 31 Muarch 2022
Coal 6.251.18 FRIFFR )
Fuel Ol ETE &l Ti2 81
Stores and Spares 847335 638435
Chamicals & cansumahlas 1,163 83 127 64
Steel 8243 64,43
Loose tools 21.24 44.36
Oithars {rafisr b halaw) 3 605 8% 111512
Sub Total 19,776, 19 10.491.63
Less: Provigion for shorlages 119,35 100 46
Tota o Dsses sl
a)_Above lpures inchuades Material in Transit, Delails of material in ansil a3 on reporting dale as below. 1 Lakhs
Particulars As al As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Coal 54 B EHER-L)
Stares and spares 104.20 7295
Chemicals & consumables 0.z {1 I
Oileers 1] 020
Total —dl, e AL

by Oher mcludes cement, secl, elecirical consumables cle.

ch Refer note 16 and 19 for information on inventary pledged as secunty by the company.

d) Maragraph 32 of Ind AS 2, “Inventorscs® provides that materials and other supplics held for use in the production af inventories are not written down
below cost if the finished products in which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold at or above cost. The Company is operating in the
regulalory environment and s per CERC Taniff Regulations, cost of fuel and other inventory items are recovered as per extant tall regulations.
Accardingly, the realisable value of the mvenlories i not lower than the cost.

e} Inventory recognised as expense during ihe yvear:
Particulars

i Lakhs

For the year ended Far ihe year eniled

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fuel Expense 1.94,791.39 1,23,568.16
Oileers (recogmised in olher expenses) 5.809.29 3,290.74
Tatal 20060018 1,26, 858.91

B Trade receivables

=  Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

A1 Muarch 2023 Al March 2022
Trnde receivables (unsecured. considered mood ) 45 703.75 6876678
Total et U, —T00TE

a) The company’s exposure bo credit risk is disclosed i note 34,

b) Refer nole 41 for related parly disclosures

¢) Trede recorvable includes unballed revenue of 2 3173329 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 27,074.91 lakhs) représenting amount billed to the
beneficiaries after 31 March for energy sales

d) Trode receivable aleo includes late payment surcharge receivable 48 72 Lokhs (31 Moreh 20220 8 1,005 10 lakles).

€) Trade receivables as af 31 March 2022 included INR 2 1943040 Lakhs withheld by BC Railways on sceount of [ TA which wene received during

the curmend year.

9 Cash and cash equivalents

1 Lakhs
Particulars Az al As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Balances with banks
Current accounts 1774 87 115687
Deposits with original materity wpio three months {(including mierest accreed ) 732 RRG AT
Chegues an hand 0.50 =
Others (stampes in hasned ) 016 016

Total 178275 204370
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Bhartiya Rail Rijlee Company Limited
Mutes lo Uhe lnancial stalements (continued)

18 Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalenis
_ % Lakhs
Particulars Aant AERY
31 March 2023 31 Mareh 2022
Earmarked balances with banks towsards
Fly ash wilization reserve fund 1384 T9 147 86
Coaporate social responsibility reserve fund 431.55 -
Margin money agamsl leller of credil ssued o vemior E 27447
Unpaid dividend account balance 051 -
Total 1,776,B5 472 13
11 Other financial assels
T Lakhs
Particulars Asat Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Insurance claim receivable
Unseeural, considened mood = el
Conasiered doublliul 1.216.81 121681
Less: Allowance for doubtlul claims 1214681 121681
Receivable from NTPC Limited 3294 82 -
Recoverable from vendors 30.97 24.11
Total A UL
a) The company's cxposure to credil risk is disclosed in note 34,
12 (rther currcnt assels
¥ Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
- _ _ 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Depozits with Government Authorities 249119 2.581.6%
Other recoverable (refer note a below) 6,149.56 £378.80
Unsecured Advances
Emplovecs 3.63 870
Contractors & supplicrs 16, 101.07 1136543
Others (refer note b below) 321410 33243
Toiul 35 DGk, Fﬂﬁﬁ'ﬁ ] n—ﬁ? !-1
a) Ouher recoverable includes amount recoverable from Railways towards freight and recoverable from NTPC Limited towards freight charges, supply
of steel ele,
b} Ciher advances represents insurance premium paid in advance,
13 Regulatory defercal account debit balances
t Lakhs
Particalars Az al As at
3 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
On necount of
Acgh lrangportalion cost 244423 1.382.81
Foregn curreney Nuectualion THE. 29 -
- G08.95

Exchange diflerences

Total J.212.52 192176

a) Regulatory defemal acoount balances have been acoounted in line with Accounting policy no. C.4 (Note 1), Refer Mote 25 for detailed disclasures.

b} Begulntory defernl pocmud balonee as ol 31 Morch 2022 has been reversed duning financial year 2022-23 s billing towards ash tranaporiation
expenses has already been made during linancial year 2021-22

7




Bhartya Kall Bijler Comnpany Limited

Notes io the financisl staiemenis |

I4 Exmily sharve capital

¥ Lakhs
Particulars As a1 31 Muarch 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Mumther of Share E Amounl Number of Shares Amouni
A boried
Equity shawreg of par valpe ¥ 0L each 2.30,00.00.000 40,000, 00 F U0 1.50,000.00
Liswed, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shares of par valug 210/ cach 2,39,74,61 538 1,99, 146.15 1,59,74,61,538 1,39,746.15
a) Movemenis in ¥ Lakhs
Particulirs Far the year ended 31 March 2023 Far the year ended 31 March 2022
L2 Mumbser of Sharcs MAmsen i Mumber of Shares Anspunt
Opening balance 239,74 61,534 239, 14615 2,39,74,61,438 2,30,M46.15
Shares isswed dning the year - = - =
Closing balance 2,09,74,61,40% 1,39, 746.15 1,55, 74,61,558 1,30, 746.15

b) Terms and rights atlached o equity shares:

The Company hes only one elass of equity shares having a par valug 2100- per share, The equity sharcholders are entitled to receave divadenids as declared
from vime 1o time and sre entitled 1o voling rights propostiomate b their share holding at the mectings of sharcholders. In the event of liquidstion of the
Company, the holders af the equity shares will be emitbed 10 receive remaining sssets of the Company, afler distnbution of all prelerential sisounts. The
distribution will be in propanion o the mumber of equity shares held by the sharcholdess

2] Dividends

¥ Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year eaded
31 March 2022

(1) Dividends paid and recogrised during the year

Final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2022 af 2 0221 (51 March 20212 7 0.05) per exunly sharo
Tatering dividend for the year ended 31 March 2033 of ¥ 1.04 {31 March 2022: ¥ 0.63) per cquity share

(i) Davidends nd recognised at the sod of (he reperting pericd

Ini sdditizn ro the above dividends, sinee year end the directons hove recommemled e paymend of o
final dividend of T Mil (31 March 2022 T 0.21) per equity <hare. This proposed dividem is subject w
the approval of sharcholders in the ensaing Anmual General Meeting

d) Deetails of shareholders hoddi

g more than 5% shares in the Campany:

000,00 200000
25,000.00 15,000.00
- 000,00

"arliralars Asar M March 2023 Anar 31 March 1032
Number of Shires b} Number al Shares e

WTP Lid 1,77.40,21 538 H™0d 1,77,41,21 538 700

Mlniﬂqr al Railways B2 48 40,000 26 00 62 A3 40,000 2600
) Deetails of shares beld by promoiers:

Fromaler manse Muamber of Shares k. “Chn:: |l.m'l: e yrar

As al 31 Alarch Z013

WTPC Limised 1,77.41,21,538 7400 Mo change daring the year

Mimistry of Failways G2,33,40,000 2600 Ma change during the year

Asat 31 March 2012

MTPL Limised 1,77.41,21, 538 74,00 Mo ehange during the year

Miristry of Railways 62,33 40,000 26,00 Maehinge during the yesr

G
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited

Notes to the financial { inued)
15 Other equity
2 Lakhs
Particulars As at Asat
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Corporate social responsibility reserve (refer note 40) - 415.44
Fly ash utilisation reserve fund 1,344.79 147.85
Retained eamings 46,708.19 51,888.72
Total 48,052,98 52,452.01

a) Corporate social responsibility reserve
As per Section 135 of the Companics Act, 2013, a company, meeting the applicability threshold, needs to spend at least 2% of its average nct profit for the
i liately p ling three fi ial years on corporate social responsibility (CSR) activities. The Company has recognised provision for unspent amount,
refer note 40 for detailed disclosure.

T Lakhs

Reconciliation of ecorporate social responsibility reserve

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Opening balance 415.44 -
Add: Transfer from relained eaming - 422.50
Less: Transfer to retained caming 41544 7.06
Closing balance - 415.44

b) Fly ash utilisation reserve fund
Pursuant to Gazerte Notification dated 3 November 2009, issued by the Minisiry of Environment and Forest (MOEF), Government of India (GOI), the
amount collected from sale of fly ash and fly ash based products should be kept in a separate account head and shall be utilized only for the development of
infrastructure or facility, promotion & facilitation activitics for use of fly ash until 100 pereent fly ash wtilization level is achieved. The fund balance has
been kept in ‘Bank balances other than cash & cash cquivalents' (note 10).
The Comy has ferred the total p ds from sale of fly ash to this reserve without adjusting expenses ineurred on fly ash management as the
Company intends to utilise the total proceeds for the activities permitted by CERC Regulations and above ioned notification.

2 Lakhs

Reconciliation of fly ash utilisation reserve fund

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Opening balance

Add: Transferved during the year:
Revenue [rom operations

Less: Utilised during the year:
Other expenses

Closing balance

¢) Retained earnings

147835 83253
285.52 230.82
(911.42) 915.50

1,344.79 147.85
¥ Lakhs

Reconciliation of retained earnings

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Opening balance 51,888.72 36,434.50
Profit for the year from Statement of Profit and Loss 24,398.71 32,869.75
Other comprehensive income 5.32 (0.08)
Final Dividend paid (5.000.00) (2,000.00)
Interim Dividend paid (25,000.00) (15,000.00)
Transfer to corporate social responsibility reserve - (422.50)
Transfer from corporate social responsibility reserve 41544 7.06
Reunding off adjustment - (0.01)
Closing balance 46,708,19 51,888.72




Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Mobes Lo Lhe financial statenients (continued)

16 Non-current borrowings

T Lakhs
Particulars As at Asul
31 Mareh 2021 3 March 2022
Secured Rupes term boan from bank 4,87,545.98 51572505
Less: Corrent maturities of non-curment boorowings 40,283 10 1873638
Less: Interest necrued but not due on secured bosmovangs 121809 1,001.34
Total 48603459 47598733
a} Notails of torms of repayment and rate of mileresl
2 Lakhs
As at As at
Name of leader ) 31 Mareh 2023 31 March 2022
Bank of Baroda (Vijaya Bank) 1,12,30879 12227718
{carries varmble interest rate linked o | Month MCLR + spread compounded
and payable a1 moathly rests and repayable in quarterly instalments of INR
2497 92 Lakhs upto June 2034)
Canara Bank 7500030 81,667.00
{carmies verigble inlerest robe linked to 3 month MCLE withoul spread
compounded and payable ol monthly rests repayable in 60 quanterly instalments
of MR 1,666.67 Lakhs upto June 2034)
Stnte Bank of Imdin 1,59.826.41 1,65,519.51
{carmes varable interest rate linked (o 3 Month MCLR® Spread compounded
and payable at monthly rests and repayable in in 48-54 quarterly instalments
uplo March 2035 after mersornwm uple March 2024)
ICICI Bank 13501048 1 46,261.36
(carrigs variable interest rate linked to 3 Month MCLE + spread compounded
and payable sl monthly rests and repayable in 34 quartery inslalments uplo
March 20035)
HDFC Bank 5,400.00 -
(carries variable interest rate linked to 3 months T bill + spread compounded
and payable at monthly rest and repayable in 48 quarterly instalments uplo
December 2037)
Toial 4,87,545.98 5,15, 72508

b) Details of securitics

All Term loans arc scourcd by the following on the basis of first pari passu charge on the cntire project asscts of the company other than

Current Assels
(i) First charge on the entire project’s immovable propertics, both present and future.

(i) First chorge by way of hypotheention of oll the Company’s movables assets, intungible and geodwill, both preseat and future.
In addition to the Mist Charge on the fixed assel as mentioned above, the term loans from Canara Bank and Bank of Baroda are also securesd

by weay' of second pari pasu charge on the current azscts of the Company,
¢} Reler noie no 34 for details of undrawn borrowing facilities available as at reporing date,
d) There has been no defaults in repayment of the loan or interest therean as af the end of the year,

17 (Mher non-current limancial liakilitics

1 Lakhs
Particulars Asal Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Payahle for capital expenditure
Todal mststanding dues of micro and small emerprises - ,
Todal oulstanding dues of credibors other than micro and small enterprises 16345 aTh gl
Total 363,45 479081

a) Payable for capital expenditure represents lmbility towards equipmend supplier and erection vendors pending evaluation of performance and

guaranlee test resulls.
b} Refer note 41 for reluted party disclosures
¢ The company’s expasure o curmency and Hguidiy nsks relabed o above financial linkility is discloged in node 34
d) Detaited disclosures as required uwider MSMED Act, 2006 5 nimde in note 43

P
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DBhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Wotes io the financial statements (eontinued)

1& Mon-corrent provisions

¥ Lakhs
Particulars Asat As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Prowizion For grafuiby 15.08 15.63
“Tusiml Ii{l& Im
a) Disclosures uz per Ind A5 19 = *Employee Benebits” are proveded i nobe 35,
19 Current borrowings
£ Lakhs
Particulars As al Asal
: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Working capital loan (refer a below) $.535.03 25441.06
Current maturities of non-current borrowings from Banks 40,293.30 3873638
Total 49.878.33 5417744

a) Working capital loans carry variable interest rate linked to respective bank MCLR plus spread and permutied working capital demand loans
have rale of interst linked Lo lenure based MULR of the respective Bank, These loans are repayable on demand and are secured by way of
pari passu first charge on enlire current assels (both present and fuwe) and second par peou charge on all the fxed assels of the company.

b) Details in respect of rate of inerest and terms ol repayment of current maturities of secured long lerm borrowings indicated above are

disclosad in nota 16

c) Refor note no 34 for dedails of undrawn borrowing facilities availahle as at reporting date

20 Trade pavables

2 Laklhs
Particulars Ax al Axul
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade payable for goods and services
Total outsianding dues of micro and small enterprises 137760 95864
Tolal outstanding ducs of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 22,057.58 Q83346
Total 1343518 10,792.10
a} Refer nate 41 for reluted pny disclosures,
b} Detailed disclosures az required under MSMED Act, 2006 is made in note 43
¢} The company’s exposure 1o liquidity risks related 1o iade payable is dizsclased in note 34,
21 Dvher linancinl linhilities
% Lakhs
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Pavable for copital expenditure

= micre and small enlerprises 63,10 923,01
- gther than micro and small enlberproes 43 E05.50 41,1817
Interest acerued bul nod due on borrowings 1,218,009 100134
Other payvables
Deposiits from contractors 29.10 41255
NTPC Lid - A451.00
Payable to employees 151542 1,206.82
Provision fior unspent CBR 710,66 -
Otthers 354,02 6818
Bank book overdrall 11,EB7.26 1, 459,70
Total ﬂﬁ?’.z‘i 46, 744,30

) Payable for capital expenditure represents linbility owands equipment supplier and ereclion vendars pending evaluation of performance and
punranice sl resulls

b) Detailed disclosures as required under MSMED Act, 2006 is msde in nobe 43

&) Cther payables - others include wowards Material Recerved, miminisiralion expenses payable elc.

d) The company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related 1o above financial liability is disclosed in note 34

el Refer nowe 41 for related party disclozures.




Bhartiya Kail Bijlee Company Limited
MNotes to the financial statements (continuwed)

12 Oiher current linhililies

B Lakle
PParticulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Advances from customers 444,009 121.25
Others (includes material received on loan) 6E.20 G820
Tax deducled al source awd ollwer slatutory dues 0.0z 0.0z
Total 512.31 159,47
231 Provisions
¥ Lakhs
Particulars Az at As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provisions for obigations incidenial io Land acquisition 16,128.26 15,296,390
Provision for arbitration cases 1,217.20 1,205.97
Provision for shortages in property, plant and cauipment 6,81 681
Provision [or employvee beneliis
Compensated absences 46,44 23184
Giratuity 0. 002
Tatal 17,398.72 16,533.03
a} Refer note 42 for disclosure az per Ind AS 37 on “Provisions, Contingent Liabilitics and Contingent Asscls®,
b} Disclosures as per Ind AR 19 - "Employee Benefils” are provided i note 35.
24 Hegulatory deferrnl scesunt eredil balances
! Lakhs
Particulars As al Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
U micount of
Dalerred tax (refer b helow) 1071526 14,423 30
Tatal 10, 71526 14,423.30

a) Regulatory deferral account balances have been accounted in line with Accounting policy no. C4 (Mote 1) Refer Note 45 for detailed

disclosures.

b) CERC TanfT Regulitions, 2019 provide for grossing-up the rate of return on equity based on eflfeclive mx mate for the financial year based on
the actual tax paid during the year on the gentration income. Accordingly, deferred tax Niability will be reversed in future years when the
relaled I¥TL forms part of current iax. Keeping in view ihe above, the Company has recognieed such deforred tax as regulatbony deformal

aceount debit batances, since the amounts are recoverable in future years.

G-
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limifed
Motes bo the linancial stalements (confinued)

25 Hevenue from operations

T Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year coded

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Encry salkes 34247408 2.57.835.56

Sale of fly ash 285.52 230,83

Less: Transferred to My azh ulilisation reserve fund 285.52 230,83

Oilher operating, imcene

lmnzrest lrom customers - 58.51
Total 3,42,474.08 2.57.894.07

) Encrgy sales ore net off rebate o beneficiaries amounting to ¥ 2 286 48 Lakhs (31 March 2022: T 17800 Lakhs)

b} Refer note 48 for defailed disclosure in respect of revenue from contract with customers,

¢) Excess Billing over and above the Ash transportalion expenses during financial year 2021-22 has been reversed in financial year 2022-23 to the
exlent of #3328 19 Lakhs

d) The Company bas not surendered or disclosed any income which was not recorded in the books of sccoums during the year in the lax

assessment under the Income Tax Act, 1961
) The compauny s oot taded or nvested in cryplo currency or viriual curmency during the financial year.

26 (Mher income

¥ Lakhs
Particulars For the year emded Faor the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Interest income from financial assels measured at amortised cost
Depaosil with bunks @03 131.74
Chhers 012
Interest on income tax refund 43.50 -
Other non-onerating incame
Late payment surcharge from beneficianes G889 2.552.69
Miscellancous income (refer note & below) 7303 190.06
Sub-lotal 9955 T 287461
Less: Transfermed to expenditure during construction period (net)- note 32 - -
Todal 99,55 LET4.61

) Miscellansous income includes rent received fom employees, recoveries from vendors and other miscellaneous receipts




Rhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limiled
Nuotes in the financkal siatemenis (continued)

27 Fuel cost
¥ Lakhs
Particulars For fhe year caded For The year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Coal 1,E9.417.44 1,20,782.14
ol 531445 2,786 02
Total —_—LSTILE  ___ LDS6RIG

a) Coal are subject 1o quality check in tooms of grade, Central Coallickds Limited and Nodhemn Coallickds Limited arc the supplicrs of coal which

18

charges GST and rovalty wien it issees debit note but does nol reverse the same in case of credit note

Employee benelits expense

1 Lakhs

Parliculars For the year ended For the year ended

31 Narch 2023 31 March 2022
Salaries and wapes 535971 665531
Contribation to provident and other funds 1,598.93 1,576,461
Staff welfare expenses 1,262.54 1,127.98
Sub-total 11,221.18 9,350.90
Less: Trans(ered to expenediture during construction period (net)- note 33 - 94163
Le==s: Allocated 1o fuel cost 123.10 1s
Totul LLY Eﬁ {1213 i “H 11

a) Dizclosures as per Ind AS 19 = "Employec Denelits® in respect of providion made wowands vanous employes benelits are provided in note 35,

b} In accordance with Accounting Policy no. C.13 (note 1), an amount of ¥ 1,265.31 Lakhs {31 March 2022: ¥ 1,271 66 Lakhs) towards provident
fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical faeilities £ other terminal benefits and € 30596 Lakhs (31 March 2022 T 291.72 Lakhs)
towards beave & odher benelits, are paid fpayable 1o the kolding company (NTPC Lid) and incleded in ‘Employee Benefits',

k-]

Finanes cosls

¥ Lakhs

Particulars ~ For the year ended
31 March 2023

For ihe year ended
31 March 2022

Finanee cosis on Aunncisl labilities messored st amortised oot

Rapes term b 41,0379 40.0015.74
Unwinding of discount on vendor lmbilites 56.65 7307
Cash credil account 600,21 21203
Interest on Income Tax 136.11
41,694, K 4043705
Chiher barmowane cost (refar nole a below) - 505502
Sub-tatal A L694. B0 45.502.07
Less: Transferred 1o expenditure during construction peiod (net)- note 32 1.199.78 732108
Total 4049500 EERE T

a) During the vear ended 31 March 2022, the Company had incurmed prepayment charges of € 5,065 02 Lakhs for loans amounting to T 1,50,000.00

o

Lakhs baunsfered fom Powsr Finance Corporation Limited to Siae Dank of India.

Depreciation and amaertisation expense

¥ Lakhs
Tarttaiaks For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

On property, plant and equipment- Note 2 4521535 37,200, 50
On intangible assets- Notc 4 748 ]
45,112.83 37,108,121

Less: Allocated to Tuel eost 1,780 28 1 685 92
Loss: Translered (o sxpendilure during comslrection period (net)- nate 32 - 3 B
Taotal 43,442.55 3548744
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MNotes to the financial statements (continued)

31 Other expenses

T Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

Power charges (net of recoveries) 27490 104.09
Waler charpes 916.93 764.72
Stores consumed 292.30 215.36
Repairs and mainienance
Buildings 373.63 22837
Plant &Machinery 8,725.12 7.426.47
Others 1,106.44 1,132.09
Load dispatch center charges 80.42 8324
Insurance 733.25 818.50
Interest to beneficiaries 524.19 -
Rales & Taxes 851 4.77
Training & recruitment expenses 125 2.18
Communicalion expenses 120.20 111,97
Inland Travel 465.54 472,63
Foreign Travel = -
Tender expenses (nel of recoveries) (11.59) (5.83)
Payment to auditors 7.01 395
Advertisement and publicity 40.85 24.96
Securily expenses 2,883.40 2,623.78
Enlertainment expenses 90.18 117.47
Expenses for guest house (nel of recoveries) 95.49 84,81
Education expenses - 17.02
Ash utilization and marketing expenses 6,243.81 2,20831
Professional charges and consultancy fee 536.93 514.60
Legal expenscs 73.18 40.51
EDP hire and other charges 0.94 0.44
Printing and stationery 2529 9.06
ITire charge of vehicles 251.20 192,09
Net loss in foreign currency transactions and translations 192.99 (46.88)
Transport Vehicle running expenses 16.78 12.22
Horticulture Expenses ) 115.21 40.17
Hire charges of construction equipment 6.99 16.65
Loss on disposal/write-off of PPE ; - 229
Corporate social responsibility expense (refer note 4() 1,102.58 7.06
Miscellaneous expenses 134.62 432.09
25,428.54 17,748.96
Less: Allocated to fucl cost 750.40 994.32
Less: Transferred to expenditure during construction period (net)- note 32 - 1492
Less: I'ransferred to lly ash utilisation reserve fund (911.42) 915.50
Total 25,589.56 15,824.22
1) Miscellaneous expenses includes bank charges, tree plantation, provision lor arbitralion, ele.
b) Details in respect of payment to auditors:
Statutory audit fee 236 27
Tax audit fee 0.77 0.59
Other services 3.88 0.59
Total 7.01 395

¢) CERC Regulalions provides that where afier the truing-up, the tariff’ recovered is more than the tanff approved by the Commission, the

generating Company shall pay 1o the beneficiaries the over recovered amount along-with simple interest. Accordingly, the interest payable to the
beneficiaries amounting lo ¥ 524.19 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ Nil) has been accounted and disclosed as “Interest to beneliciaries’.

R
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32 Expenditure during construction period (net)

T Lakhs

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

A. Employee benefits expense
Salarivs and wages
Contribution to provident and other funds
Staff welfare expenses

Total (A)

B. Finance costs
Inferest on
Rupee term loans
Unwinding of discount on account of vendor liabilities
Total (B)

C. Depreciation and amortisation

D. Generation, administration & other expenses
Others
EDP Hire and other charges

Total (D)

Grand total (A+B+C+D)

* Carried to Capital work-in-progress - (note 3)

64Y9.59
153.58
88.46

1,143.13
56.65

941.63

7,247.91
73.17

1,199.78

7,321.08

34.86

15.44
(0.52)

14.92

1,199.78

831249 #
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33 Fair value measurements

@) Fimancial insiruments by category
All Mnaneinl mseels and liabilities viz caeh and cash equivalents, bank balunces other than cush und cosh equivalents, trade receivahles,
unhilled revenue, torm loans, payable for capital cxpenditure, trade payahles, interest accrued an borrowings, employes related liabilities,
payable 1o related parties, deposits from coniractors amd suppliers and payable for expenses are measured at amortized cost.

b} Fair value hierarchy )
This section explains the judgements and estimates made in determining the fur values of the Gnaneml instruments (hat are (a) recanioed

and measured at Fair value and (b) mensured at amaortised cost and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial statements

Level 2 ¥ Lakhs
Financial Instruments which are mensured sl amortieed cost for which Tair As at Az an
values are disclosed 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Finuncinl lnbilities:
Rupce Term Loan 4 89 257 52 5.19.612.69
Favahle for capital expenditure 434.72 505,52
Tatal 4.89.692.24 20, 018.21

Level 2: The fair value of financie] instrements thit are not Waded in an active markes is determined using valuation techniques which
maximise the use of ohservable market data and rely as linle as possible on cntity specific estimales. 1T all significant inputs required (o fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in bevel 2

2} Fair valoe of linancinl nesels nod labilities measared at amortised oot

T Lakhs
Fair value of inancial liahilitics As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
_measured al amortized cost Carrying amount Falr value Carrying amount Fair value
Rupee term loans 4 8632789 4 89.257.52 5.14,723.71 5,19612.69
Payable for capital expenditure 33145 43472 47081 50552
Tatal 4. 56,691.34 459,692 34 2.13.203. 52 ;ggll ﬂ gI

The carrying amounts of short term cash and cash equivalents, bank balances oiher than cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, unbilled
revenue, trade myehles, interest accrued on borrowings, employee related liabilities, payable to related parties, deposits from contraciors and
suppliers and payable for expenses are considered to be the same as their Bur values, dee to their shor-lemm nsure.

The fuir values for Rupee term loans and payeble for capial expendiise were calculsied based on cash Nlows discounted using a curment
lending rate, They are classified as level 2 Fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to the inclusion of unoheervable inputs.

34 Financial risk management
The Company®s principal financial liabilities comprise loans in domestic curnency and payables for capital expenditure. The main purpose of
these financial habihtics 15 to finance the Company®s operalions. The Company”s principal Tnsncel sssels include cash al bank and deposils
with bank.
The Company 15 exposed Lo the following risks from ils use of linancial insruments:
Markedt risk
= Credit nak
- Liquidity risk
This note presents information about the Company’s exposure 1 cach of the above risks, the Company’s objectives, policies and processes
Tor measuning and managing risk

Risk management framewaork
The Company's aclivities makes it susceptible to various risks. The Company has taken adequate measaures (o address such concems by

developing adequale systems and practices. The Company’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of markets and
secks lo manage the impact of these nzks on the Company”s financial performance

The Board of Directors has overall responathihiy for the estahhshment and oversighl of the Company®s nisk management Framework

The Company’s risk management policics are established 1o identify and analyse the risks faced by the Company, 1o set appropriate risk limits
and controls, and o monitor risks and adberence 1o limils. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in mérkel conditbons and the Company's activitics.
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Motes to the financial statements (continucd)

34 Financial risk management (continued}

a) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and interest rates will affect the Company's income or
the value of itz holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market risk exposures
within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return. The Doand of directors is respansible for setting up of policies and procedures to
mnnage oarket nisks of the company,

Interest rate risk

The {.'mnpnny = mrmd Io mileresl mle risk BIISE, fram lang, berm hnrrnwmg wilh IIrl.‘lI!trlE inlerest mla 'I'Iu-.{‘n.'mlp.nl'lgI % gtpcnﬁl to inlerest
rate risk hecause the cazh flows asseciated with Aoating rate harrawing will Muctuate with changes in interest rate

Refer note 16 and 19 for inferest rale profile of the Company s inleresi-beaning financial inslrument at the reporling dale.

Cash Mow sensitivity analysis for varinble-rate instraments
A d‘.\angg af 1 basix po'int,s i inkerest raics at the n,'poﬂing_ date would have increascd (doorcased ) nqul.i}r:url'] pn:l-ﬁl or losx I:ry the amounis
shown below. This analysiz assumes that all other variables remain constant. The analysis iz performed on the sume basis for the previous
YE@r.

 Lakhs

Particalars Profit { Loss)
100 bp increase 100 bp decrease

Rupee term loans
For the vear ended 31 March 2023 (5.026.75) 502675
For the year ended 31 March 2022 {5.BBG05) 5. BRG05

Currency risk

The Company execules import agreements o the purpose of purchase of capital goods, As per the CERC regulations, the gainfoss on
mecount of exchange rale variations an all long term and short term foréign curréncy monctary ilems 15 recoverable from beneficanes. Hence,
the impact of strengthening or weakening of Indion rupee against USD and Furo on the statement of profit and loss would not be very
significant.

The currency prodile of financial labilities as at 31 March 2023 aod 31 March 2022 are oz below.

¥ Lakhs
Particalars Asat As ar
: 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fayable for capital expenditure
Usn 136,14 . 160,10
EURD 4,104 86 4.930 06
Tatal — 42000 509016

Sensitivity analysis
Since The mmpact of sirenglhening or weskening of [NR against USD and Ewo on the statement of peafit and loss would nod ba very
sipnificant; therefore, sensitivity analysis for currency risk is net disclosed,

Embedded derivatives

Certain contracts of the Company for construction of power plants with vendors awarded through Intemational Competitive Ridding, are
denominated 10 a third currency 1. o currency which is wol the functional currency of any of the parties to the contract. The Company has
examined the applicability of provisions of Ind AS 109 “Financial Instruments’ for accounting of embedded denvatives in such contracts
considering the opinion of the Expert Advisory Committee of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India in ihis regard wsued o parent
company MTPC Limited.

The Company has avarded the above contrmcts without any intenlion to ener into any derivative contract or 1o leverage! take position and
without any optionfintention to nel sciile at any point of time during the tenure of the contrsct. Such contracts, which nommally have a lenore
ranging from three to ten years, consist of numerous items having varicd dates of delivery uod payment schedule, Further, forward exchange
rates are not realistically available for such longer periods. Accordingly, the Company i3 of the view that separatcly recognising the foreign
currency derivative embedded in such contracts is impracticable. Moreover, the option available under Ind AS 109 1o designote the entire
Tybrid contract at Fair value through profil or oz is alse not considered practical in the absence of & reliable valuation model.

Further, the Company s a rale regulated entity whoss tariffs are determined by CERC using a cost plus methodology for which, the aclunl
costs incurred on account of property, plant and equipment is considered for determining the capital base for fixation of tarilf. Morcover, the
impact on the financial statements will not be material having regard o owistanding contracts as al the yenr end and also the fucl ot the
Company is in the regulatory environment for which e provisions of Ind AS 114 *Hegulatory deferral accounts” are applicable. Hence, the
Company has cantineed 1o account for such contracts withaut separately recognising the foreign currency derivative embedded therein
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34 Financial rick management {continued)

b Credit risk
Credit nisk is the nisk of financial loss lo the Company il a customer or counterparty 1o a financiel instrument fails o mesl ils contractual
abligations resulting in o finmncisl boss to the Compory. Credil sk anses poncigally from irade receivables, loans & advances, cash and cash

equivitlents and deposils wilh banks and financial institutions.

Trade receivables and unbilled revenue

The Company primarily sclls electricity 10 bulk customers comprising, mainly railways ownel by ceniral government and stale clecirical
wtilities ovwnerd by State Govesnment. The risk of default in case of power supplied to these state owned companics is considered o be
insignificant. Unbilled revenus primarily relates 1o the Company's right o consideration for work complefed but nod balled at the reporling
daibe and have substantially the same risk charascieristics as the trade receivables for the same type of contracts.

A defaull oceurs when in the view of management there is no significant pessibility of recovery of receivables afler considening all available
options for recovery,

Cazh and cash equivalents and Deposits with banks
The company has banking operations with State Bank of India and Canara Bank which are scheduled banks. These banks have high eredit
mling and riek of defauh with thess banke iz conzidered to be ins.im\il’lmrn,

(i) Exposare to credil rvisk
‘The carmying amount of financial assels represents the maximum credif exposure. The muximum exposure (o coedil risk al the reporting date

Was:
¥ Lakhs

Particulars Asal Asal
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Financial assets For which loss allowance is measured using Lifetime Expected

Credit Losses (ECL)- Simplilied approach

Trade Reccivable 4570375 68,766, T8

Onher financial assets 333479 24.11

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measured using 12 monihs Expecied

Credit Losses (ECL)

Cash and cash equivabent 1.782.75 2043.70

Oiher bank balances 1.776.85 42233

Tolal ‘I Zégﬁ.l-t Tl EEE

{ily Provision for expected eredif losses

Financial assets for which loss allowance is measored using 12 month expected eredit losses

The company has assets where the counter- parties have sufficien capacity to meet the abligitions and where the rith of default is very lov,
Hence based on historie defaull rates, the Company believes thal, no impairment allowance 18 necessary in respect of above mentioned
finaneial nsscts,

Financial asscts for which loss allowance is measured using life time expeeted eredit losses

The Company has customers {Railways and siale povernment wlilibies) with capacily o mect the obligstionz and thereflore the nsk of default
15 negligible or nil. Further, management belicves that the unimpaired amounts that are past due by more than 30 days are still collectible in
full, based on historical payment behoviour and extensive unalysss of customer credil rek. Henee, no imparrment loss has been recogmised
during the reporting periods in respect of trade receivables

(iii) Ageing analysis of trade receivables

¥ Lakhs
Particulars Agat As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Lnballed 31.733.2% 2707491
=180 days past dug 1397048 41691 87
=1 80 darys past due - -
Toltal
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A4 Finnneial risk management (continued)

¢} Liauldity risk

Liquidiry rigk is the risk that the Comgany will encounter difficulty in mesting the obligations associnted with its financial linbilities that are scitled
by delivering cash o another financial asset. The Company®s approach to managing liguidity is to cnswre, as far as possible, that it will alwiys
have sullicient liquidity o meet its liabilities when due, under both nommal and st conlitions, without incurring unaccepable losscs of
risking damage 10 the Company’s reputation

The Campany has an appropriaie liquidity risk mangesnent famevork for the management of shorl, medium and long Wrm funding and liquidity
munugement requirements, The Company manages liquidity risk by maintsining mdequaie cosh reserves, banking facilities and rescrve bormowing
facilities by cominuously monilasing forecast and aciual cash Mlows and matching the maturity profiles of financial mscts ond lianhsilities:

The Company’s treasury depariment is respensitde for managing the short tem and long erm liquidity requirements of the Campany. Shott tem
liquidity situation is reviewed daily by Treasury. The Board of directors has esiablished policies to manage lquidity risk and the Company”s
trensury depmitment operates in line with such policies. Any breaches of these policics are reparted o the Busardd af Threctars. Long term liquidity
position is reviewsd on a regular basis by the Board of Directors usd appropriate decisions are taken accarding to the siluation.

Typically the Company ensures that il has sulficient cash on demand to meet expected opemtional expenses for a pericd of 60 days, including the
servicing of financial obligations, this excludes the potential impact of extreme cireumslances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural

dizagrers

(i} Finaneing arrangemenis

The company had access to the following undrawn borrowing facilities at the end of the reporting period

¥ Lakhs

Particulars

Floniling-raie lorrowings

Asal
31 March 2023

Azl
31 March 2022

Term loans 1,005 000,00 25.000.00
Working capital Timit 20,339.00 24.558.94
{ii) Maturities af finaneial labilities
The foldbwving are the contractual maturities of non-derivative financial liabilities, based on contractual cash Mows
Ax at3] March 2023 ¥ Lakhz
Particulars 3 months or | 3-12 months 1-2 years 2-5 years Mare than 5 Tatal

less VEArs
Rupee Term Loan-from Banks 10.073,32 3021997 41,126.63 1.24,392.3% 28051558 4,586,327 89
Current bomawings . 8.53503 - - . 9.535.03
Trade ["zvables 2343518 - = = I3.435.18
Payable for capital expenditure 44 558 69 45 - 4402214
Interest nccrusd but nol due on 1,218.09 - - 1.218.09
barowines
Depasits fram contractors and others 29,10 . 29.10
Pavable 1o NTPC - - -
Favable 1o emplovees 1.515.42 - - 151542
Hank overdrall 1383726 - 13, BET 26
[Oibers LD 65 - . . - 1,064,685 |
[Tainl 9578174 | 30,755 00 AL 40008 | 1,324,392 39 1.80,515.58 5,81,934.79 |
Asat 31 March 2032 ) _ Tlakhs
Farticulars I months or | 3-11 monihs 1-2 years 1-5 years More than 5 Tatul

bess YEArs ]
Rupec Term Loan-from Banks 0654 10 9.052.29 IETI6AR| 11620914 12104181 5.014,723.71
Current bomowings . 25441 .06 . - 25.441.05
Trade Pavables 10,792.10 - - 10,7910
[avable for caoilal cxpenditers 42,104.71 - 479 81 A2 58452
[nterest mocreed but not due on 100134 - . 1,001.34
[ i Tl
[Dreposits from contractors and others 423 .55 - 422 55
[wvable o NTPC 451 0 4R1.00
Pavable to employess |20 &2 - 120682
Bank wverdeall 145970 - 145070

68,18 . - . . (NS

[ Tainl 67, 220.50 54 49335 9. 20619 106,200, 14 3,21,041.81 S.98, 180,98

(a3
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A5 Disclosures as per Ind AS 19 - "Employec Benefits®

{a) Defined contribution plans:

The company depasits contribution for Provident Fund in funds sdministered and manoaged by Government for its employees. During the year,
amount of ¥ 29,15 Lakhs (31 March 2022: 2 14.12 Lakhs) is recognized as employee benefil expense.

In accordance with Accounting Policy no. C.13 (note 1), an amount of ¥ 1,265.31 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 1.271.66 Lakhs) wowards providem
fund, pension, gratuity, post retirement medical facilities & other terminal benefits and ¥ 305,96 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 291.72 Lakhs) towards
leave & olher benefits, are paid fpayable o the holding company (NTPC Lid) and included in 'Employee Benefits’ in relation to employees of

MNTPC Limited on secondment to the Company.

(b} Defined benefit plan (Gratoity):

The Company has a defined benefit pramity plan. Every employee who has rendered continuous service of five years or more is enlitled (o gratuity
al 15 days salary (15/26 X last drawn basic salary plus dearness allowance) for each completed year of service subject to a maximum of ¥ 20.00
[akhs on superannuation, resipnation, termination, disablement or on death, considering the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, as
amended, The gratuity scheme is unfunded and the liability for gratuity scheme is recopnised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Based on the actuarial valuation repart, the following tables sct out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognized in the Company’s

financial statemeants as at balance sheet date:

(i) Defined benefit liability ¥ Lakhs
Particulars As ul As al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Provision for gratuity
MNon-current 15.08 15.63
Current 0.02 0.02
Total 15,10 15.65
(i) Movement in ned delined benelil liabiliiy 2 Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
I March 2023 3] March 2032
Opening balance 15.65 10.17
Included in profit or loss:
Current service cost 06.52 4.72
Past service cost - -
Interest cost .10 0.68
Total amount recopnized in profit or loss 762 £ 40
Included in OCI:
Remeasurement loss/{pain) arising from:
Financial assumptions (141} (0.90)
Experience adjustment (. 76) 0,98
Total amount recagnized in OC1 __[B.1T) - (LR
Contributicns rom the employer = =
Dencfits paid = =
Closing balance 1510 . ] 15.65
(i) Plan assets
The company docs not have any plan azsels,
(iv) Actuarial assumptions
The following were the principal actuarial assumplions at the reporting date;
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Discount rate 7.40% 700086
Salary escalation rate 6.50% 6,505
Retirement apes (years) 60 years 60 years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disabilicy 100%5 of IALM 100% of lALM
(2012-14) (2012-14)
Withdrawal rate
Up 1o 30 years 3.00% 1.00%
From 31 to 44 years 2.00% 2.008%%
Above 44 years 1004 1.00%%
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35 Disclosures as per Ind AS 19 < *Employee Benelits® {continued)

The principal assumptions are the discount rate & salary growth rate. The discount rate is based upon the market yields available on Govemnment
bonds at the accounting date relevant to currency of benefit payments for a term that matches the liabilities. Salary growth rate is company's long
term best estimate as 1o salary increases and takes aceount of inflation, seniority, promaotion, business plan, HI policy and other relevant factors
on long term basis as provided in relevant accounting standard.

Adtrition rates are the company’s best estimate of employee tumnover in future determined considering factors sech as nature of business and
industry, retention palicy, demand and supply in employment market, standing of the company, business plan, HR Policy elc. as provided in the
relevant accounting standard.

(v) Sensitivity analysis

Significant actuarinl assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate and expected salary increase. The
sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting
period, while holding all other assumptions constant:

T Lakhs
Particulars — Increase Decrease
Az at 31 March 2023
Discount rate (0. 50% movement) {1.55) 1.79
Salary escalation rate (0.50% movement) 179 (1.58)
Az at 31 March 2022
Discount rate (0. 30% movement) {1.62) 1.87
Salary escalalion rate (0.50% movenent) 1.87 (1.64)

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawals are not material and hence impact of chanpge due to these are not caleulated. Sensitivities ag rate of
increase of pensions in payment, rate of increase of pensions belore retirement and life expectancy ane not applicable,

(vi) Risk exposure

Salary Increases: Actual salary increases will increase the Plan's liability. Increase in salory incresse mie sssumplion in fulure valuations will
also increase the liability.

Investment Risk: IF Plan is funded then assets liabilities mismatch & actual investment return on assets lower than the discount rate assumed at
the last valuation date can impact the labiliy.

Discount Rate: Reduction in discount rate in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's liability.

Martality & disability: Actual deaths & disability cases proving lower or higher than assumed in the valuation can impact the ligbilities,
Withdrawals: Actunl withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and chanpe of withdrawal rates at subsequent valuations
can impact Plan's liability.

(vii) Expected maturity analysis of the gratuity benefits is as follows

% Lakhs

Particulars As al As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Less than | year 0,02 0.02
Bebween =2 years 0.02 0.44
Between 2-3 years .98 1.08
Over 5 years 14.08 14.11
Toitul 15.10 15.65

Expected contributions (o post=employment benefit plans for the year ending 31 March 2024 are € 8.56 Lakhs.

The weighted average duration of the defined benefit plan obligation at the end of the reporting period iz 23,02 years (31 March 2022: 23.32
years).

c) Other long term employee benefit plans (compensated absence):

The Company provides for eamed leave benafit (including compensated absences) and half-pay leave o the employees of the Company which
accrue annually al 30 days and 20 days respectively, Eamed leave (EL) is en-cashable while in service. Half-pay leaves (HPL) are en-cashable
anly on separation beyond the age of 50 years up 1o the maximum of 300 days. However, total number of leave (i.e. EL & HPL combined) that
can be encashied on superannuation shall be restricted to 300 days and no commutation of half-pay leave shall be permissible. The scheme is
unfunded and liability for the same is recognised on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Diuring, the year, provision amounting to ¥ 22.60 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 8.43 Lakhs) for the year has been made on the basis of actuarial
valustion at the year end wnd debited 10 the Statement of Profit and Loss.

O
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Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
Motes to the financial statements (continued)

36 The Company has a system of obtaining periodec conlirmation of balanccs from banks and other partics. There are no unconflinmed balanees in
respect of bank acoownts and borrowings from banks & hnancial institulons. In addition, reconcilialion with benelicianes amd othtr cusbomens s
generally done on quarterly basis. So far as tradclother payables and loans and advances are concemed, the balance confirmation letlers with the
megaireg assertion as refemed m the Standard on Audimg (5A) 505 (Revised) * Extornal Conlirmabions®, were senl to the parties. Some of such
halances are subjed o confirmationfreconcilation. Adjusiments, il any will be accounted for on confimmationfeconciliation of the same, which in
the opinzon af the management will not have a material impact, In the opinion off the management, the value of assels, ofther than property, plant
and equipmeni, on realisation in the ardinary cowrse ol business, will not be less than the value at which these are stated in 1he Balance Sheet

37 Discloswre as per Ind AS 21 “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rajes®
Thee aniount of exchangs differences (net) debited po the ststement of prafit and boas is ¥ 192,99 Lakhs (31 March 2022: credited 10 the statement of
profit and loss £ 46, 88 Lakhs),

38 Disclosure as per Ind AS 23 *Borrowing Costs
Borrowing vests cugitulised during the yeur is T 1,043.13 Lakhs (3] Mwrch 2022; T 7,321.08 Lakhs),

39 Income inxes

1) Incame lax expense

% Lakhs
For the year cnded

31 March 2022

Farticulars For the year endel
31 March 2023

Current (A% sxpense

Current year 493863 6.055.01

Enrlier years (1,008,38) (27.84)

Pertaining to regulatory deferal acoounts (A) BG1.16 938.77

“Total current 1ax expense (1) 4.791.41 TH65.94
Deferred tax cxpense

Ornigination and reversal of wemporary dilferences E404.98 11,640,158

Less: MAT credit entitbement {4, 72%.77) (7.,603.06)

Tatal deferved tax expense () 3,705.21 4,037,009

Income tax expense (D=H+C-A) T,635.46 T 10,964.26
Incaime tax periaining io repulabory deferral sccound balances LA 3877
Todul inx expense including tax on movement in regalatory deferral account
halances R 496,62 11.903.03
b Income tax recognised in other comprehensive income
¥ Lakhs
Particulars For ihe year cnded For ihe year coded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Otlver comprehensive income
Met actuarial grins/{losses) on defined benefit plans 817 (0 0R)
Incame lax relating to above flems (2.85) -
Other comprehensive Income / (expense) for the year, net of incame tax 532 (0.0
¢) Reconciliation of tax cxpense and the acconnting profit mauliplied by Indin’s domestic iax rale
- ¥ Lakhs
Particalars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Miarch 2023 31 March 2021
FProfit before tax including movement in regulatory deferral nccount balances J1, 59553 44,772.78
Tan weing the Company®s domestic tax rave of 17472% (30 March 2022: 17.472%)
574747 7,.R22.70
Tax effect of’

Moa-deduclible tnx expenses 5232 T 08
Previous year ax liahility {1,008 38) (27.84)
Minimum aliernate tax adjustments (4,789.77) (7,603.06)
Dieferned i asser 849498 11,640.15

Tatal 1av expense recognized in the statement of profil and loas

R 1N S .| 1 |}

¢} The conpany has recogniced diferred tax lability after adjusment of depreciation difference likely to be reversed during the tax haliday as Unit |
of the company s chigible for tax haliday ws B01A of Income Tax Act, 1961,

G
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Motes to the financial statements (continoed)

40 Corporaie Social Hesposibilily (C5HR)
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2003 read with guidelines issved by Depattment of Puldic Enterprizes, GO, the Company 15 required o
spend, in every financial year, an least two per cent of the average net profits of the Company made during the three immediately preceding
Onancial years in accordance with its CER Policy, The Company has deposited the amound of provision for CSR expense in separate bank aceount
s per e prowisions of Section 135 af the (_"mlp.llii-:s Act, 2013, The details of CSR expenses for the year are as under

. o - T Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For the year eaded
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amound requined o be spent during the year GE7.14 432,50
Aot gpont durning the yoar
(i} Constrectionacquisition of any asset - -
(n) On purposes ather than (1) above 391.92 7.06
T Lakhs
Particulars For the year ended For ihe year ended
- ” 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Various hend of expenses included in above: )
Eradicating hunger and poverty, health care and sanitation 36453 242
Education and skill development 10,48 -
At and culture 16.36 0.86
Disaster managemend, including rdeel, rehabalitalion and reconstisclion aclivilies - 150
Orthers 0.55 028
The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required (o be spent 710.66 41544
by the Company during the year
The amount of shortfall at the end of the year out of the amount required to be spent &ET. 14 41544
by the Comoany during the vear
Tatal of previous years short fall 3.52
Provision Fer USKE Expenses
Opening Lalance A415 44 =
Add: Provision created during the period GRT. 14 432 50
Less: Provision utilised during the period 391,92 1.06
Closing Balance ZLL66 41544

41 Related parly disclosures

) List of relaled parties:
(i} Parent company:

RTPC Lsmabed

{ii) Entity having significant influence:

Ministry of Railways

fiii) Key mmnagerial personne] (M

Shei Ramesh Babu WV { woe £ 1B August 2N Non-gxecutive Director
Sturi LK. Jain fw.e T 16 Julv 18) Nun-excculive Direclos
s, Renu Narang (w.c.l 01 Scptenvber 3201 9) Nan-executive Dircctor
Shiri Srintvashabg S Ganesh Satyn Dusanapud {woe § 30 November 2002 Addinienal Dirccior
Shri Sital Kumar {w.e.l 14 Febuary 2022 upto 17 November 2022) Mon-executive Director
Shei Praveen Saxena [ w.e f. 06 Decamber 2021 upta 19 January 2022) MNon-executive Direclor
Lhirt Sudharshan Habuo Velivala { woe £ 05 March 2021 upto 22 November 20210 Mon-executive Direein
Shri Ravi Prakash (w.c.l 08 May 2022} Chiel Exceutive Officer
Shri P M Jena (w.e. F01 June 2020 upto 28 Apal 2022) Chiel Executive Oficer
Shri W Venkataramana (w.a.l. 01 Jamnusary 2002) Chiel Financial Oificer
Shri Amarcdra Kumar fw.e.l 13 Jansary 2021 upta 31 December 20210} Chiel Financial Officer
Shri Kamal Nath Thakur (w.e.l 18 February 2022} Campany Secretary
Shri Vishal Garg {w.e.[ 30 October 2017 wpto @ Felauary 2022) Comipany Sccrelary

(v} Joinl venlure of punrenl company:
Uity Powertech Limited
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Bhartiyn Hail Rijlee Company Linited
Moies lo [he lnaneial statements (continued)

41 Related party disclosures (continmed)

(%) Entitics under the control of the sume government;

The Company is a subsidiary of Central Public Sector Undenaking (CP3U) controlled by Central Government by holding majonity of shares {reler
note 14), Fursuant (o Paragraph 25 & 26 of Indian Accounting S1andard 24, entitkes over which the same government has control or joint comtrol
of, or significant influence, then the reposting entity and other entities shall be regarded as related partics. The Company has applicd the exemption
available for government related entitics and have made limited disclosures in the financial statements. Such antities with which the Campany has
significant transactions include but not limited to Central Coalfields Ltd, BHEL L., SAIL Ltd., Indian Oil Cerperation Lid., Bhamt Petroleum
Comoration Lid.. NRCC Lid, PGCIL. Rites Limited. cic.

by Transactions with the related parties are as follows:
% Lakhs

Partleulars i Far the year ended Far the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
(i) Transaction with parent company NTPC Limited
Consultancy services recaived 387.49 E25.T4
Deputation of Employees - 1,563.37
Final Dividend paid 3,700.00 1,450,00
Interim Divedend paid 18,500.00 11,100,040
(W) Transaction with catity having significant inMuence- Ministry of Hailways
Sale of encrpy 31901197 2.33,617.50
Transpoietion of coul 3100555 12 6799
Final Dividend paid 1,300.00 320,00
Interim Diividend paid 6,500.00 3,900.00
(HIy Compenzation to key managerial personmel
Shaoat term cmploves benelits 131.93 18642
Most employment benefits 2516 4836
{iv) Transactions with joinl venture af parcnl company
Utility Powertech Lid (Qoeration and maintenance services) 2.871.64 201204
(¥) Transactions with (he related narties under the contral af the same gavernment
Purchase afl Mucl
Central Coalfiebds Limited BI1.823.87 8973298
MNuorthemn Coalfields Limited 2228319 -
Purchase of equipment and erection services- Bharat Heavy Electricals Limited 26,607 32 16,419.04
Purchase of Tugl
Hindustan Petroleum Corporation Limived 1.190.84 4 064 49
Indian Ol Corperatien Limived 3.280.95 981.27
Bharat Petroleum Corporation Limited 293929 1,555.71
Parchase of capital goods
Sieel Authority of India Limited 2.311.40 Gl16.42
Rharal Earth Sovers Limited 14523 2R B2
HMT Machine Tools Limited
Transmission charees- U Controller of Inala Limited 575951 8371.00
Denosit work for coal transportation svatem- Ritas Limited 958 14 2,754.57
Clvil canstruetion- National Buildines Construction Comaratian Limited 4%1.12 £19.39
Transmission charges- Power Grid Cormporation of India Limited 2053 142 84
Insurance services. The Oviental Insuranca Company' Limibed 2050 OHE M
) Ouistandiog balnees with related parties are oy follows:
¥ Lakhs
Pariiculars An ap Az al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Amount recervable from parent company- NTPC Lid 3,704,282 .
Aamount payable o parent company- MTPC Lid - 562.00
Amount payable 1o joint venlure of parent conmpany= Uility Powenlech Lid 41588 A1 50
Amaunt receivable firan Minktny of Railways for cale of enenpy 681879 24,901 48

d) Terms and conditions of transactions with the related paribes

(1) Transsctions with the relaled parics are made on normal commercial terms and conditions and at market rates,

(n} The Company s assigning |obs on contract basis, for sundry work in plant wo Mfs Unility Powertech Lod (UPL), a 50050 joint venture between
NTPC Limited and Reliance Infrastruciure Lid, UPL inter-alia undentakes jobs soch as overhauling, repair, refurbishment of vasious mechanical
and electrical equipments of plant. The Company has entered into Power Station Maintenance Agreement with UPL from time to time, The rales
ore Tixed on oosl plus basis afller mulual discussion and afler lzking into account the prevailing market conditions.

(i) MTPC Limited is seconding its personned 1o the company as per the terms and conditions agreed between the companics, which are similar to
thase applicable fur secondmens of employees 1o other companics and institutions. The cost incurred by NTPC Limited towards superannuation
and employee berefits ang recovered from the company.

:!?Nu:
*Q% 514818C




Blurtiya Rail Bijles Company Limited
Motes to the fnancial stalements (continucd )

42 Disclosure as per Ind A5 37 *Provisions, Cenlingenl Linbilitics and Contimgent Asscis®

a) Provisions for ablipations incidental am land acquisition
Provisien for obligations incidental Lo land acquisition includes expenditure on rehabalitation & resettlement (RER) including the amauniz payable
to the project alfocted persons (PAPS) towards land, cxpendilure Tor providing community facilitics and cxpenditune in connection with
environmental aspecis of the project. Company has estimated the povision based on the Rebabilittion Action Plan (RAP) approved by the
boardicompetent suthoniy. The outflow of suid provision is expected 19 be incwmed immediately on fulfilment of conditions by the land oustees/
receipts of directions of the localfgovernment authonitics, Movement in provision is as follows;

B Lakhs
Partlculars For (he year ended For ihe year en
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Carryimg wienunl ul (he beginming of e yesr 13,296.39 16,224.80
Add: Additions during the year 2.330.02 -
Less: Amounts used during the year 1,507.15 92841
Carrying amount af the end of (e year 16, 12826 15,296 3%

b} Provision for arbitration cases
The Cmn[m'l.}r has ;moﬂni_n:d a prcwisiun For arbuiration casc decsded agyainst the CDITIFI.H:" for vendor's claim, The Cﬂ'npa.n'f hax I:I'El“l.'ﬂnl:ﬂ. the
avard, The addition in provision during the year of £ 11.23 Lakhs (31 March 2023: 2 11.24 Lakhs) 15 on sccount of intcrcst.

¥ Lakhs

Particulirs Far the year ended For the year eaded

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Carrying amound ot the begmming, of the year 1.205.97 119473
Add; Additions during the year 11.23 11,24
Carrying amount af the end of the year 1,217.20 120597

¢} Provision for Shortages in propecly, plant and equipment
This provision is on gecount of shomages in propemy, plant and equipment on physical verification pending investigation, Movement in provision

is as follows:
. ¥ Lakhs
Particulars o For ihe year ended For ihe year eadesd
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Canrying anwunt at the beginning of the year G681 [X%]
Add: Additions during the year x 078
Carrying amount at the end of the vear [ [T

o) Sensitivily of provisions
The assumptinns made for provisions relating to current period anc cansistent with those in the carlicr years. The assumplions and cslimates uaed
for recognition of such provisions arc qualitative in nature and their likelibood could alter in next Gnancial year. I s impescticoble for the company

o compate the possible effect of assumplions and estimates made in recognizing thess provisions,

&) Contingent liabilities
CAPITAL WORKS

{1} The works conlract for electrical equiipments supply & erection packape was awarded io a contractor. The Contractor demanded compenaation of T
32958 Lakhs on sccount of extended siay, overhead expenses amd reimbursement of expenses incumed for establishing temporary structure for
beyond the ariginal contract period. As per the Company's contention, the claim is nod Lenable.

(i) The works contract for air conditioning system package was awarded to a contracior. The Contractor demanded compensation of T 82814 Lakhs
frem the Company on account of supply of material ferection & installation / escalation towards supply works camied ot further after expiry of
contractunl period, Additional cost incurred during, prolengation penod of mase than 4 years, and invocation and encashment af performance hank
puarantees and interest there on for beyond the original contract period. As per the Company's contention, the claim is not tenable

{iii) The works contract for coal unloading and transportation was awanded to @ contractor on Opoen Tender basis. Dring the curmency of the contract
the Contractor did mot make payment 1o sub vendors, As per the request of sub-wendor, the Company withheld the final bill of the Contractor,
however a demand drafl was prepared (o discharge the sub-contractor's dues under intimation 1o the Agency. The agency has el collected the
Memand Draft and filed a claim of ¥ 498.82 Lakhs in arbitration. The Arbitration case has been seliled by 8 medialor appointed by Delhi High
Court. According lo the directions of the Mediator, the company has paid ¥ 255,74 lakhs to the agency as final settlement in the presence of the
Mediator. The paid amount has been kepl in sdvances, since e process of closing of the contract is in process by EIC

{iv) The works contract for ash water recycle system package was awarded to a contractor. The Company had invoked comract performance bank
purantée and advance bank purantee on [ilure to honour the contract beading to nordinace delay in compeletion of contract as per the terms of
contract. The Contractor has invoked wbitmtion under perersl condition of contract and demanded compensation of T 52938 Lakhs on account of
encashed bank gurantcss, contractual relention monsy, overhead expenses, loss of profit ele. As per the company’s contention, the elaim is not
tenable.

() The works contract for main plant, CW make up offsite civil works and chimney elevator package was awarded 10 & contracior. Lue 19 non
eatigcalony work progress the contract was terminated by the Company. The contractor has invoked arbitration and is yet to file their claim
statement. As per Company’s contemion, the claim ig not tenable.

{v1} The works conlract for coal handling plant, supply and erection package was awarded o a contractor. The conirecior demanded compensation of ¥
20,065 82 on account of dealy in exection, signilcant eocakalmon in oosd and associnled various other cost. As pér the company’s contention, the

claim in not tenable,

‘@‘F:ﬁ 14
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42 Disclosure as per Ind AS 37 ‘Provisions, Cantingent Linhililies and Conlingent Assels’

TAX AUTHORITIES
{vii) The Compary has reecived demand notice fe VAT from the Commercial Tax Office, Avrangabad, Dihar for T 4828 Lakhs on secount of tax,

penally and inferest undes the Bihar VAT Act, 2005 for the finencial year 2015-16. Giving the appenl effect Specinl Comamassioner of Stale Tanes,
Patna, Dihar, dirccted the Jaint Commissioner of Sinbe Taxes, Aurangabad, Bihar 1o issué fresh order after hearing. The Company has submined it
reply vide letier dated 10 February 2022,

{wiii) The Company has received notice for Entry Tax from the Cormmercinl Tax OfTice, Aurangatad, Rihar by which depariment claimed that compary
hvas purchased Iron and steel fom outside e state using D-IX form of total 3 7,781.93 Lakhs for financial year 2012-13, 2005-16, 2006-17 and
2017-18. The Company has paid entry 1ax on purchase of iwon and steel al 5% while the notice stales thal the enlry tax shall be paid at 8% as per
rule 17 of Eniry Tax Act (ratc applicablc on clecirionl goods, implements, appartus and appliance Incleding electrical fittings and all other
machineries, devices used in peneration of electricity). Continget lability in respoct of dilferential entry tax amounds o 553597 Lakhs. This
matter ks pending at DCCT, Aurangabad,

{ix} The Company has received a demand-cum-show cause nodices from the Assistant Commissioner, COST & CX, Division-Gaya towards short
payment of Servive Tax of ¥ 43,12 Lakhs and ¥ 2730 Lakhs for financial year 200 5-16 and 20016-17 respectively. The Company hos submitted its
reply slongwith supporting documents to the Assistant Commissioner appealing that service tax dus has been fully paid and hence the demand is

not tenable,
{x) The Compnay has recerved demand cum show couse notices for VAT for fnancial year 2016-17 from the Joint Commitioner of State Tax,

Aurangabucl, Bihas, levying taxes, penallies and interest totalling ® 10546 Lakhs. Commissioner of Stare Tax Pamna has dirceied Joint
Commissioner of Aurangabad to review his arder.

(%1} The Company has received netices for entry tax from the Joint Commissioner of Siate Taxes, Aurangabad, Bihar, for financial year 20013-14, 20014-
15 and 2015-16 of ¥ 52,59 Lakhs, T 1762 Lakhs and ¥ 12,64 Lakhs respectively claiming shart levy of entry tac. The Company haz submilled its
reply before the Authority requesting not 1o levy any tax in the matier,

(xii) The Company has received & show cause notice from Additional Director General (Adjudication), Director General of Goods and Service Tax
Intelliegence, Mumbai Zone of ¥ 301087 Lakhs an account of Service Tax. The Company has filed appeal apainst the notice in Paina High. As
per the Company's contention, the demand is nol tenable,

(xii1) The Company has received a demand notice of 2 4,20 Lakhs lrom the the Jont Commessioner of Stale Tax, Avrangsbad Circle, Aurangabad lor
GST payament for the financial year 2001718, The Company has paid all the dues for the said linancial year on due lime and the demand is not
tenable.

DEMAND BY NGT
(xiv) As per the order of Horble National Green Tribunal (MOGT), thermal povwer siations sre requined 1o meet the defined environmenl norms in relation

to ash wilisation and are lable (o pay environment compensation cess in case of non-compliance, The Company ¢stinates contingent liability of T
831,70 Lakhs in relation 1o such environmental compensation cess,

43 Information in respect of micro and small enterprises as required by Micro, Small and Medium Entérprises Development Act, 2006:

¥ Lakhs
Particulars Az al As il
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
@) Amount remuining wnpaid i any supplier:
Principal amouni 040,70 I B81.65

Interest dise therean -

b} Amownt of interest paid in terms of Section 16 of the MSMED Act along-with the
anvount paid to the suoslicrs bevood the sooointed dav.

¢} Amaant of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the
wnilered sneeiled nnder the MEMET At

d) Amount of interest seerued and remaining unpaid

¢) Amoant of further imterest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years,
unlil such dalc whon the inlcrest docs as above are sclually paid o the small
enterprizes, for the pupose of disallovances as 2 deductible expenditure umber
Rartinn 7T AF WISMET Ast

44 Disclosure as per Ind AS 116" Léases”

Company a8 Lesses
The Company does not have any significant leasing arrangemets. The Company has applied the “shor-term lease’ recopnilion exemptiong for
leases with lease werm of 12 momhs or less

2 Lakhx
Parliculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

The Tollowing are the amounts recognised in Statement of profil and boss:
Expemse relaling o shosl-tonm lexses {{E_M} {0,100
Deprecition and amortisation expense fw right-ol-use asueis 128 328

The Tollowing are the amounts disclosed in the eash Now sinlement:
Cash OulMNow Tvomm lexses (0.26) 0,10

3




Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited
MNotes o the fnancial statemenits (conlinued)

45 Regulatory deferral accounts

a) Mature af rale repulated netivities
The Company is mamly engaged in generalion and sale of electrieily. The price Lo be charged by the Company for electricity sold to its customers
s determined by Ue CERC which provides extensive guid on the pneciples and melhodologies o delermination of the tarill lor the purpose
of sale of electricity. The tanil is based on allowable costs like interest, depreciation, operation & mainlenance expenses, cbe. walh a stipulabed
returm.
This foom of rate regulation i known as cost-of-service regulations which provide the Company Lo recover ils cosls of providing the goods ar
services plus o foir return.

b) Recognilion nmd measarement
1) As per the CERC Tarill Regulations, any gain or loss on account of exchange risk variation during the construction persod shall form part of the
capital cost till the declaration of Commercial COperation Date (COD) (o be considered for calculation of taniE. Accordingly, exchange differences
arising during the construction period is within the seops of Ind A5 114,
In view of the abave, exchanpe differences arzing from zetilementftranzlation of monetary item dencminated in foreign currency to the exient
recoverable rom or payable to the beneliciarnies in subsequent peniods as per CERC Tanll Regulations are recognized on an undiscounted basia as
‘Regulatory deferral sccount debitferedil balance' by creditidebat to *Movements in Regulatory deferrol occoumt balonces” duning construclion
period and adjusted from the year in which the same becomes recoverable from or payable to the beneliciaries.
i) For the period commencing from | Apeil 2014, CERC Tanil Regulations provide for grossing up of the retum on equity based on effective tax
rale for the financial yoar based on the actual 1ax paid during the year on the géncration income, The Company has recognised a regulatony deferral
aceount credit balance for such deferred tax assets (not) in the Minancial sistements. Regulatony defemal account credit balance for defemed ax
aszets will be reversed in future years when ibe related deferred Lax assel forma part of eurrent Lax.
rii}mComplrlr has created a rr.gul:l.{u'y aszel lowards axh iransportation cxpenacs &5 por the CERC Tarill Regulations.

¢} Rishs nssocinted with fufure recovery of rate regulated acsels:
i) demand risk due to changes in consumer aitinsdes, the availability of aliemative scurces of supply
i) regularory risk on account of changes in regulations and submission or approval of a rate-setting application or the emity's assessment of the
expected future repulatory actions
i} other risks including currency or other market risks, if any.

d) Reconciliation af the earrying amounis:
Repulatory asseti{liability) recognized in the books to be recovered from of payable to beneliciaries in luture periads are a3 lollow:

& Lakhs
PFarticulars Asal As al
) 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Opening regulatory deferral sceount debit{eredit) balance (12.411.54) (17.804.56)
Addinion during the year 4,928 80 5,373.02
Recovery £ payment dusing the year - .
Closing regulatory deferral acconnt debit/{credit) balance {7,502.74) (12,431.54
*Above balances have not baen discounted
¢) Tax expensef(saving) penaining 1o regulstory defemal account balances B6L.16 YIRTT

1 The Company expects to recover the camying amount of repulatory delermal account debil balance over a penieod of 10 yeus

46 Caplial managemeni

The Company's ohieclives when managing capital are 1o safcguard its ability o continee &8 a going concern, 50 that il can continue to provide
returns bor sharcholders and benefits for olher stakeholders and maintain an appropriate capital strscture of debt and equity.

T Hoard of Directors has the primary responsibility 1 mainizin & strong capital base and reduce the cost of capital through prudent management
of deployed Tunds and leveraging opportunitics in domestic and international linancisl markets 20 &% 10 maimain investor, creditor and market
confidence and to suftain fsture develapment of the business.

The Company maniters capital, using a medium term view of three to five years, on the basis of a number of financial ratios generlly wied by
industry and by the rting npencies. The Company s nol subject 1o externally imposed capital requirements

The Company monitars capital using gearing ratio which is net debt divided by wtal equity. Net debt comprises of long term and short term
borrewings bess cash and cash equivalent. Equity includes equity share capital and reserves that are managed as capital. The gearing miio at the end
of the reporting periods was os folbows:

I lakhs
Fariiculars As al Ax al
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Total liabilities 457 54598 50572505
Less : Cash and cash equivalent 1,782 75 24370
Met debt 4,85, 765,23 5.13,681.35
Tobul equily RT3 29219816

MNel deldt to equily ratio L&Y 76
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Earnings per share
a) Rasic and diluted carnings per share (in ¥} =

Parliculars For the year ended For the year ended
31 Aarch 2023 31 March 2022

From opertions inchling nel movement in regulatory defemal account 1.2 1.37

balances (a) [AMD]

From regulatory deferral sccount balances (b) [B/D] 017 LA

From operations excluding mel movement in regulatory deferral account 085 L%

balances (ai-(b) [CD] i

Mominal value per share 10,00 1000

b) Profit attributable (o equity sharehohiers (used as numerntor)
¥ Lakh
Parliculars For the year ended For the year mﬂﬁ
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
From operations inclsding net movement in regulatory deferral account balances (a) [A] 24 39871 32,869.75
From regulatory defierral sccount balances (b) [B] 4,067 64 4,434 25
From operations cxcluding net movement in regulatory deferral account 30,330,407 2843550
balances (a}-{b) 1C]
€] Weighted average number of equity shares (used as denominator) (Nos.)
Particulars For the year encled For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Oipening balance of issued equity shares 2,39, 74,561,538 2.39.74,61 538
EfMect Mos of shanes issued during the year = =
Weighted average namber of equily shares for Basic and Diluted EPS (D] 2.3, 74,661,538 2,39.74,61,.538

48 Tisclosure as per Ind AS 115, ‘Revenue frem conlracts with customers®

a) Mature of gomds and services
The Company i5 involved in the generation snd sabe of bulk power to Railways and state power utilities. In the opinion af the management, there is
only one reponable sepmant (“Generation of Elsctricity™). Sale of electricity is generally mads pursuant 1o long-term Power Purchase Agreements
(PP As) emared inta with the heneficiaries.

Miture, timing of sstisfaction of performance abligntions and sigaificant payment terms
The Company recognises revenue from contracts for energy sales over time a2 the eustamers simultanesusly receive and consume the benefits
provided by the Company. The tarifT for compating revenue from energy sales is determined in terms of CERC Regulations as notified from time o
time, The amount of revenue recognised for energy sules is adpusted For variable comsideration, wherever applicalsle, which ane estimated based on
the histarical data available with the Company. The amounts are billed on a monthly basis end invoices are payable within contractually agreed
credit period

by Disaggregation of révenue
In the following table, revenue iz disapprepated by customer and timing of revenue recognition:

T Lakhs

Farticulars For ihe year eaded For the year ended

S Mlacch 2023 3] March 2023
Cusiomer
Railwarys 308,000,979 2,33,617.50
(nhers 23.362.11 24,218.06
Total 41,474.08 157,435,506
Timing of revenue recognition
Ohver Lime IAZATA08 2,57 83556
Al a point in tima - -
Tatal 3, 4247408 1,57,835.56
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48 Disclasure as per lmd AS 115, *Revenoe from confracts with cestomers” {foontinued)

&) Contract balanees
Conlract ussels are recognised when there is excess of revenee camed over billings on contracls. Conract assels are classilicd as unbilled revenue
{only acl ol inveicing is pending) when Uwre i3 unconditional righl o receive cash, and only passage of lime 15 required, as per conlmmciual terms
Thee contrasct liabilities primarily relate (o the advance consideration received from the cuslomens which are refened as ‘sdvances from castomers”,

The following table provides information about trade receivables and advance from customer from contracts with customers;

¥ Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Trade ieceivables 43, 70373 68, T66.T8
Advanece from cusiomers 44409 121.25
d) Recomclliation of revenue recognised wiih contraet priee:
¥ Lakhs
Particulars “For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2012
Coniract price 3,44 760 56 25801356
Adjustments for:
Rebates (2 286.48) {178.00)
Revenud recognised 34247408 257035 56

€) Fractical expedients applied as per Ind AS 115:
i) The Company does nol expect 1o have any contracts where the period between the transier of the promised goods or services to the customer and

payment by the customer excesds one year. As a consequence, the Company docs not adjust any of the ransaction prices for the ime valuc of
MY

ii} The Company has not disclosed the remaining performence obligation reluted dischosures for contracts where the revenue recognized
comesponds dircclly with the value o the customer of the entity’s performance completed o date,

1 The Company has nel incwrred any incremental costs of oblaining contracts with a customer and therelone, ol recognised an asset for such
capilalised costs.

4% Opernling segmentd
The Company's Board of Directors have been identified as the Chiel Operating, Decision Maker {CODML In the opinion of the management, there
is anly one repontable sepment (“Generation of Electricity™). Accordingly, no separate disclosure for segment reporting is required 10 be made in
the fmancial statements of the Company, Furihwr, the Company operates only in one geographical segment which is India

Entity wide disclosures
a) Information about products and services
The Company i involved in the peneration and 2ale of halk power 1o Indian Railways and Stie Power Liilities.

b)) Informatian abont peagraphical arcas
“Thie entire sales of the Company are made to customers which are domicilad in India. Also, all the non-current assets of the Company are located in
Indin

) Informatian abast major eustomers (from external cusiomers)
Revenue of approximately £ 319,011.97 Lakhs (31 March 2022: ¥ 23361750 Lakhs) are derived from single extemal customer (Ministry of
Raihways) accounting for more than 10 per cemt of tolal revenue of the Company.
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50 Additianal repulatory infarmation

{ih Tille deeds of Immovabie Properties not beld in name of the Company:

As il 31 March 2023; E Lakhs
liem category Balamce sheet Deseription of | Gross Carrying| Title Deeds Held in | Whether fitle deed holder is m promoter, diregior| Froperty held | Reasan for nat bring
g of Value ithe mame of wor relative of promoter Mirector or employee of |sinee which date| held s the nanse of
Properly promater’ direcior the compuny
Property, plant and equipment Land 483 43 1Furn'bﬂs|1.l.ndlm.ulnﬂ Mo Bimoe M5 [Awaiting complelion
of legal formaliizs |
AAdatll March 2003 - ¥ Lakhs
llem calegory Babames shect Deseription of| Gross Carrying| Tith Daeds Held in | Whether tithe deed holder i3 8 promoter, director| Property held | Beason for not bring
Ligmn i’ Valus ithe mame of or relative of promoter fdirector or employee of |since which dale| held in the name of
Property promater! direcior ihie company
PFroperty, plant and equipren! Land 53100 [Farmersland howsiees || Ha " Bince 2015 | Awaiting complclion
{ i

i} The company does rot bold sy Invetsment Froperty in its books of accounts, so fair

of in

y 18 not applicable,

{iiily Dharing the year the company bas not revalued any of its Property,plant snd equipment or intsngible s,

w) The oo hiss mot d loans or ndvances in direciors, KMPs and the related parics thal anc sble on demand or withoul cilying mny lerma or period of
My Bruntcd proenobers, pa ey FpocE iy, Wy ¥

repaymenl.

{w} (=) Capiial-Work-in Frogress (CWIF) - Ageing Schedule

32131 Warch 2023 - ¥ Lakhs
- Amsuni in CWIF For a period af
§ I
Capltal- Work-in Progress (CWIF) Loss than | year| 1.2 ysars 23 years Mare thun 3 Tuta
L ]e]
Prajects in progress ~ 22,099.56 25,146.55 303438 3,775.73 54,056.12
[Projects iempararily suspended - . . - -
al3 v z I Lakhs
Amouni m CWIF for e period of
- WP Total
Capital-Work-in Frogres (C ) Luess tham | year 1-2 yrars I-X yeurs M‘::::. a .
Projects in progress 14, 780,23 14,26%.17 148154 2008, 71 A3, 5H0UAS
Prajects Ly ded = - . - -
() Cagital-Work-in Progress (CWIPF) - Camplation schedule for projects whase completion is overdue or has exceeded its cost companed 1o ils ariginal planc
Axat 3] March 2023 ¥ Lakhs
To be completed in
Legs tham | year i-2 years 23 yenrs More itham 3
1- -in Progress (CWIP
Epltal Sz tn, Pragnue (CYIN) Upta 1 April 2034 i 1ApAI 202800 [ Revomd L
31 March 2024 (31 March 2025 31 March 2006 1 April 2026
|BRBCL Nahinagar Tharmal Pawer Project 54056 22 = = = 54.056.23
Az at 11 March 20231 T Lakha
T be caenpleled in
s than | year|  1-2 yoars 2-1 years Mare (han 3
Capital-Work-in Prgress (W1 Tadal
o v ¢ F Ul 1 Apeil 2023 0| LAR 2024 1o Beyoml -
30 March 2023 (31 March 2024) 3 March 2025 | April 2025
BRBCL Mabinagar Thormal Power Project 313 5B0.45 = = = A5 ER0.55

{vi) No procoedings have been initisiod or pending against the company under the Denami Transactions [Prohibition) Act, | 988,

[wii} The conspany has taken & terms lodss which secured by all exisling amd hsure movable asscls of ke }umjn:l bl

N

™

anid all other nsovables, from Basks, The quarmerly returna / patemant of current assets filed by the company are in agreement with books,

[wili) The company has nod been declared as & wiliul defaalier by sny bank or finascial institation or any other leader.

R

ries and other current macts, book debis receivables
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&0 Additlonal regulatory infarmation (continwed)

{ix) Dieiwils of culxiandmy balances of Blruck oll Companses volh wluch the O lssas el i
T Lakhs

Hame ol trwck off Compan AateouolTestiectw i ac Lol As AR M “:lr:;:am'llinds CIN

D N Campany 31 March 2023 | 31 March 2022|" .

ofl company

Shashidhar Consirustion d: Carriers Privale Limited | Receivables . 7184 7184 | Contracior U452000H 1994 TO005 864
Gwiss Cabs India Privaic Limitcd ahlcs {0.38) {050 [ Contractos UG0S IMIZDOSPTC ITRLIE
[Swiss Cwbs India Frivile 1ims .
Sankat Muchan Constsection Privats Lsn Paya {1.24) {1.24) | Contmeicr UA3T00BRIDIPTC0 10344
Shaha [nfra Projects Privase Limied bles (14,09 (14,09} | Contrnctor LA5Z00H201 3P TCO01333
Fohiz. Soluzicas |Limited Fayablcs (0.07) - e UIT2500MH 1993PLL | 23250

{x) The company has mo cascs of any charges or satisfaction yet o be registoned will RIOC beyond the statutory time limits.

{xi) The prosissons af clause (8T} of section 2 of the Act read with the Companses (Restriction on mumber of Layers) Rules, 2017 are not applicable o the company as per Section 2(45) of the

Companies Act,2003,

(i) DMscbosare of Ralios

Raths Mumeratar I- Denamiaator FY 2022-23 FY 2021-12 % Variance |““.lﬂl for variance
Emrent ratin Current Assets Currerit Lizbililics .63 0.7% EEE]
Puid-wp debt capilnl (Long term
| Dbt -pquity ratio bormowings+Short tenm Sharetolder's Equity (Total Equity) .72 185 {6.E0)
:::“:rr the r.“;r::“ Finance Costs + lcase
| Dkt service coversge ratio i eyl pay +Seheduled prineipal 6176 {54.98) (215.95)
amaniabion expensest
Fxceplional isems reparyments af long teom bormowings
Rishurm o6 equily ralio Frofit for the year |Average Sharcholder's Equity 0.0 iz (27.13) m:ohh.: ™
Invoni tarmeer il Avarago lnveniory el 2642 {13.70)
Dhac to Inorcase i
Trade recoivables armover mano Revenue (om opemtions Avwerage trade receivaliles 508 437 4035 | pevenue from
Tl Purchases (Fuel Cast + '-: “""“"I‘“_"‘
Trads payables umaver ratle Cither Exprnses+Closing Clusing Trade Payables 4 k0 1303 {24 8op[ ™ "F’“.““‘“‘“
‘Irrrn:inq-l}pcnirq.lmrdmﬂ peoparizonal o
e 1o Increass in
: : —_— . Working Capitabbeurnced nasturilics of e — RPN i o
Hﬂ.ﬂpml Damaver falin venue from operalions b v ing i 1 [4 j:mam
asacls
Iﬂq peadil eaiia Profit far the year Reverue from operstions 0n.o7 a1 (. 10 | rerweenuusee: Trnen
Rensm on iral g ed Earnany belore mberest aml baoves [Capalal Emploged .09 o.1m [ENL]
y (Prafit befans 1 ¢ Finanse
Psham on investmenl Coner) * { -t rase) Tosal sssets .06 07 (9.4%)

{xiFi) Mo scheme of arrangements bhas boon approved by competent muthoily in terms of soctions 230 1o 237 of the Companies Aet, 2013 in respect of company.

{xiv] The company has nod provided noe 1aken any baan or advance wfrom ssy otber person or entity with the understanding that benefit of tho transaction will go o a third party, the ultimate

beneliciary.
(xv) Trade Payables agelng schedule ns st 31 March 2023 1 Lakhks
Particulars Mot Due Unhilied | Dmrstanding for fllowing periods from deo date of payment
Less tham | year I-1 ydars 3-3 year More thas 3 Total
LS
(i) MSME [ IFATY 27942 F56.04 . - - 1, AT3.60
(i} Owhers 3.600.21 26933 11,292 60 - 1 989,25 2,619 X2,057.58
fiii) Digputed dust — MEME - = = - - .
{iv] Daspubed ducs — Oihers — = - - = -
Taial 4 44115 1, 248,75 13, 524,64 - L9H9.25 12619 L8518
Trode Payalde: ageing « ] rd € Lakhs
Partirulars Mot Due Ulrslriliesd Outpianding far fsllowing per
Loiss iham | year 1-1 yaars I-3 years More ihan 3 Totsl
NERTE
{i] MEME 1 231.80 G084 = - - SRl
(i) Cuherx T51.42 &61.97 1R5244 1.B7%.15 1.230.91 L2361 983345
i) Dispatod dues — MSME - = = . - - -
(iwh Dispubed ducs - Cibors = - - - &
Total BI7.41 108878 451328 L&T9.15 1,230.91 1,257.81 10,792.10

G-
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51 Standards issued but nat yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Aflairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. On March 31, 2023, MCA amended the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 by
isauing the Compankes (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, applicable from April 1, 2023, as below:
a) Ind AS | — Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments require companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant acconnting policies. Accounting
policy information, together with other information, is material when it can ressonably be expected to influence decisions of primary users of
peneral purpose inancial slalements.,

b} Ind AS 12 = Income Taxes
The amendments clarify how companics account for deferred tax on transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations, The

amendments narrowed the scope of the recognition exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of Ind AS 12 (recognition exemption) so that il nor longer
applics to transactions (hal, on inilial recognition, give rise 1o equal taxable and deductible wmporary differences.

¢} Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policics, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
The amendments will help eatitics to distinguish belween accounting, policies and accounting estimates. The definition of a chenge in accounting
cslimales has been replaced with a definition of accounting estimates. Under the new delinition, accounting estimates arc “monclary amounts in
financinl statements that are subjeet 1o measurement uncertzinty”. Entities develop aceounting estimates if accounting policies require items in
financial stalements bo be mensured in a way that invalves meéasurement I.II:IBGﬂ.ﬂ'iI'iL'f'.

The Company has evaluated these amendment and there is no impact on its financial statements. There are cortain other amendments which are not
expected to have any impact on the fnancial statlements of the Company.

57 Heclassifications and comparative figures
Certain reclassifications have been made to the comparative period’s financial slatements to enhance comparability with the current year's
financial stalements. As o resull, cerlain line items have been reclassified in the balance sheet and statement of cash (ows, the details of which are

a5 under:
Tiems of balanee sheet before and after reclassification as at 31 March 2022 % Lakhs
Particulars Amount before Reclassification Amount aller
_ reclassification reclassificalion
Mon=currenl provisions - 15.63 15.63
Current provisions 16.548.66 (15.63) 16,533.03
Ltems of statement of cash Mows belore and after reclassification for the year ended 51 Mareh 2022 ¥ Lakhs
Particulars Amaount hefore Reclassification Amount after
reclassification réclassification
Cash flow from operating activilics To444.21 {772,000 7547227
Cash Now from investing activities (42, 889.83) 17200 (2. 117.85
Cash Mow from Mnancing activities (49,628 99 - (49,628 99)
Met decrease in eash and cash cauivalenis (16,074.61) - (16,074.61}

i ¥
For and on behalf of the Doard of Directors

Kamal Nath Thakur M Venkataramana Ravi Prakush BLEK. Juin i
C.5. CEO CEQ Direcior Chairman
Place: New Delhi Place: Mew Delhi Place: New Delhi Place:MNew Delhi Place:New Delhi

For M/s Chamaria & Co. /c-‘[":
Chartered f’;;tuy

CA Sunil Kumar Chaumaria
Pariner

Membership Mo, : 004316
Firm Reg. Mo.: 51461590
Plage ;: New Delhi

Drated : ) May 2023
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REVISED INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To,

The Members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED,
Report on the Audit of Standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone financial statements of BHARTIYA RAIL
BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
31#tMarch, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income),
the statement Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year
then ended and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as
“Standalone Financial Statement”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statement gives the information required by the Companies Act 2013
“(the Act)” in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India of the state of affairs of the company as at 31st
March 2023and its Profits, cash flows and the change in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We have conducted our audit of Standalone financial statements in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act 2013. Our responsibilities
under those Standards are further described in the auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the company in accordance with
the code of ethics issued by the institute of chartered accountant of India together with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone financial statements under the
provisions of the companies Act, 2013 and the rules made there under and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI code of ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion.

Emphasis of Matters

We draw the attention to the following matters:
* The conveyance of 15.19179 acres of freehold land valued at ¥482.43 Lakhs is still
pending for registration since long although validity period of agreement for sale of
land has expired (Refer Note No.2).
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* The confirmation of balance And / or statement of accounts in respect of “other
Advances Capex (GL code 1034106), initial advance (S) construction([GL Code-
1034100), Advance contract -0 & M (GL code - 11101300) , Railway Claim
Recoverable (GL CODE - 1100837) Other Claims (GL Code - 1100822) , GR
Clearing/IR Clearing - Capex (GL Code - 500001) , GR Clearing / IR Clearing 0 & M
( GL Code - 500002, SR Clearing / IR Clearing CAPEX (GL Code - 500003) , SR
Clearing/IR Clearing-O0 & M (GL Code - 500004), Payable to Railways
(GL Code-2070824) And Contractors Control a/c (GL Code- 2101100), Ad hoc
advances (GL Code-1101301) Advance against materials (GL Code-1101304)
Material issued on loan (GL Code-1101203) are subject to
confirmation/reconciliation and consequent adjustments if any. Reconciliation of
some of these accounts are also pending since long. (refer note no. 5, 8, 11, 12, &
19). -

* The confirmation of balance under materials lying with the contractors could not
be wverified in the absence of joint verification statements in this
regard.Verification is lying pending since long.

¢ Prima face few of the works against which advances were made are still pending
for adjustment since ling in absence of the progress report of the respective work.
Such amounts are included in note no. 5 & 11 to the financial statements.

* Provisional recognition of revenue from transmission for which final tariff order
are yet to be issued by CERC.

However, our report is not qualified in respect of the items as commented under the head
of “Emphasis of Matters” as above.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements,and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that
context. We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be
communicated in our report:-

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram,Rohtas, Bihar-82 1115, Mb:9431028035, 9661606060
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No.

Key Audit Matter

How to address the key audit matter

Recognition and Measurement of
revenue from Sale of Energy

The company records revenue from sale of
energy as per the principles enunciated

under Ind AS 115, based on tariff
approved by the Central Electricity
Regulatory Commission (CERC) as

modified by the orders of Appellate
Authorities. Pending issue of
provisional/final tariff order w.e.f. 01 April
2019 sales has been provisionally
recognized considering the applicable
CERC Tariff Regulations 2019.

This is considered as key audit matter due
to the nature and extent of estimates made
as per the CERC Tariff Regulations, which
leads to recognition and measurement of
revenue from sale of energy being
complex and judgmental.

We have obtained an understanding of the
CERC Tariff Regulations, orders, circulars,
guidelines and the Company’s internal
circulars and procedures in respect of
recognition and measurement of revenue
from sale of energy comprising of capacity
and energy charges and adopted the
following audit procedures:

- Evaluated and tested the effectiveness of
the Company’s design of internal controls
relating to recognition and measurement of
revenue from sale of energy.

- Verified the accounting of revenue from
sale of energy based on provisional tariff
computed as per the principles of CERC
Tariff Regulations 2019,

Based on the above procedure performed,
the recognition and measurement of
revenue from sale of energy is considered
to be adequate and reasonable.

Contingent Liabilities

There are a number of litigations pending
before various forums against the
Company and the management's
judgement is required for estimating the
amount to be disclosed as contingent
liability.

We identified this as a key audit matter
because the estimates on which these
amounts are based involve a significant
degree of management judgement in
interpreting the cases and it may be
subject to management bias.

We have obtained an understanding of the
Company’s internal instructions and
procedures in respect of estimation and
disclosure of contingent liabilities and
adopted the following audit procedures:

- understood and tested the design and
operating effectiveness of controls as
established by the management for
obtaining all relevant information for
pending litigation cases.

- discussed with the management
regarding any material developments
thereto and latest status of legal matters.

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram,Rohtas, Bihar-821115, Mb:9431028035, 9661606060




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Chamaria & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS
(Refer Note No. 42 of Standalone Financial | - read various correspondences and related
Statements.) documents pertaining to litigation cases

and relevant external legal opinions
obtained by the management and
performed substantive procedures on
calculations supporting the disclosure of
contingent liabilities.

- examined management’s judgements and
assessments in respect of whether
provisions are required.

- considered the management assessments
of those matters that are not disclosed as
contingent liability since the probability of
material outflow is consideredto be
remote.

- reviewed the adequacy and completeness
of disclosures.

Based on the above procedures performed,
the estimation and disclosures of
contingent liabilities isconsidered to
beadequate and reasonable,

Information Other than the Standalone Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information’s. The
other information comprises the information included in the Management Discussion and Analysis,
Board’s Report including Annexure to Board’s Report and Shareholder's information but does not
include the standalone financial statement and our Auditors Report thereon.

Our Opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our Audit of the standalone financial statement, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the information materially inconsistent with
the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram,Rohtas, Bihar-821115, Mb:9431028035, 9661606060
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Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance
including other comprehensive income and cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in
accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements management is responsible for assessing the company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the
company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those boards of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditors’ Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statement.
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act,
we give in the Annexure-1 a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. We are enclosing our report in terms of Section 143 (5) of the Act, on the basis of such
checks of the books and records of the Company as we considered appropriate and
according to the information and explanations given to us, in the Annexure-2 on the
directions and sub-directions issued by Comptroller and Auditor General of India.

3. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company
so far as it appears from our examination of those books:

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement and the
statement of changes in equity dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of
accounts.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Indian
Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of
the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2015 (As amended);

(e) Being a Government Company, pursuant to the Notification No. GSR 463(E) dated 5th June
2015 issued by Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, provisions of sub-section
(2) of Section 164 of the Companies Act, 2013, are not applicable to the Company.

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to Annexure-3.

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of
our information and according to the explanations given to us:
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1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements - Refer Note- 42 to the financial statements.

II.  The company does not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts as at 31.03.2023 for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

[II. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investors
and Education and Protection Fund by the company during the year ended
March 31, 2023.

For M/s Chamaria& Co~*

Chartered Acyrh é
FRN: 514 f‘:
/ T
/ O

CA Sunil Kumar Cha
PARTNER
M.No. 094316

Place: New Delhi
Date:14.06.2023
UDIN: 23094316BGYMIB6607
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ANNEXURE-I TO INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’s REPORT

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA
RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the Year ended 31st
March,2023)

i)a. According to information and explanation provided to us, a major portion of the
fixed assets has been physically verified by the management in accordance with a
phased programmed of verification adopted by the company. In our opinion, the
frequency of the verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the company and
the nature of the fixed assets. An amount of ¥ .6.81 lakhs shortage found during physical
verification of Fixed Asset.To the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

b. The title deeds of immovable properties (Other than properties where the company is
the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee) disclosed
in the financial statements is held in the name of the company.(Refer Note 49)

¢. The company has not revalued its Property, Plant & Equipment (including Right of
Use assets) or intangible assets or both during the year.

d. According to information given to us, there was not any proceeding have been
initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transaction (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rule made there under.

(if)a. According to information and explanation provided to us, inventories have been
physically verified during the year by the management at reasonable intervals. In our
opinion, the coverage and procedure of such verification by the management is
appropriate. An amount of 3.119.35 lakhs shortage found during physical verification of
inventories. No material discrepancy was noticed on physical verification of stocks by
the management as compared to book records.

b. The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore
rupees, in aggregate, from bank or financial institution on the basis of security of
current assets during any point of time of the year. The quarterly returns or statement
filed by the company with such bank or financial institutions are in agreement with
books of accounts the company.

(iii) According to the information and the explanations given to us, the company has not
made investments in, provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or
advances in nature of loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, LLP or any
other parties. Accordingly, the provisions of Para 3clause (iii) (a), (iii) (b), (iii) (c), (iii)
(d), & (iii) (f) of the order are not applicable to the company and hence not commented
upon.
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(iv)The Company has not granted any loans or given any guarantee and security
covered under Section 185 and 186 of Companies Act, 2013.

(v)According to information and explanation provided to us, the company has not
accepted any deposits from the public covered under sections 73 to 76 or any other
relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the rules made there under.

(vi)We have broadly reviewed the accounts and records maintained by the company
pursuant to the Rules made by the Central Government for the maintenance of cost
record under Sub- section (1) of Section 148 of the Act read with Companies (Cost
Records & Audit) Rules 2014 as amended and we are of the opinion that prima facie the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have not
however made detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether
they are accurate and complete.

(vii)a. According to the records of the company, undisputed statutory dues including
Provident Fund, Investor Education and Protection Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales-tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty,
value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues to the extent applicable, have
generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate authorities and there are no
outstanding statutory dues as on 31st March 2023 for a period of more than six months
from the date they became payable.

b. According to information and explanations given to us, the following dues have not
been deposited by the company on account of disputes as per table:-

Name of | Nature | Amount | Period for | Forum where dispute is
the Statue | of the | (X. In | which the | pending

Dues lakhs) amount

relates

Central Service | 27.30 F.Y 2016-17 Before the Superintendent of
Board of | Tax CGST Division.
Indirect
Taxes
(Service
Tax) -
Central Service | 43.12 FY 2015-16 Before the Superintendent of
Board of | Tax CGST Division.
Indirect
Taxes
(Service
Tax)
Bihar Entry 555.97 FY 2012-13 | Bihar Commercial Tax

Sher Shah Rauja Road, Sasaram, Rohtas, Bihar-821115, Mb:94310280




ANNUAL REPORT 2022-23

Chamaria & Co.

CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Entry Tax | Tax F.Y 2015-16 Department
Act FY 2016-17 &

FY 2017-18
Bihar VAT 48.28 F.Y 2015-16 Bihar Commercial Tax
Entry Tax Department
Act
Bihar VAT 105.46 FY 2016-17 Bihar Commercial Tax
Entry Tax Department
Act
Bihar Entry 52.59 FY 2013-14 Bihar Commercial Tax
Entry Tax | Tax Department
Act
Bihar Entry |17.62 FY 2014-15 Bihar Commercial Tax
Entry Tax | Tax Department
Act
Bihar Entry 12.64 FY 2015-16 Bihar Commercial Tax
Entry Tax | Tax Department
Act
Bihar Entry |3010.87 [Jan 2017 to | Patna High Court
Entry Tax | Tax June 2017
Act
Goods and | Service | 4.20 FY 2017-18 Joint Commissioner State Tax,
Service Tax Aurangabad
Tax

(viii)According to the information and explanation given to us there was no transaction
which are not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered or disclosed as
income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of

1961).

(ix)a. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, we
are of the opinion that, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

b. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
company has not declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other

lender,
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¢. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us term
loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

d. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us funds
raised on short term basis have not been utilised for long term purposes.

e. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures.

f. In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.

(x) a.Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the
management, the company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer (including debt instruments) during the year.

b. Based on our audit procedures and according to the information given by the
management, the company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible)
during the year.

(xi)According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the books and records of the company and in accordance with generally
accepted auditing practices in India, we report that no fraud by the company or any
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xii)The company is not a Nidhi Company. Therefore, Para 3 clause (xii) of the order is
not applicable to the company.

(xiii)According to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of Companies Act, 2013
where applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Financial Statements etc. as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) a. The company have an internal audit system commensurate with the size and
nature of its business.
b. Report of the Internal Auditors for the period under audit was considered by us.

(xv) The company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him.
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(xvi)a. The company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, provision of Para 3 Clause (xvi) b, (xvi) ¢ & (xvi) d
of the order are not applicable to the company.

(xvii)The company has not incurred cash losses in the financial year and in the
immediately preceding financial year

(xviii) There has been no instance of any resignation of the statutory auditors occurred
during the year

(xix) No material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that company is
capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of 1 year from the balance sheet date

(xx)(a) In respect of other than ongoing projects, the company has not any unspent
amount which is to be transferred to specified account as per Schedule VII to the
Companies Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in
compliance with second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

b) In respect of ongoing projects, the company has been transferred unspent amount of
Rs. 710.66 Lakhs under sub section(5) of section 135 of the Companies Act to a special
account in compliance with the provision of sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said
Act.

(xxi) The Company does not prepare Consolidated financial statement, therefore, clause
3 para(xxi) of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order 2020 is not applicable to the

Company /
ForM/s Chamaria?o/

Chartered Accotp
FRN:

CA Sunil Kumar Ch
PARTNER
M.No. 094316

Place: New Delhi
Date:14.06.2023
UDIN: 23094316BGYMIB6607
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ANNEXURE-2 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 31*March2023)

Report on the directions under section 143 (5) of Companies Act 2013 applicable from the
year 2021-22 and onwards

Q(1) Whether the company has system in place to process all the accounting transaction through IT
system? If yes, the implications of processing of accounting transactions outside IT system on the
integrity of the accounts along with the financial implications, if any, may be stated.

Reply: As per the information and explanations given to us, the Company has a system in place to
process all the accounting transactions through IT system. SAP-ERP has been implemented for all the
processes like Financial Accounting (F1), Controlling (CO), Sales and Distribution (SD), Payroll / Human
Capital Management (HCM), Material Management (MM), Commercial billing / Industry Solution
Utilities (ISU), etc.

Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to us, no
accounting transactions have been processed/carried outside the IT system. Accordingly, there are no
implications on the integrity of the accounts.

Q(2) Whether there is any restructuring of an existing loan or case of waiver /write off of
debts/loans/interest etc. made by a lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay
the loan? If yes, the financial impact may be stated.

Reply: Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to
us, there was no restructuring of existing loans or cases of waiver/write off of debts/ loans/interest etc.
made by the lender to the company due to the company’s inability to repay the loan.
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Q(3) Whether funds (grants/subsidy etc.) received/receivable for specific schemes from central/
state agencies were properly accounted for/ utilized as per its term and conditions? List the cases
of deviation.

Reply: Based on the audit procedures carried out and as per the information and explanations given to
us, no such funds has been granted to/ received by the company during the year.

&
For M/s Chamaria& Co.
Chartered Accountants

FRN: 514619C ¢

-

g

CA-Sunil Kumar Chama
PARTNER

M.No. 094316

Place: New Delhi
Date:14.06.2023
UDIN: 23094316BGYMIB6607
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ANNEXURE-3 TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Annexure referred to in our report of even date to the members of BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE
COMPANY LIMITED on the accounts for the year ended 31stMarch2023

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of
the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee
Company Limited (“the Company”) as at 31March, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company
and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of
its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to Standalone Financial Statement based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note") and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed
under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the
ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
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financial controls with reference to the Standalone Financial Statement was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the Standalone Financial
Statements

A Company's internal financial control with reference to Standalone Financial Statement is a
process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting
and the preparationof financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A Company’s internal financial control with reference to Standalone
Financial Statement includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and 3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the
internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the
internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

R@o: .
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were
operating effectively as at 31=March, 2023, based on the internal control over financial reporting
criteria established by the Company and the components of internal control stated in the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL

bd
For M/s Chamaria& Co. -

* 514i6190 %*

PARTNER
M.No. 094316

Place: New Delhi
Date:14.06.2023
UDIN: 23094316BGYMIB6607
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The Comptroller and Auditor General of India under section 143(6)(b) read with section 129(4) of the
Companies Act, 2013 on the Financial Statements of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited for the year

ended 31st march 2023 and management replies thereon

Comment on Financial Position

Management Reply

Balance Sheet

Property, Plant and Equipment-Freehold land (Note 2): Rs. 723624.37
lakh

Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited deposited Rs 22403.31 lakh
with the District Administration, Aurangabad for acquisition of land in
respect of Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited. Interest of Rs. 887.58
lakh accrued on the above deposit (up to 31st March 2018) was
transferred by the District Administration to the Government Head in
May 2018. The amount of Rs. 887.58 lakh was reduced from the value
of land and other current financial liability in the books of accounts.
Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited claimed the interest accrued on
the deposit made for land acquisition stating that the interest accrued
is out of the deposits for land acquisition hence same should be
returned to Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company Limited for its intended use.
District Administration refused (March 2021) to return the interest on
amount deposited for land acquisition and sought (November 2021)
whether any clause in the agreement provides for refund of interest.
The interest amount was not received by Bhartiya Rail Bijlee Company
Limited till 31 March 2023.

As per the accounts closing guidelines of NTPC (Bhartiya Rail Bijlee
Company Limited being a subsidiary of NTPC), all loans, advances,
claims shall be reviewed from time to time and whenever the amount
is outstanding for more than three years, the same shall be provided
in the accounts.

Despite the amount being pending for realization for more than three
years and the matter been raised by Audit during the accounts for the
year 2020-21 and 2021-22, the amount of doubtful receivable has not
been provided by Management.

Non-provision of doubtful receivable has resulted in understatement
of Property, Plant and Equipment as well as Other Current Financial
Liability by Rs 887.58 lakh.

It is pertinent to mention
here that deposited account
(ie %22403.31 lakh) was
exclusively for the purpose
of BRBCL for land acquisition.
Also amount deposited on
various occasions against a
demand letters from District
Authority and no agreement
was there. Therefore, the
interest accrual is prima facie
related to BRBCL. Accordingly,
the same had been accounted
by us by reducing the land cost
and reducing financial liability
as recoverable from District
Authority.

However, District authority has
deposited the Interest amount
with State Treasury without
any consent from BRBCL.
Hence BRBCL is taking-up the
matter with State Revenue
Secretary level. We hope that
the same will be recovered
from the Authority.

In view of above BRBCL seeks
one more opportunity from
CAG to put once again efforts
to get back the interest
amount.

For and on behalf of the
Comptroller & Auditor General of India

(U.S. Prasad)
Director General of Audit (Steel)
Ranchi

Place: Ranchi
Date: 14.7.2023

For and on behalf of Board of Directors

(Ravi Prakash)
Chief Executive officer

Ranchi

Place: NabiNagar
Date: 08.08.2023
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U40102DL2007G0OI1170661
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex, 7 Institutional Area, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi-110 003
Tel. no.: 011-24387789 Fax: 011-24360241
Email: amit1106.acs@gmail.com

ATTENDANCE SLIP

16™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO BE HELD ON 28" September, 2023 at 5.30 P.M

NAME OF THE ATTENDING MEMEBR | |
(IN BLOCK LETTERS)
*Folio No. | |

DP ID No. | |

Client ID No. | |

No. of shares Held | |

NAME OF PROXY | |

(IN BLOCK LETTERS, TO BE FILLED
IF THE PROXY ATTENDS INSTEAD OF THE
MEMBER)

|, hereby record my presence at 16" Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 28t September,
2023 at 5.30 P.M at NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-
110003.

Signature of Member/ Proxy

*Applicable in case of shares held in Physical Form.
NOTES:

1. Only Shareholder(s) present in person or through registered proxy shall be entertained.

2. No gifts or coupons will be distributed at the Annual General Meeting.
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BHARTIYA RAIL BIJLEE COMPANY LIMITED
CIN: U40102DL2007G0I1170661
Regd. Office: NTPC Bhawan, Core-7, SCOPE Complex, 7 Institutional Area, Lodhi Road,
New Delhi-110 003
Tel. no.: 011-24387789 Fax: 011-24360241
Email: amit1106.acs@gmail.com

FORM OF PROXY

Name of the member (s):

Registered address:

Folio No/ DP ID- Client Id:
Email ID

No. of Shares held

I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above named company, hereby appoint:
1. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:
Or failing him
2. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:
Or failing him
3. Name:
Address:
E-mail Id:
Signature:|

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
Meeting of the company, to be held on 28" September, 2023 at 5.30 P.M at NTPC Bhawan, Core-7,
SCOPE Complex, 7, Institutional Area, Lodhi Road, New Delhi-110003 and at any adjournment thereof
in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

—



Sr. Resolution For Against

No.

Ordinary Business

1. |To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statement of the

Company for the financial year ended 31 March 2023, the reports of the
Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
2. |To fix the remuneration of the Statutory Auditors for the financial year
2023-24
3. |To confirm payment of interim dividend for the financial year 2022-23
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. R K Jain (DIN: 08180329), who retires
by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment
Special Business
5. |To appoint Shri Srinivasbabji Sri Ganesh Satya Dusanapudi (DIN: 09809000),
as Director of the Company
6. |To ratify the remuneration of the Cost Auditors for the financial year 2022-
23 and authorizing Board to fix remuneration of Cost Auditors for the
financial year 2023-24
Signed this...... day of......... 2023
Affix
Revenue
St f

Signature of shareholder s;nlp/o

Signature of Proxy holder(s)

NOTES:

1. This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the
Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the
meeting.

2. The Proxy Form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered.

3. Please put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave
the ‘For’ or ‘Against’ column blank against any or all the resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled
to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.

4. Appointing a proxy does not prevent a member from attending the meeting in person if he so

_
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